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Financial Highlights
MBHE

For the year ended December 31, 2021
BE-_Z-_—-F+-A=+—HLEFE

REVENUE ¥ &

22,294,000

RMB Thousand AR Tt

For the year ended December 31, 2020
BE-Z-ZF+-H=+—-HLEE

20,961,708

RMB Thousand AE# Tt

% Change
Aot

6.4~

GROSS PROFIT £#

8,155,606

RMB Thousand AR Tt

8,240,896

RMB Thousand AR # Tt

-1.04

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN E£#| %

36.6% -2.7

percentage point {El & 2 B

39.3%

EBITDA HIERFIR - MR - HERMBART

5,854,125 5,897,109

RMB Thousand AR¥F T RMB Thousand AR#¥ Tt

-0.7«

NET PROFIT ##l

3,725,225

RMB Thousand AR¥ Tt

3,848,653

RMB Thousand AR¥ T

-3.2%

NET PROFIT MARGIN #t#) %

16.7% -1.7

percentage point {El & 2 2

-3.2x%

18.4%

EARNINGS PER SHARE ®Bi& %l

0-27 RMB AR¥ T 0-28 RMB AR¥ T
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Five-Year Financial Summary

I FMFHHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HeEE EHERAR
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EI—F “EBITF “T—NEFE E-NE ZT—tHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®TT ARETT ARETT ARETT
REVENUE W= 22,294,000 20,961,708 21,375,248 20,863,557 19,799,109
Cost of sales B E A -14,138,394 -12,720,812 -12,883,785 -12,812,816  -12,341484
Gross profit EF 8,155,606 8,240,896 8,491,463 8,050,741 7,457,625
Other income and gains Hhg A R W 1,428,745 1,036,617 886,733 649,339 665,982
Selling, distribution and HE ~ KIH R
administrative expenses TRREY -4,512,431 -4,161,329 -4,230,482 -3,949,250 -3,772,007
Finance costs N3N -86,241 -9,574 -1,413 - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BRI RETE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  F&FRATEF 4,985,679 5,106,610 5,146,301 4,750,830 4,351,600
Income tax expense FRrigME~ -1,260,454 -1,257,957 -1,305,730 -1,033,469 917,897
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 15 B4 2321
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  FE i 3,725,225 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361 3,433,703
Profit attributable to: BUR A LFELS
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ=PN 3,725,225 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361 3,433,703
Total assets BERE 27,405,454 22,710,756 19,947,612 18,245,489 16,326,079
Total liabilities B(E4E%E 8,169,430 5,245,320 3,670,986 2,830,819 2,539,894
Total equity RS 4BEE 19,236,024 17465436 16276626 15414670 13,786,185
ENBEREBRERAR | £ 2021 5



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSES

Dear shareholders,

In 2021, global economies continued to explore development paths in the
fight against the epidemic, with China leading the world in economic recovery
and the market demonstrating strong risk resistance. On the other hand, the
global supply chain disruptions caused by the epidemic and the regional
geopolitical turmoil led to significant increases in raw material prices, putting
pressure on the profitability of the domestic food and beverage industry. In
the macroeconomic environment where challenges and opportunities co-
existed, the Group has adhered to its industry strategy and direction and
actively promoted industry upgrading, brand innovation and comprehensive
channel construction, achieving healthy development across all segments. In
particular, the household consumption segment grew at a fast pace, the snack
food segment maintained overall stability, and the ready-to-drink beverage
segment returned to the track of high-quality growth. The Group’s overall
revenue for the year increased by 6.4% to reach RMB22.294 billion, a new
record high.

In the post-epidemic era, consumer demand for regular meals continues to
rise in favor of healthy and nutritious family consumption products with
excellent quality, and the market is increasingly expanding. After several years
of cultivation, the Group’s Doubendou and Meibeichen have grown into
national leading brands in their respective fields. Doubendou continues to
lead the industry in category education, promoting the dietary philosophy of
green and healthy plant-based products through multi-faceted marketing and
innovative marketing approaches, and driving industry expansion. The
product portfolio was further enriched with the launch of plant-based yogurt
and organic whole soy milk through several years of technical research and
development, to meet consumers’ demand for quality nutritional ingredients.
It has also accelerated the construction of closed-loop channel through close
cooperation with distributors and retail with the aim of establishing a channel
network with more regional influence. Meibeichen has already established a
national presence and comprehensive supply chain system. In 2021, it focused
on improving operational efficiency, increasing the number of quality
distributors and continuously expanding the sales scale of retail outlet stores,
which led to a rapid increase in market penetration. According to the
characteristics of different regional markets, Meibeichen fully leveraged on its
cross-regional development advantages and adopted a targeted market
expansion model and distributor cooperation strategy in accordance with
local conditions, continuously optimizing the distributor ecology and laying
the foundation for the next stage of nationwide expansion.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITREEE

The snack food segment in general maintained market stability through
proactive market strategy adjustments amidst disruptions caused by overall
sluggish consumption and rising raw material costs. As the leading companies
in the snack food sector, Daliyuan, Haochidian and Copico each has a wide
consumer base in their respective sub-segments, and are nationally
recognized domestic brands. Therefore, we have the responsibility to provide
Chinese consumers with nutritious, healthy, quality, delicious and interesting
food products. With this mission in mind, we have always placed product
innovation at the forefront of our strategic development and have continued
to accumulate and strengthen our research and development capabilities to
introduce new products. In 2021, we launched a number of new products in
the snack food segment, which were well welcomed by the market
immediately after their launch.

Ready-to-drink beverage segment has driven the establishment of industrial
ecology by continuously strengthening the force of brand power, product
power and channel power, and achieved healthy segment growth, under
which, Hi-Tiger, positioned as a professional energy drink, has been deepening
its interaction with consumers and strengthening its brand image through
extensive and targeted online media coverage and sponsorship of national
sports events. It reinforced channel establishment and enhanced distributor
profitability and size through optimization of channel profit allocation and
release of channel potential, so as to expand market penetration. Focusing on
innovation and marketing innovation, it launched numerous new products
that catered for the needs of young consumers and interacted with consumers
on social media to continuously enhance brand vitality and achieve stable
sales.

People’s social life and living are affected amid the pandemic, prompting
consumers to change their behavioral habits and preferences, which in the
long run, will result in a gradual and profound change in the marketing models
of all consumption brands. In 2021, the Group actively procured brand
marketing innovation, formulated highly precise marketing strategies and
differentiated marketing approaches, deepened its research on consumer
groups, deeply integrated sales and marketing process to achieve multiple
objectives of brand value conveying and sales conversion.

The Group highly emphasizes corporate governance and sustainable
development. In 2021, the Group actively implemented the concept of green,
environmental protection and health by continuously driving technological
upgrade, green production and energy-saving environmental protection
projects to take the lead in green and sustainable development of the
industry; relentlessly improved the talent management mechanism and
enhanced the corporate governance level through optimization of
organization structure and improvement in remuneration system, with a view
to creating more room for career development of employees and laying a
solid foundation for the Group’s long-term healthy development.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITREEE

Given the outstanding result performance and ample cash flow of the
Company, the Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of HKD0.076 per
Share for 2021, and the dividend payout ratio for the year is 49.6%.

Looking ahead, uncertainties of the epidemic still loom, but as the macro
economy gradually returns to the normal level of the post-epidemic era, the
potential of the consumer market will be released to a greater extent, and the
trend of consumer upgrade and healthy lifestyle will continue to evolve. The
Group will fully capitalize market opportunities and forward-looking
advantages to keep building its core competitiveness, and drive industrial
upgrading and brand enhancement through product innovation, brand
innovation and management model innovation, leading the trend of healthy
foods and beverages in China’s consumer market.

During the past year, the Group achieved significant development, which was
inextricably linked with the staunch support of our business partners, the
effort made by all of our Group’s staff and the trust of consumers. On behalf of
the Board, I would like to express our gratitude to all Dali staff, business
partners and consumers. In 2022, Dali will adhere to the principle of “Creating
Quality with Heart” with a pragmatic yet proactive corporate culture. We will
keep our faith to offer more delicious and healthy products for the consumers.
We will continue to strive for enormous returns for our shareholders, and forge
ahead to new achievements for the Group’s business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ETsm R

In 2021, the Chinese economy led the global economic recovery, but the
overall macro-environment remained challenging due to the resurgence of
the epidemic and uncertainties in policy expectations and market liquidity.
Gross domestic product and total retail sales of consumer goods for the year
grew by 8.1% and 12.5% respectively, with slower growth in the second half of
the year compared to the 12.7% and 23.0% growth rates in the first half. On
the other hand, the supply side also put pressure on the overall profitability of
the downstream sectors in the second half of the year as raw material prices
experienced a relatively large increase. Under pressure from both demand and
supply, the Group demonstrated strong risk resistance, achieving steady
growth in overall revenue, continued strong development of its strategic
brands, and maintained a stable and industry-leading profit level. In terms of
operations, the Group relied on its strong supply chain and logistics
management capabilities to ensure stable production and product supply;
continued to consolidate its channel network and explore its potential to
achieve simultaneous increase in operational efficiency and market share;
and continued to expand its consumer base and maintain brand vitality and
influence with its excellent product innovation and marketing innovation
capabilities. In the long run, the growth and positive trend of the consumer
market will remain unchanged, and the Group’s comprehensive advantages
and forward-looking planning will lead to healthy and stable growth.

In terms of industry development, the Group continued to promote industrial
upgrading, boosting its overall brand power and market share, and
consolidating its leading position as a leading enterprise. Doubendou
continued to lead the industry benchmark and engaged in deep
communications with consumers through innovative marketing methods; and
promoted brand and category education, driving industry development and
expanding industry capacity. The product matrix was further enriched by the
launch of ambient plant-based yogurt and organic whole soy milk, thus
covering both household and leisure consumption scenarios through the two
product lines, namely, ambient soy milk and plant-based yogurt, which
resulted in a more diversified product portfolio and expanded consumption
scenario and coverage of consumer groups. For Meibeichen, operating quality
was boosted, with rapid improvement in profitability of the retail network and
further expansion of market share; it also strengthened the system
construction, optimized distributor and sales team capabilities, and enhanced
distributor efficiency and profitability. The Company further rolled out its
nationwide expansion, and launched its medium shelf life products in the
fourth quarter, while leveraging its flexible distribution timelines and scale
capabilities to fuel a new round of national retail outlet expansion. Hi-Tiger
carried out comprehensive upgrades to its channel profit distribution system
and team management structure, resulting in faster growth of market
penetration. It also accelerated expansion across the nation by rapidly
growing the distributor team and strengthening channel execution, to boost
up the number of its outlets and its regional influence. Innovations were made
in the snack food and ready-to-drink beverage segments. With the team’s
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEd =R EYayin

market insight and strong research and development (“R&D”) capability, we
continued to launch premium new products targeted at the young consumer
group, such as wafers, upgraded cookies, sugar-free herbal tea and bubble
herbal tea, to meet the new consumer demand under the trend of
consumption upgrade and healthy lifestyle.

With continuous development of the Internet and social networking,
consumers’ behaviors and habits in relation to information acquisition and
consumption decision-making are ever-changing, which placed higher
demands on product design, media communication and consumer
interaction by businesses. The Group values brand building and marketing
model upgrade, and grasped the core elements of consumer communication
in brand building. We formulated precise marketing strategies corresponding
to product features, brand tone and market competitive landscape; and
improved transaction conversion rate and realized efficient marketing through
multi-dimensional and quantifiable assessment models. First of all, we
developed highly accurate marketing strategies and differentiated marketing
approaches based on industry characteristics and development stages. For
example, with the goal of driving industry upgrades and building up a brand
image of healthy and organic products, Doubendou has continuously
enriched its plant-based product line by introducing new plant-based yogurt
and organic whole soy milk, integrating multi-faceted and innovative
marketing measures to further enhance its high-quality brand image. As an
energy drink brand highly popular among consumers, Hi-Tiger has
incorporated promotion by generally-recognized online media with
sponsorship by professional offline sports events, to obtain precise scenario-
based marketing and continuously cultivate professional brand value, thus
conveying differentiated brand image value to consumers. Hegizheng seeks to
meet the needs of young consumers, and express its innovative brand value
through constantly creating trending topics over its bubble herbal tea on
social media. Secondly, relying on years of experience and insight in the
consumer field, the Group deepened its research on consumer groups and
explored in-depth the characteristics, demands and spending habits of
consumers so as to refine the portrait of consumer groups in various
industries, and expand the young consumer group. For example, the Group
used big data and algorithms to facilitate analysis, and adjusted marketing
methods as appropriate according to the corresponding consumer
characteristics, realizing accurate consumer access and thorough
communication. Thirdly, the Group has refined its teamwork and assessment
model, and has been working closely with its brand, sales and R&D teams to
innovate new channels and new marketing methods to deeply integrate the
sales and marketing processes and improve the conversion rate of
transactions and cost efficiency, hence achieving the combined effects of
brand value realization and sales conversion. By enhancing the marketing
mindset, embracing consumers in all aspects and refining the marketing and
evaluation model, the Group continuously improved its core competitiveness
in marketing and strengthened brand images under various segments of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEd =R EYayin

As a leader in the food and beverage industry in China, the Group attaches
great importance to fulfilling its social responsibility by leading and promoting
the concept of green, environmental protection and healthy living through
technological upgrades, green production and win-win industrial chains. It
continuously refined the talent management mechanism in order to enhance
corporate governance. The Group considers the enhancement of its R&D
innovation capability as a strategic priority, and has been making
breakthroughs in product technology, design, composition and formulation
by setting up a high-level research platform, building a highly specialized R&D
team and using “digitization” to empower R&D work. In 2021, Doubendou soy
milk won the “Special Prize in the Science and Technology Award of the China
National Food Industry Association (FREI B fa T ¥ 17% G SR ML)
for its patented technology of “natural without additives”. Hegizheng herbal
tea won the “First Prize in the Science and Technology Award of the China
National Food Industry Association (BB f L SR SR iR —54%)
for its patented technology of “freshly brewed extraction technology”.
Doubendou’s innovative technology for room temperature plant-based
ambient yogurt products won the “Second Prize in the Science and
Technology Award of the China National Food Industry Association (FFEI & &
TEBERIBRME EH)” Through technological innovation, the Group
continues to provide consumers with healthier and tastier products, leading
the industry to upgrade its quality and promote the trend of green and healthy
eating. In promoting the sustainable development of the industry chain, the
Group has selected organic farms to promote professional bean cultivation
and breeding techniques, and to build a circular upstream farm ecosystem to
enhance its contribution to the environment. In terms of green production, the
Group encourages innovation and reform in production departments to
continuously optimise production equipment and processes, reduce carbon
emissions and strictly control the composition of emissions. At the same time,
the Group has improved its management of the three types of wastes, and
through internal process optimisation and external cooperation, it has
realised the recycling and utilization of various solid wastes, wastewater and
waste gas. In terms of corporate governance, the Group adhered to its
“people-oriented” philosophy and implemented a multi-level and refined
employee incentive and welfare policy. In 2021, the Group increased the salary
level and performance incentive for frontline sales staff to enhance their
subjective motivation. As for core staff, the Group provided medium to long-
term incentive through a share incentive scheme to align the interests of
employees with those of the Company and shareholders and promote
sustainable corporate development.
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In terms of channel development, the Group adapted to market trends to
broaden the breadth and coverage of its channel, enhance the quality of its
channels, improve the overall efficiency of its channel operations and
continue to strengthen its channel advantages. In 2021, we continued to build
our channel management system. In terms of traditional channels, the Group
steadily promoted the nationwide layout of its channel network and the
development of new market regions. The channel management system was
built to improve the efficiency of the implementation of the entire channel
chain. In addition, through the refinement of distributor support and profit
enhancement policies, the distributor team was strengthened, the
contribution of core distributors was increased, and the control of the retail
outlets were further strengthened. In terms of modern channels, the focus was
on strengthening penetration rates and driving up the quality of modern
channel sales through differentiated products and high-end new products. At
the same time, the Group has seized the opportunity of the fast-growing
convenience channel to expand the coverage of the convenience system
through in-depth channel cooperation and retail outlet services, driving up
the profitability of modern channels. Highly regarded by the Group, the
e-commerce channel has established close partnerships with major platforms
to achieve mutual assistance and build a win-win situation in facilitating the
ecosystem of e-commerce business. In response to the market opportunities
arising from diversifying the channels, the e-commerce segment has been
developing a full channel and has achieved significant results in the expansion
of emerging platforms. In particular, the social e-commerce segment adopted
a group live-streaming approach to precipitate a fan base and achieve rapid
sales volume. Community group purchase leveraged the Group’s natural
advantage in the lower-tier market channel to expand channel sales by
leveraging the high repeat purchase rate of household consumption products
and the perfect match between the preferences of target consumer groups,
helping platforms to jointly develop regional markets and capture wider
market opportunities, so as to realise rational utilisation of the channels.
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In 2021, the Group’s revenue reached RMB22,294 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 6.4%, of which, revenue from the household consumption
segment increased to RMB3,635 million with a year-on-year increase of 22.7%;
revenue from the snack food segment decrease to RMB9,943 million with a
year-on-year decrease of 2.7%; and revenue from the ready-to-drink beverage
segment increased to RMB6,596 million with a year-on-year increase of 6.8%.
Gross profit amounted to RMB8,156 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 1.0%. Gross profit of the household consumption, snack food and
ready-to-drink beverage segments were RMB1,563 million, RMB3,399 million
and RMB3,150 million, respectively, representing an increase of 12.4%, a
decrease of 11.8%, and an increase of 6.6%, respectively, compared to the
same period of last year. Overall gross profit margin of the Group was 36.6%,
showing a decrease of 2.7 percentage points as compared to last year. Profit
before tax was RMB4,986 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
2.4%; net profit decreased by 3.2% year-on-year to RMB3,725 million, with a
net profit margin of 16.7%, representing a year- on-year decrease of 1.7
percentage point. Cash flow remained strong, with an increase in cash by
RMB4,214 million, and net cash amounting to RMB16,596 million, an increase
of 34.1% compared to the end of 2020.

Looking back to 2021, the Company actively procured industry upgrade where
it achieved remarkable results in the area of household consumption and
energy drinks and established a solid foundation for channel reinforcement
and team enhancement, while highlighting its performance in product
research and development, corporate governance, and innovative marketing.
Looking ahead to 2022, the Group will continue to improve its efficient
innovation mechanism and actively expand the size of its new channels and
platforms as well as business teams, with an aim to further consolidate its
leading position in the snack food industry, continuously increase its market
share in the ready-to-drink beverage segment and establish the plant-based
protein as a new leading industry, as well as expand the national scale
advantage of the short shelf-life bread sector. With the implementation of its
equity incentive scheme, a series of effective and consistent management
strategies and the precise and efficient execution of the team, the Group will
be well-positioned to achieve long-term and sustainable results growth in the
future, thereby creating larger returns for its shareholders.
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HOUSEHOLD CONSUMPTION INDUSTRY

In 2021, the household consumption industry saw a strong growth momentum
with an increase in sales revenue by 22.7% to RMB3,635 million in 2021 from
RMB2,963 million in 2020, accounting for 16.3% of the overall sales of the
Group. Gross profit margin saw a decrease of 3.9 percentage points to 43.0%,
mainly due to the faster growth rate of Meibeichen and the increase in raw
material costs. Our sales team and distributor team in the household
consumption industry have been equipped with strong capabilities in
execution and responsiveness. Since 2021, the Group has been continuously
optimising its sales system and channel network for concrete development of
quality products and enhancement of operational efficiency, laying a solid
foundation for the next round of large-scale expansion. Meanwhile, we have
strengthened our capability in product innovation and marketing innovation,
enriched product efficacy and taste options, strengthened the brand’s
influence in the household consumption market by integrating marketing and
sales communication to target groups.

. Short Shelf-life Bread

With the level of urbanization in China continues to improve, people’s
demand for convenient breakfast is increasingly prominent, short shelf-
life bread market has strong growth potential.

As a leading national brand in the short shelf-life bread market,
Meibeichen has been improving its operating efficiency throughout
2021. Leveraging on its strong cross-regional operating capability and
channel establishment ability, it recorded a rapid increase in market
share with sales revenue reached RMB1,390 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 33.5%. Entering the second half of the year,
Meibeichen will enhance distributor scale and profitability through
various measures, with a focus on optimizing the distributor ecology.
Firstly, it improved cooperation mechanism. Benefitting from the sales
quality enhancement for almost a year, it has laid a foundation in
several regional markets. In order to further expand its regional
penetration, Meibeichen launched a differentiated distributor
cooperation model in core regions, with an attempt to enhance its
market presence. Secondly, it will improve operating efficiency through
channel integration management, justifying the expansion of operating
size of distributors. Lastly, it launched medium-shelf life products to
optimize the industrial structure of distributors, and assist brand
penetration in regional markets and low-tier markets with longer
cultivation period, enabling distributors to grow stronger and expand
sales size and profitability through enlarged operation license and
diversified product offerings. Besides, Meibeichen pre-emptively
captured group purchase opportunities in the community by utilizing its
channel advantages in household consumption scenarios and low-tier
markets to expedite market expansion and continuously increase its
reach in the region.

REHEEE
T REHEBEEIERENERY HE
WABRZS _ZEM AR 2963 ETIEMN22.7%
ETE T —FPI AR 36357 0 IHELEBRERE
tHER16.3% » EFIETHEIIEEDRE 43.0%
FEHAREIERIERBIR BRI A A L3R o K
FEHEEENHEBBMNLHEmERE R ERR
BRAITHMIRER R ERES » — T —F#E > £E
HIHERBRAREEREFERE RBELRE
2 RAKENE > AT HRECEREER
o BB > s b E MBI E HRIFRES
BT EMINEN ORISR > S BIEEE
T BN EIBIE — LR AEI® - TNEfsR(t
RBREREEETBNEES] -

. FEfRESE
FBE th SR E K T AV IE IR 7T > AR
ERFENTRADENE  ERECETHS
BERERANERES -

EIEREARFRBEMIBPEILNEZE
M EZE T —FRETR AL NE
BEMANEEIESE N REERE
71 MIBMHEERREH  HEWAERA
13908 FEIER335% AT
FF EIEREMELLCHEER B8
ZIESEIRARHERERBIED B
oo BIEEERE - Smilii—FNHEE
HEHFE > ZEGEMBEENARR 5
E—SEAREFEE ] EEREZLE
WHEEBERCKHEBAERN ) 2EEH
MHEEE - HX » BARE—IBLEE
IREREWE » R AKEIRIE o
BE HHPREREBLLHANESRES
B BEREEEEEPERENEET
BRI TNHHREE - BBENEEERK

RS 0 EEFSHE B MAER
BEAHEERENBRED - B EBR
MEERICETEEERS > FRERER
REHEBS R NNTHENES > Ikm
SR > BIEEEFEREK -

ENERERARRE | £ 2021 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEd =R EYayin

16

Highly regarded by the Group, Meibeichen has established a product
matrix with a wide range of products, an increasingly established sales
team and a well-developed distribution ecosystem. Looking ahead to
2022, Meibeichen will enhance and develop its product quality, further
scale up its sales and strengthen its moat against threats to the brand,
with a view to becoming the most influential short shelf-life bread brand
in China.

Soy Milk

Given the increasing health awareness and concern over sustainable
development by consumers, the growing consumer recognition of the
nutritional value of plant-based protein is creating a large and healthy
growth market.

As a leading brand in the soy milk industry, Doubendou has been
committed to consumer education and market capacity expansion in
recent years to lead the industrialization development of the industry. In
2021, Doubendou adopted innovative marketing approaches to
conduct in-depth communication with consumers and continued to
promote brand and category education. We have maintained
comprehensive presence in popular variety shows and television
dramas in China, combined with emerging social platforms to deepen
consumers’ awareness of the brand and its products, to achieve
extensive and continuous exposure of the brand and facilitate the
mutual synergy and enhancement of marketing and sales. The product
matrix was further enriched with the establishment of two major
product matrixes — room temperature soy milk and plant-based yogurt.
The ambient plant-based yogurt and organic whole soy milk enriched
product choices in terms of efficacy and taste, expanding consumption
scenarios and consumer coverage as well as leading the industry
developing into maturity. The channel network was further improved,
representing by the retail outlet segment focusing on market
infrastructure to boost the product repurchase rate, and the distributor
segment strengthening the allocation of dedicated staff and vehicles for
the distribution system construction with distributors to form a closed
channel loop. Benefited from the revealing outcome of category
education, the further enrichment of the product ecology and the
continuous improvement of the channel network, the same-store
growth of Doubendou experienced a sharp increase, leading to further
expansion of sales scale and continuous growth in market share. By the
end of the year, Doubendou has become the national brand occupying
the largest market share in the soy milk industry, with sales scale
amounting to RMB2,245 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
16.8%.
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Looking ahead to 2022, Doubendou will further optimize its pricing
system and improve the efficiency of expenditure allocation to facilitate
the rapid and healthy development of the brand in terms of its industrial
system, investment and team management. The Group believes that
capitalizing on its capabilities of brand building, genre operation and
market expansion, Doubendou will eventually lead the plant-based
protein industry to achieve greater success.

SNACK FOOD BUSINESS

In 2021, the Group leveraged the strengths as a leading enterprise through its
extensive product portfolio and wide network of channels to achieve stable
overall sales in a generally weak mass market. With the long-term trend of
consumption quality upgrade and healthy diet becoming increasingly
apparent, the snack food segment firmly implements its new product strategy
and promotes the improvement of productivity by continuing to launch
products that tasted fresher and more delicious with finer packaging. As for
our channel, we are actively supporting the new product strategy by
expanding the coverage of new products in the channel, increasing the
penetration rate of modern channels and deepening sales quality through
high quality products.

Faced with the pressure of rising raw material prices, the snack food segment
adjusted the price for some low-margin products and leveraged its strong
productivity and strength to achieve good distributor and end-user feedback.
Sales of snack food declined slightly in the second half of the year due to the
short term impact of the response time to the price increases on turnover. In
2021, our sales revenue for the year decreased by 2.7% to RMB9,943 million
from RMB10,213 million in 2020. Our gross profit margin decreased by 3.5
percentage points to 34.2%, mainly due to the impact of higher raw material
costs. With the optimization of our product mix, new product sales growth and
marketing innovations, sales will improve year-on-year and the benefit of
growth will be further released, and the long-term positive trend will remain
unchanged.

. Bakery

Bakery is the largest category among snack food in China and has
maintained rapid growth in recent years, with strong market
momentum and huge potential for industry opportunities. As a
household name in the bakery industry, Daliyuan has the largest market
share in the industry and has established strong product development
capacity and market responsiveness over the past 30 years of operation.
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In 2021, Daliyuan continued to promote product quality upgrades and
high-end market penetration. In response to consumers’ increasing
demand for better taste and texture, the quality of the major categories
of egg pie, chocolate pie and small bread was comprehensively
upgraded to expand our consumer base and increase the repeat
purchase rate. Daliyuan formulated targeted marketing strategies to
expand the shelf share and sales contribution of high-end products in
the channels and deepen the penetration into the high-end consumer
market, taking into account the consumer base of its new products and
their consumption habits.

Compared with developed countries, China’s bakery market is still
relatively less concentrated, in which companies with strong innovation
capabilities will be able to further expand their sales scale and increase
their market share. In the future, Daliyuan will continue to consolidate
its existing advantages, strengthen its innovation capabilities, promote
new products and improve the efficiency of its channels to continue to
drive up its revenue scale and market share.

Potato Puffed Food

As a leading domestic potato chips brand in China, Copico has a good
reputation among young consumers and a well-established product
matrix. Copico has a strong position in the mass market with its
compound series, and meets the demand for upgraded consumption
with its pure cut series.

In 2021, Copico continued to innovate its products, introducing stylish
and interesting products. For example, in response to the trend of
healthy eating, Copico launched the “Freshly Cut Flowers ({EEBATH]])”
series, which added real flowers to fruit flavours for a refreshing,
nutritious and healthy taste, and was well received by young consumers
after launch. On the other hand, Copico has launched precision
marketing and innovative marketing, encompassing popular dramas
and variety shows that young consumers love, and actively developing
new live channels and social media channels to generate buzz on social
media through continuous brand exposure, topic creation and KOC (Key
Opinion Consumer) recommendation, thus continuously expanding the
brand’s influence among young consumers.

Looking forward, Copico will continue to capture the consumption
trend of young consumers, promote product innovation and brand
marketing and actively promote omni-channel sales through building a
fan base through innovative specialty products, thereby continuously
increasing Copico’s market share.
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. Biscuit
After years of development, the biscuit market has become more
mature. Product upgrading will become an important driver for market
development, and companies with high-end advantages will reap more
market share. As a household name in China’s market, Haochidian has
great brand awareness, with a comprehensive product portfolio
covering a variety of consumption groups.

In 2021, Haochidian has kept abreast of market trend by launching
“Veekin”, a healthy wafer biscuit snack with trendy packaging to meet
the needs of young consumers, and at the same time extended and
upgraded the product range of its cookies to include smaller packs of
refined biscuits. On the other hand, Haochidian has capitalised on the
high-growth children’s snack market, and through intellectual property
co-branding and collaboration with popular variety shows, it has
conveyed its brand image of children’s biscuits as cute, fun and healthy,
which has received good feedback from the household consumption
market. In terms of channels, we expanded our omni-channel
penetration, making use of emerging channel opportunities and
developed fast-growing convenience channels, while optimising the
product mix of our channels through new products to enhance the
quality of our channel sales on all fronts.

Looking forward, Haochidian will work on product positioning, channel
and team to strengthen its core competitiveness, promote brand
upgrade, increase mid-to-high-end market penetration and expand the
brand impact.

READY-TO-DRINK BEVERAGE INDUSTRY

The demands for beverage with efficacy and fashion sense is rapidly
increasing as a result of the changing consumer habits following the pandemic
and the constant deepening of consumer upgrading trend. In 2021, the Group
launched a number of innovative products in response to market trends and
continued to expand sales by upgrading and extending existing products
through accurate insights into market trends. In terms of channels, we
underwent the team structure optimization of ready-to-drink beverage, with
emphasis on strengthening the operational capability of the team and
distributors. Through setting up an efficient assessment mechanism, we have
selected and nurtured a team of sales and distributors with a high level of
concentration and execution to help the channel achieve efficient penetration.
Benefited from improvement in product portfolio and channel management,
the sales revenue of the Group’s ready-to-drink beverage sector increased by
6.8% from RMB6,176 million for 2020 to RMB6,596 million in 2021, and the
gross profit margin decreased slightly by 0.1 percentage point to 47.8%, which
was mainly due to the impact of higher raw material prices was basically offset
by the expansion of sales scale and the optimization of product portfolio.
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Energy Drinks

The energy beverage market has maintained rapid growth in recent
years, the consumer groups core demand of which is product efficacy.
Featured by product consumption characteristics such as strong brand
royalty and repurchase rate, leading brands are more capable to
increase their market share. Through differentiated specification
positioning and brand marketing, Hi-Tiger has built up a loyal consumer
base in the industry, highlighting its branding advantage. The sales
revenue for 2021 amounted to RMB3,222 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 16.3%.

In the first half of 2021, through channel profit allocation and team
structure optimization, Hi-Tiger has enhanced the profitability of
distributors and retail outlets to industry-leading levels, improved the
focus of the sales team and distributor team, released organic channel
dynamics, strengthened retail outlet control and achieved an increasing
penetration of existing markets. Since the start of second half of the
year, Hi-Tiger entered a new phase of market expansion, with the brand
focusing on expanding its national network coverage and rapidly
increasing the number of new regional outlets, leading to a rapid
increase in sales. In terms of brand marketing, Hi-Tiger continued to
reinforce its positioning as a professional energy beverage by actively
sponsoring the broadcast platforms of premium sports events such as
the Union of European Football Associations Euros and World Cup, as
well as collaborating with adventure reality shows to convey the brand’s
values of positive optimism, exploration and inclusive openness. By
online and offline means of sponsorship and participation in national
and regional sporting events, the brand has been able to interact and
communicate with consumers, effectively reinforcing its differentiated
brand image.

In the future, Hi-Tiger will continue to strengthen its professional brand
positioning and optimize the quality of its team and distributors. It will
deepen its channel penetration by refining its regional market
approach, targeting at first and second tier markets and strengthening
its retail outlet control and network image. With the help of such
measures, we will proactively capture incremental market growth and
expand our market share at the same time.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

THAEER#Y
IMERPERB T HFRESRER > Em
RNt RHBERIZOSK > EmHE
BAESE RERSTRE > EEREA
BERBIHIBMHERRIAES - £RBEE
EEPEBEMMMEED > EITERR
VT —HEEHERRE > RENED
BREE - :7_ FIHEWATIR163%8IF
R - ERARE 2. 22EmT -

TECFEHF ERETRENRED
ok EERE R EHERARIRETIAE
NRAETERRNKF > HEBBRACH
AEOEEERIEN  REFZNFERE
FRREM - %%Iﬁ’ﬁ??“jjﬁubﬂ%@ RETS
BBETHES c BATHFEDR > #RE

)\FE%}EJEE’J%K B mEREREA2E
MBRER  MESERBEREEN
HEIHERERTT - mEEHTE 0 %%
R CHEXEINBEMMREN » ER LE
B BmEBEUNT  EEEFIRRE
BEENENRTE  ANEEREASS
6 HIRDBTEIHRLE « BiR ?%D’TW
RABRNEEHRS R T EH L BEHE
PNz E2EERMEEESHES > BN
BEETREDHHEEE  SMBIELER
ERCHIMEIR

R HERFTFERCEEREEN > B
{EEEREHBEE - E@Ehis % -
?—Fﬁ%\— TR BERIREE R ER
R RMERELE - BE—RIBEH
EE*E?%HXFE%LEEE’\JHE% s AT IHH
B



Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEd =R EYayin

Herbal Tea

In 2021, the herbal tea industry recorded a slight year-on-year decline of
2.3% to RMB1,668 million amid the weak market condition. Hegizheng
seized the structural growth opportunities presented by the young
consumer groups, and focused on technological innovation, product
innovation and marketing innovation to enhance its brand vitality and
achieve stable sales. In terms of technology upgrade, Hegizheng has
been continuously upgrading its extraction process to improve product
quality. Its patented “freshly brewed extraction technology” has been
awarded as the first-class prize in Science Technology Award of the
China National Food Industry Association. In terms of products, based
on its market position of traditional herbal beverage, it introduced
sugar-free herbal tea and carbonated herbal tea with healthy
ingredients and upgraded texture. We have won consumers heart with
our innovative and unique taste. In terms of marketing, we built topics
and interacted with consumers in the form of music creation on TikTok
and Bilibili with the adoption of innovative marketing approach
targeting the young consumer groups, and achieved good consumer
feedback.

Looking into the future, Hegizheng will continue to capture demands
from young consumer groups, launch innovative products to cater for
market trends and enhance the brand perception and vitality, so as to
achieve stable sales growth.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 9.3% from
RMB3,555 million in 2020 to RMB3,884 million in 2021. Such expenses as
a percentage of revenue increased compared with 2020, which was
mainly attributable to higher advertising expenses as the Group
continued to enhance the promotion efforts for new products and
higher labor costs as a result of the increase in sales personnel in the
home consumption segment.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 3.6% from RMB606
million in 2020 to RMB628 million in 2021. Such expenses as a
percentage of revenue remained essentially flat as compared to 2020,
mainly due to the increase in personnel cost as a result of increase in
average remuneration of management personnel.
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Cash

The Group meets its liquidity needs mainly through cash flow generated
from operation and proceeds from the listing. The total value of the
Group’s pledged deposits, cash and bank deposits increased from
RMB13,925 million as at December 31, 2020 to RMB16,647 million as at
December 31, 2021. The increase was mainly due to the Group’s net
operating cash inflow of RMB3,206 million in 2021, and cash outflow
from capital expenditure on acquisition of machinery and equipment,
newly built plants and land of RMB1,339 million, as well as the change
in cash flow generate from bank borrowings and used in purchase of
financial products.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories increased by 11.1% from RMB1,075 million as at
December 31, 2020 to RMB1,194 million as at December 31, 2021. It was
mainly because the Group increased inventory storages in response to
price fluctuations of certain raw material markets. The inventory
turnover days decreased from 33.1 days in 2020 to 28.9 days in 2021.

Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables increased by 52.3% from
RMB900 million as at December 31, 2020 to RMB1,371 million as at
December 31, 2021. It was mainly because the Group eased the credit
terms for certain high-quality distributors in order to promote sales in
the household consumption segment and the increase in trade
receivables due to fast development in e-commerce, new retail and
other business with longer payment periods. The trade and bills
receivables turnover days increased from 14.1 days in 2020 to 18.3 days
in2021.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables increased by 4.5% from RMB984
million as at December 31, 2020 to RMB1,028 million as at December 31,
2021, mainly attributable to the fact that the Group increased inventory
storages of certain raw materials at the end of the year, resulting in
increase in the balance of payables. The trade and bills payables
turnover days decreased from 33.0 days in 2020 to 25.6 days in 2021.
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Borrowings

As of December 31, 2021, the balance of short-term loans of the Group
was RMB5,273 million, of which 93.8% was denominated in RMB
(December 31, 2020: RMB1,918 million). Such short-term loans of the
Group are unsecured bank borrowings with interest rates ranging from
1% to 3% per annum. Benefiting from various domestic macroeconomic
policies and the supporting policies for the real economy from various
financial institutions, the Group obtained borrowings in relation to the
supporting policies stated above.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 29.8%. The
gearing ratio is the total liabilities divided by equity plus total liabilities.
The increase in gearing ratio from 23.1% as at December 31, 2020 was
mainly due to the addition of unsecured bank short-term loans of the
Group in 2021. The Group owns sufficient cash to repay the above
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China were
denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland
China were not subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at
December 31, 2021, the Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in
HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain subsidiaries
incorporated outside Mainland China which had currencies other than
RMB as their functional currencies.

The Company and those subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland
China also held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign
currency exposures arise. The Group did not conduct any hedging
activities.

Contingent liabilities

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Pledge of assets

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s balance of pledge amounted to
RMBO0.831 million (December 31, 2020: RMB100 million) have been to
secure its bills payable and letters of credit.
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
November 20, 2015 with net proceeds from the global offering of
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees
and commissions and estimated expenses payable in connection with
the global offering). According to the intended use as set out in “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus published on November
10, 2015 (the “Prospectus”), the amount utilized as at December 31,
2021 were as follows:

Use of Proceeds from the Listing (as of December 31, 2021)
Unit: HKD million

Utilised during

the year ended Utilised as at
December 31, December 31,

No. Items Percentage Available 2021

2021

R-E--% HE-T=-F
+=A=+-B +-A=+-H
B9 EE ff THE LFEESHA  LRHOR

1 Development, introduction 20% 1,733 232
and promotion of
new products
B~ RIS
Em
2 Expansion and upgrade of 20% 1,733 -
production facility and
manufacturing network
BRREALERTR
3 Enhancing presencein 20% 1,733 -
sales channels and
promoting brands

1,733

1,733

1733

EHFRSRIERR

KABRPR _BE—AF+—BZ+AH%E
B2 PR EMR L 0 RE 2K ERFRIE
B 286,65 BB T (HIFRAER TR ZIK
HERMNVEHERBTRMAEFHAX) o )R
BE-—nF+—ATHEMNERERE
(THBRRER2 1) Ml ARG B K PRASFIE R
FRENRERR R_2-_—F+_F8
=+—HNEHAEEUT :

LHAABRIERR (BE-S=-—%+=8
=+—8)
B BEBT

Unutilised as at
December 31, Expected timetable of the use of
2021 the unutilised net proceeds®
BEZZ--F
+ZA=1+—-H ERXBRFREREEEN
IERARENE  FERARSRIR

- NA
FER

- NA
AEA

- N/A
FER

RATHEREN
M RIEERE
4 Potential acquisitions and 30% 2,600 - - 2,600 Itis expected to be fully utilised on or
business cooperation before December 31,2024%
BRUWERERAE BEHRNRZ2INE
TZA=t—RIZAEZEHH?
5 Working capital and 10% 866 - 866 - N/A
other general corporate TEA
purposes
SEETREM—R
AFAR
Total 100% 8,665 232 6,065 2,600

A
Ao
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The Company does not intent to utilize the proceeds for purposes
different as described in the Prospectus.

(1)

The expected timetable of the use of the unutilised net proceeds is subject to the
unprecedented uncertainty caused by the prevailing and future market conditions,
business developments and supply and demand, owing to the global macro
conditions and the COVID-19 pandemic. In light of the significant impact on the
economy and business environment, we will continue updating and revisiting our
plans.

In terms of seeking potential acquisitions and business collaborations, since the
listing of the Company in November 2015, the Company has been prudently
evaluating potential target acquisitions to strengthen our position in the food and
beverage industry by leveraging our national sales and distribution network in
accordance with the intended use of the net proceeds as stated in the prospectus.
The Group adheres to prudent financial management policies to maintain adequate
cash flow and a healthy financial position. While strengthening internal growth, the
Group will continue to focus on mergers and acquisitions and business collaboration
opportunities in a bid to realise such opportunities and fully utilise the net proceeds
allocated for such purposes on or before December 31, 2024. As at the date of this
report, we have not entered into any legally binding definitive agreements
concerning any of these opportunities. The Company will make further
announcements in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when
appropriate.

. Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group had capital expenditures of RMB1,339 million in 2021,
primarily used for (i) the construction of new product’s production lines
and equipment upgrades; (i) the construction of new plant; and (iii) the
construction of newly acquired land and plants of certain factories.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
property, plant and equipment were RMB450 million, which were
primarily used for (i) the construction of plant for new and expanded
factories; (i) the equipment upgrades in every production plant.
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Human Resources and Staff Remuneration

The Group always believes that talent is the core competitiveness of
enterprises and regards employees as important strategic resources for
corporate development. It has made active efforts in establishing a
sound talent selection and training mechanism to improve employees’
overall competitiveness and their sense of belonging to the Group. In
the first half of 2021, the Group continued to introduce a large number
of professional high-end talents, and actively identified talents from the
existing employees and jointly established a training mechanism with
key universities and colleges in China on a long-term basis. The Group
established a tutor management system and a training management
system, and a learning and development model such as visiting external
model enterprises, formed a talent selection and promotion mechanism
for competition for posts and performance appraisal, maintained the
core competitiveness of corporate talents, and cultivated an
experienced, stable and reliable management team. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to optimise and upgrade our management structure,
promote fine management, upgrade information management and
strengthen the headquarters’ control of the market, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 40,745 employees (as at
December 31, 2020: 39,216 employees). The Group’s employees are
remunerated with reference to their positions, performance, experience
and prevailing salary trends in the market. In addition to basic salaries,
the Group provides various staff benefits to its employees. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, the total employee benefits expenses
(including Directors’ remuneration) were RMB2,538 million (for the year
ended December 31, 2020: RMB2,304 million), which was primarily
attributable to the increase in sales and management personnel of the
Group’s household consumption segment and the increase in average
remuneration.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group will continue to seize the opportunity of
development to lead the trend of household consumption and healthy
consumption, and expand its market share and capture the incremental market.
For the household consumption segment, we will lead the advancement in the
industry and enhance our advantages as a leading player. For the snack food
segment, we will invest in high-end products to expand our leading position. For
the ready-to-drink beverage segment, we will reshape the market landscape to
get all our brands back on the track of high growth. We will continue to invest in
operational excellence, promote all-encompassing efficiency enhancement in
our channels, build our core competitiveness in innovative marketing, and
accelerate digitalization to improve management efficiency.

The Group will adhere to prudent financial management policies, maintain
ample cash flow and a healthy financial position. While strengthening our
organic growth, the Group will continue to explore opportunities for mergers
and acquisitions and external cooperation.

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to the principle of creating quality with
commitment with a pragmatic yet proactive corporate culture, as well as
promote high-quality growth through well-defined strategic planning and
efficient strategy execution. We will keep our faith to offer more delicious and
healthy products for our customers and continue to strive for enormous
returns for our shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is a
leading branded food and beverage company in China with a diversified multi-
brand product portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and
beverage in China. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015.

Segment analysis of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out
in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. A list of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, together with their places and dates of incorporation,
types of legal entity, principal activities and particulars of their issued shares/
registered share capital, is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators as required under Schedule 5 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 27 of this annual report which
constitute part of this report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the market, operational, financial and compliance
risks in relation to the industry in which the Group operates and each business
division of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our operations, the
potential risks to our business increase as well. We have implemented a risk
management system that covers each material aspect of our operations,
including finance, supply chain, security, technology and compliance. As our
risk management is a systematic project, each of our departments is
responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of
operations. Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing and assessing
our risk management policy and they supervise the performance of our risk
management system. Details of the principal risks during the year are set out
in Risk Management and Internal Controls under Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 164 to 165.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On November 19, 2018, the Company adopted a dividend policy for the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profit to shareholders of the
Company as dividends. According to the dividend policy, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Company
and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

financial result;
cash flow conditions;
business conditions and strategies;
future operations and earnings;
. capital requirements and expenditure plans;
. interests of shareholders;
potential investment, mergers and acquisitions;
any restrictions on payment of dividends; and
any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period as follows:

. interim dividend;
. final dividend;
special dividend; and
any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders” approval.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board will review the dividend
policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HKS0.087 per ordinary share for the six months ended
June 30, 2021 was declared during 2021.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.076
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.0625) per ordinary share for the year
ended December 31, 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend”), representing a total
payment of approximately HK$1,040,753,000 (equivalent to RMB856,198,000).
The payment of the 2021 Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held on May 18, 2022.

Upon Shareholders” approval to be obtained at the AGM, the 2021 Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on July 8, 2022 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on May 27, 2022.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years, as set out on page 5 of this annual report, is extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31,
2021 amounted to approximately RMB1,549,547.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The events occurred after the Reporting Period are disclosed in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium and other
reserves. As at December 31, 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB5.48 million (2020: RMB134.73 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015. The net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Company in connection
with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the Listing” on pages 24 to 25 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS

Brief biographies of the Directors as at the date of this report are set out in the
Board of Directors and Senior Management section of this annual report. The
Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Ms. Huang Jiaying (appointed on February 8, 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (resigned on March 28, 2022)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (appointed on March 28, 2022)

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan has resigned as an independent non-executive director,
a member of nomination and audit committee of the Company with effect
from March 28, 2022 due to his old age.

Mr. Ng Kong Hing has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director, a member of nomination committee and audit committee of the
Company with effect from March 28, 2022.

Each of Mr. Xu Shihui, Mr. Zhuang Weigiang, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Ms. Huang
Jiaying, Ms. Xu Biying, Ms. Hu Xiaoling, Mr. Ng Kong Hing, Mr. Liu Xiaobin and
Dr. Lin Zhijun shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
pursuant to article 16.18 of the Articles of Association or the Listing Rules and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE AND COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in Note 35 “Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
(as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2021 or at any time during 2021.

None of the Directors has interests in any businesses apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business,
either directly or indirectly or would otherwise require disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in Notes 35(a)(i), 35(a)
(iii) and 35(a)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements constitutes a
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules but are
exempt from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders” approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a).

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at December 31, 2021, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

I Interest in shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest

ERNER 8198, #mttE
Mr. Xu Shihui® Interest in controlled corporation
SFHEAE R EE RS

Ms. Xu Yangyang!
Bz e

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust®

HISEENR T

EFNEERS - RHRHSORFEF
EWNEL

FRE M ERERMES TR SRS FIiREE
b BT L EANT ~ HER AR EE MK
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RE(EER MR REFHEEEA#ER (F
WEHEQEE) TAR - —FXxE_F
T FREAREMAERMNEER S « 8%
4 (R R EMRBMERAS) ©
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REH PR EREAEFPEENEEE
ARmmARE EHARR S 8. 101F FLUKEE -

RAB S22

A B FSEHR M EE35(a) () ~ 35(a)ii) & 35(a)(iv) Fir
?Ez%EGZ!&EJE%5@Ai§%$§ﬁﬁt?ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%i
B’Jﬁ,\a B 5 0 BIREE 14A76(1) () IR EE R
BSPRR N NS~ FEEZAEIREHERTE o

EERBRRITHASHERRKE
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Il.  Interestin shares of associated corporations of the Company  1l. W Zs‘ATHEESE B ISR EIERS

Approximate
Numberof  percentage of
sharesinthe interestin the

Name of associated associated associated
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature of interest corporation corporation
AR EE
FREEERY BKE s
ERER REERTE 519 fEmttE Liab k4= BAESEE
Mr. Xu Shihui® Divine Foods Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 50 50%
SIS A4 @ (‘Divine Foods”)  TARIEHIEER#E T
Note: FEE
(1) Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine (1) Divine Foods F Divine Foods-1 Limited  Divine
Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. Divine Foods-1 Limited is Foods-2 Limited & Divine Foods-3 Limited %3 B!
98% and 2% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine & & % B 50% ~ 10% A240% ° Divine Foods-1
Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited are in turn wholly-owned by Hi-Tiger Limited FA &F tt ¥ 5 4 R Hi-Tiger Limited 43 B!
Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI & & ¥ B98%K2% e [MmDivine Foods-2
wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East) Limited (the “Trustee”), and Hi-Tiger Limited Limited K Divine Foods-3 Limited 3 Hi-Tiger
holds 2%, 100% and 100% shareholdings in Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine Foods-2 Limited 2 & # A ° Hi-Tiger Limited 2 — R i
Limited, and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. The Trustee is a company HEMNEETME IR EERAT > A
incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of the Xu’s Family Trust which is a Cantrust (Far East) Limited ((RFE A1) 2 & #
discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen Liling as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling, A © Hi-Tiger Limited 9 B 45 A Divine Foods-1
Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries. Limited ~ Divine Foods-2 Limited & Divine

Foods-3 Limited B9 2% ~ 100% Kz 100% 1% A& #
oo REEABA RN ABERFESEMML
HAT > TAFEREEFENZEA » FK
RirfEstARBR L LEAMERT AR
MBS MRER LT FtEEER
BB EAZHA ©

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, none of the Directors and [ EXFRIREEI » RS - —F+_F=+—
the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any interest  H > #IEXRATEZHTBTHAEESNEA
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the #EBARATHEHEE 2B (EERFHLHAEK
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the 5155 xv &B) B& 1% ~ 1BRARR DSBS EMEF
SFO), which were required to be notified under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of %2 » M /BAIRIEE 5 RIS KA EXVEE 7%
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange D E3{EH BN SR IR TR B G 4 A B & i
pursuant to the Model Code. PR ©

34 Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021



Report of the Directors
EFEWRS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2021, the interests or short positions of the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest

BRERER B EmeE

Divine Foods Beneficial owner
FaEAA

Divine Foods-1 Limited™
(“Divine Foods-1")

Divine Foods-2 Limited™
(“Divine Foods-2")

Divine Foods-3 Limited™®
(“Divine Foods-3")

Ms. Chen Liling?®@
BRI Lt e

Cantrust (Far East) Limited
(“Trustee”)

Interest in controlled corporation

REEGEEED

Deemed interest as an associate of
a substantial shareholder

R —REERRBBRANRIFRED

Interest in controlled corporation
RREEGERE S

Interest of spouse

FofBfEm

Trustee; Interest in controlled corporation

Cantrust (Far East) Limited ZEEA ; IS EE LS
(MZFEALD) Y
Notes:
(1) Divine Foods is 509%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2 and

Divine Foods-3 respectively. Divine Foods-1 is 98% and 2% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui
and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 are in turn wholly-
owned by Hi-Tiger Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI wholly-owned by the Trustee, and Hi-Tiger Limited holds 2%, 100% and 100%
shareholdings in Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2, and Divine Foods-3 respectively. The
Trustee is a company incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of the Xu’s Family Trust which
is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen Liling as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr.
Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries.

Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Chen Liling are spouses. Accordingly, each of Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms.
Chen Liling is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all shares and underlying shares in which
their spousal counterpart is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

FERRRA R RS

ATE-—F+"HA=+—H> PHALT &R
BEERRSTBABRIN RARBIRESRS
R E &G H 336 R BF B EMN B MATC iR/
KABRMABREKR DA HEBENERI X B W

o
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Shares interestin
(long positions) the Company
MREAR LR
RIPEE (FE) RS I=Ts 4o
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%
11,640,000,000 85%
BEE
(1) Divine Foods Fi Divine Foods-1 ~ Divine Foods-2 &
Divine Foods-373 Bl & J& #E B 50%  10% K2 40% ©
Divine Foods-1 FH 5F 8 8 5 4 Kz Hi-Tiger Limited %3 B
& & ¥ B 98% k2% © M Divine Foods-2 Kz Divine
Foods-3 i Hi-Tiger Limited 2 E #5 © Hi-Tiger Limited
B-RPABERB MR MR EER AT
B2 EAZE S o Hi-Tiger Limited 3 B! A Divine
Foods-1 ~ Divine Foods-2 & Divine Foods-3 B92% ~
100% 2 100% R # i o KFEA B — RN EBHER
B EHMAIIAAT » TRATERIEEENZTA
HFRRIEEETARBER L TEAMERT ARIN
BB MRER X  FEBEERFBEBL
TAZHA -
Q)  FFIELEREEER L+ AE®E - FIL > EHR
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Changes in Information of Company Secretary

Pursuant to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chen Ying is qualified to act as
the company secretary of the Company. As a result, Ms. Mak Sze Man has
resigned as a joint company secretary of the Company with effect from August
27,2021. Ms. Chen will continue to serve as the sole company secretary of the
Company after the resignation of Ms. Mak.

Changes in Information of Authorized Representative

Pursuant to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules and following Ms. Mak Sze Man’s
resignation as a joint company secretary, she also ceased to be the authorized
representative of the Company. Ms. Chen Ying has been appointed as an
authorized representative of the Company with effect from August 27, 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the disclosure in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” as set out below, for the year ended December 31,
2021, the Company has not entered into (i) any agreement that will or may
result in the issuing Shares of the Company; or (ii) any agreement requiring our
Company to enter into any agreement specified in (i).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on August 25, 2015 to
enable the Company to grant share options to Qualified Participant (as
defined below) as incentive for their commitment towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Shareholders, and
to maintain or attract business relationship with the Qualified Participant
whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.
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Qualified Participant

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
for such number of Shares as the Board may determine to:

(a)  any executive Director, or employee (whether full time or part time) of
the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(c)  any customer, business or joint venture partner, advisor, consultant,
contractor, supplier, agent or service provider of the Company, any
subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any subsidiary holds
any equity interest who is an individual; or

(d)  any full-time employee of any customer, business or joint venture
partner, advisor, consultant, contractor, supplier, agent, customer or
service provider of the Company or any subsidiary or an entity in which
the Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest,

who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or will
contribute to the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company
or any subsidiary holds any equity interest (collectively, the “Qualified
Participant”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed the number of Shares that shall
represent 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(such total number of Shares being 13,694,117,500 Shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate”, being 1,369,411,750 Shares), excluding for this purpose options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company. As at the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,369,411,750 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.
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Maximum entitlement of each Qualified Participant

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting in the manner prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any grantee if the
acceptance of those options would result in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his options (including both
exercised and outstanding options) during any 12 month period exceeding 1%
of the total Shares then in issue.

Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme must be approved by all the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is also a grantee of the options).

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting if the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and proposed to be granted to him (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) in the 12 month period up to and including the proposed date of
grant:

() would represent in aggregate more than 0.1% of the Shares then in
issue; and

(i) would have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares
at the date of each grant, in excess of HKD5,000,000 (or such other
amount as shall be permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time).

The grant of options shall be subject to approval by Shareholders in the
General Meeting.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Qualified Participant by
written offer letter in such form as the Board may from time to time determine,
requiring the Qualified Participant to undertake to hold the option on the
terms on which it is to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme. The offer shall remain open for such period (not
exceeding 30 days, inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board may
determine and notify to the Qualified Participant. There is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can be exercised unless the Board
otherwise determined and stated in the offer letter of the grant of options.

An option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1 by
way of consideration for the grant of the option shall have been received by
the Company on or before the last day for acceptance as set out in the offer
letter. The remittance is not in any circumstances refundable. Once accepted,
the option is considered to be granted as from the date on which it was
offered to the relevant Qualified Participant. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from the
offer date.

Subscription Price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board but in any
event shall be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of offer;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption.

Since the listing of the Company and up to the date of this report, no share
option had been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

BINIBRRIERY
RUBRENENAREFTETRHETENKRIAU
SHENRARSERSEEFH > ERGEK
SHEEEERREHNERTABRE > 12E
IRESTBIRVIRCAVR - BNANEFEHEEE
RBNEER2EENZARE (BENRNEE
ZERESTBIE30H) MBI RN - (RIFEFE
STEELER HERENEQGRGDIE &
AERERERTTER T EREREHIR -

AR EAR A PREREMEILE B R Z A > AR
BRI AR A EARZNEERMBERENX
FRIZ » BRI AR BWRAB 1B TTER -
AR THRRENHE  IBREERRGEAEE
BMEBEN - EEAERT » ARAERIEST T
RIS - BRRE—GEM > BRRARAERSER
S2EFRLEBNOBRES - BRERFITERY
HERHESFET2RNBERE @ EERENEY
HERfEST L0 FBTISITRE o

ORRME
REERHEFTET  EERUARFERT
J=FPHNERSE !

()  RONEXNBRBAEERERATIH
B ;

iy DERBLOQHIAEEZSEH > ROPEIR
Fre BHRERMIINFHERHE ; &

(i) BRIpmEE -

FERG ST 8IRVHAMR

BRIERAABNREAE LHHEFTITRER

1E > DEIFERHE ST B B E4h B BRES B W R A

105 o

BARE EHMLEREMRE AN BERERR
FEST B HIE IR ARAE -

ENEREBRBRAR | F£iR 2021 39

V &



Report of the Directors
EFEWRS

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On December 2, 2021, the Board approved the adoption of the Share Award
Scheme. The Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme or an
arrangement involving the grant of options to participants over new Shares or
other new securities of the Company which is analogous to a share option
scheme for the purpose of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is not required
to comply with the rules thereunder. No approval from shareholders of the
Company is required for the adoption of the Scheme.

Purpose and Objectives

The purposes and objectives of the Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain Eligible Participants and to provide them with
incentives in order to encourage and retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board pursuant
to Scheme Rules, the Scheme shall be valid and effective from December 2,
2021 to the date the last of the Awarded Shares granted during the Scheme
Period has been vested and transferred to the relevant Grantee or has lapsed
in accordance with the Scheme Rules, provided that no Award shall be made
on or after the Scheme Period.

Scheme Limit

The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded Shares which will
result in the number of Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme
exceeding 5% of the issued shares of the Company as at December 2, 2021.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a Grantee under
the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company as at
December 2, 2021.

Share Purchase Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme

On December 2, 2021, the Board also resolved to provide from time to time
but in any event a total sum of not exceeding HKS1 billion for the trustee,
namely CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited, to purchase existing Shares at
appropriate time and hold such Shares for future award of Shares under the
Scheme.

40 Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

R {5 ZEh =2

TR —E+"ATH EEGHERAREY

ST o 3% 5B T8 PUB AR 5 BT R )

SRERTAADHRG REA EH ORI

MZHE > EPIRRIE T EMS > &t BELR

%%%aa BERBEETHERIRR WAt
BAGHIAABRENHN ©

BHKRBR

ZEEIMENRERS (| SEETER2RE
BEREL > WEREFRR MR - DURSE R B ER
L (REFAERNFEEERERE  k()RslE
BOAS  RETERNE—DERE -

HAPR

FREFERES BIARARENEAIRATAZ LS -

BN ERA S —F+ A -HZE:TE
HIERFIRE —HERRN ERE I HEGE
RIARATRBFBRALNER » BRSES
BRI 2 R AR

stEIPRER

ESETSE—SIRTHEBRD  BEREFIR
BREETFHIRNEEBE"Z " —F+_8
“HAREBETRMBISY
REZFERTERANRSRNHHUETFEL

KRABRZE—F+AHEETRHN
1% °

iR (7 SZ B 51 8 BB B A 19
R_E-_—F+"A°H > EFFRENE (B
EEMAMBERTAZEA BHEEXEETLTHERR
8) e BN BA 10 EBTNES) » UEEE
EREBERARMN LA ZFRM UER KR
BT BIBERAR D



Report of the Directors
EFEWRS

On January 26, 2022, the Trustee purchased an aggregate of 101,419,000
Shares, representing approximately 0.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company from a third party independent of the Company with a total
consideration of approximately HK$499,995,670 and an average consideration
of approximately HKS$4.93 per Share for the purpose of the Scheme. The
Trustee shall hold such Shares for the benefit of the Eligible Participants for
the purpose of the Scheme.

Since the adoption of the Share Award Scheme up to the date of this annual
report, the trustee of the Share Award Scheme purchased an aggregate of
145,614,000 Shares with a total consideration of approximately
HKS$705,488,909.67 for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

For more details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to the
announcements of our Company dated December 2, 2021 and January 26,
2022.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Divine Foods, Divine Foods-1,
Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company dated August 25, 2015 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out
in section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertaking” under the Prospectus. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed and the Controlling Shareholders had
confirmed their compliance with all the undertakings provided under the
Deed of Non-Competition as of March 28, 2022. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the compliance of the Controlling
Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition and there are no matters
required to be deliberated by them in relation to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition and considered that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Since the adoption of the Share Award Scheme up to the date of this annual
report, the trustee of the Share Award Scheme purchased an aggregate of
145,614,000 Shares with a total consideration of approximately
HKS$705,488,909.67 for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.
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MINIMUM PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as approved by the Stock
Exchange during the year ended December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands (place of incorporation of the Company) or under the Articles of
Association which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year, nor was there any plan
authorized by the Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets during the year ended December 31, 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board considered that during the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code, save and except for code provision C.2.1, details of which
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) by bands for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out
below:
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended

December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market trends.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was
5.8% by value of the Group’s total goods sales during the year ended
December 31, 2021, with the largest customer accounting for 2.2%. The five
largest suppliers of the Group comprised 11.2% by value of the Group’s total
purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounting for 3.0%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
December 31, 2021 was the Company or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment, we strive to minimise our environmental
impact by saving electricity and to build our corporation in a sustainable way.
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We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response and control
procedures as counter-measures for unexpected environmental pollution
accidents to minimise our impact on the environment and the adverse effect
on our business. We incurred RMB19.49 million (2020: RMB14.14 million) in
environmental compliance costs for the year ended December 31, 2021.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong in all material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship with our distributors

Consistent with market practice in our industry, the customers of the Group
are primarily distributors. This network penetrates a wide range of points-of-
sale, enabling us to sell products at all levels of the market, from provinces to
counties, villages and towns throughout China. As at December 31, 2021, we
had more than 6,039 distributors covering all provinces, cities and most of the
county-level divisions in China, and had over 13,430 dedicated sales personnel
to maintain and support approximately two million points-of-sale.

1. Standard for selecting distributors

We select our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications, marketing capabilities, reputation, breadth
and quality of sales network, number of personnel, and logistics and
transport capabilities.

2.  Comprehensive support

In order to enhance our relationship with distributors and to provide
adequate support to the distributors in meeting sales targets, the Group
provides comprehensive support to its distributors. The Group develops
and executes strategic and tactical sales plans with the distributors,
provides support and implements incentive measures to promote sales.

Further, our sales team provides comprehensive support coverage in
various counties and cities. They contact and cooperate with local
distributors closely to enhance and maintain the relationship with the
distributors. A sustainable relationship with our distributors also helped
to expand the network of points-of-sales in China and the number of
products being sold in different outlets.
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3. Inventory management

We closely monitor the distributors’ inventory policies and movement
and ensure their policies and practices are in compliance with the
agreed requirements. The requirements include (a) the maintenance of
an adequate inventory level that equals to the estimated monthly sales
volume; (b) first-in-first-out policy; (c) evaluation of inventory based on
its aging and expiration; (d) age of inventory shall be kept within one
third of the shelf life; (e) if the age of inventory exceeds one third of the
shelf life, sales personnel shall cooperate with the distributors to carry
out sales plan to promote the sales of the specific products; and (f) if
age of inventory exceeds half of the shelf life, it must be reported to the
headquarters and the sales personnel shall cooperate with distributors
to undergo promotions in specialty channels to promote sales of the
specific products. We also conduct periodic stock taking and our sales
representative, sales manager and region manager undertake specific
responsibilities in respect of stock taking with the distributors.

Maintaining effective management of the sales team and distribution
network is crucial to sustainable development of the Company. We
established systems to enhance the management of personnel on the
basis of relationship development, and placed the development of
effective management as the core policy of the Company. With the
combined effect of systematic management and personalized
management, we have improved the cohesion and the capability of the
Company through systematic division of labor and effective
cooperation.

Relationship with our suppliers

We generally centralise the procurement of packaging materials and the raw
materials used in the production of our food and beverage products to take
advantage of economies of scale and to increase our bargaining power with
suppliers. We believe that our centralized procurement system enables us to
obtain more competitive prices and avoid regional or other price variation.
Our raw materials are generally available from a number of domestic
suppliers, and we normally have various source of supply for each type of raw
materials to reduce our dependency on a single supplier. Our suppliers grant
us payment terms that vary depending on a number of factors including our
relationship with the suppliers and the size of the transactions.
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We uphold the principle of equality and cooperation for mutual benefit and
maintain a sustainable and long-term relationship with various suppliers. To
ensure the quality of the procurement, we typically work with large reputable
domestic suppliers to secure the key raw materials used in our production
process, based on criteria like product quality, reputation, scale of production,
price and ability to meet our delivery schedule. Further, we established and
maintained a mechanism and database of suppliers to perform a detailed
evaluation and audit on the suppliers, which takes into account of
comprehensive indicators like food safety, quality control, financial strength,
technology research and development ability, environmental protection and
reputation in the industry. These indicators reflect the criteria we look for in
our suppliers under the long term development goal of the Company. We also
require the suppliers to comply with the commercial code of conduct of the
Group.

Relationship with our employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the Group, the
objective of the Group’s human resources management is to reward and
recognise outstanding employees by providing competitive remuneration
packages and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and progression
within the Group by providing adequate training and opportunities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the conclusion of the
AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Shihui
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 28, 2022
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFMEHREERERDE

DIRECTORS
Xu Shihui (EFitE)

Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer

Mr. Xu Shihui (5F1#E), aged 64, is the founder of the Group, Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xu has been the chairman and
the president of Fujian Dali since its establishment in 1992 and has served as
the chairman of all subsidiaries of the Group since their establishment. Under
Mr. Xu’s leadership, the Group’s business has grown from a local food
manufacturing company in Fujian province to a nationwide food and non-
alcoholic beverage company in China with a diversified multi-brand product
portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. Mr. Xu has accumulated
34 years of experience in food manufacturing industry. Mr. Xu has been a
representative of the eleventh and twelfth National People’s Congress of the
People’s Republic of China (FREE A RHMEI 2B A RAFKAE) in 2008 and
2013. Mr. Xu was also the News Figure of China Food Industry Elite Forum of
the 30th Anniversary of the Reform and Opening Up (P{ & RIR0BETHE
ITEERE R IE R M) in September 2009. Mr. Xu was appointed as a
senior consultant of the third session of the board of Quanzhou Food Industry
Association (RINTIEmITER ) by the association in January 2016. During
2017, Mr. Xu was also recognized as a Hui’an Philanthropist for the year 2015-
2016 (ZE—HEFEE"_E—RNEEBLREER) and awarded a Special
Outstanding Contribution Charity Award for the year 2015-2016 (—ZE—H
ETERNEERSFERREHEEIE). Mr. Xu is the father of Ms. Xu
Yangyang, the brother of Ms. Xu Biying and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chen
Baoguo. Mr. Xu is a director of Dali Foods and Divine Foods-1, the controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Zhuang Weiqiang (F£{&3%)
Executive vice president and executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Weiqiang (¥{£38), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on June 14, 2015. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in 1998
and has more than 20 years of experience in management with the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has been the executive vice president of the Group in charge of overall
marketing and distribution of products of the Group since 2006. Prior to this,
Mr. Zhuang had been the general manager of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (&
ENBMBBRAE]) from 2004 to 2006 and the general manager of Chengdu
Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (Y ESEFM B RARAE]) (“Chengdu Dali”) from 2000 to
2004. He had been a financial specialist of Chengdu Dali from 1998 to 2000. Mr.
Zhuang graduated from the continuing education course of Sichuan
Agricultural Management Cadre Institute (P0) || 22 E P IR with a
certificate in business administration in January 2007. Mr. Zhuang obtained a
professional title as senior economist in Jilin province in January 2010.
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Xu Yangyang (3¥[5[53)
Vice president and executive Director

Ms. Xu Yangyang (5FB5R5), aged 38, is the vice president and executive
Director of the Company in charge of making corporate and operational
decisions and managing the day-to-day operation of the Group. Ms. Xu was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. She is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. She joined the Group in 2008 and
has worked as a director and the vice president of Fujian Dali from 2009 to
date and is also the supervisor of various subsidiaries of the Group. With more
than 10 years of experience in the Group, Ms. Xu has held various positions in
Fujian Dali from July 2008 to date, including the chairman of the labour union,
workshop director and deputy factory manager. Outside the Group, Ms. Xu
Yangyang also holds various important positions, including serving as: (i) the
vice president of Fujian Association of Health Care Products and Cosmetics (&
BARRMEIRE) since September 2012; (ii) the representative of the twelfth
and thirteenth People’s Congress of Fujian Province (B 2EE+_RE&%H
+=/&E AKRE) since March 2013; (iii) the honorary president of the third
session of Quan Zhou Food Industry Association (RN B @RITER D) since
January 2016; (iv) vice president of the fourteenth Quanzhou Federation of
Industry and Commerce (B+PUERMNT IEEBMSERIERE) since
January 2017; (v) standing committee member of the eleventh Fujian
Provincial Federation of Industry and Commerce ({B2 & TR ST H
+—E®BZEZEE8) since August 2017; (vi) standing vice president of the sixth
session of the Standing Committee of Youth Chamber of Commerce of the
Youth Entrepreneurs Association of Quanzhou (RMH B ELERIFES

) since July 2018; and (vii) committee member of the twelfth Fujian Youth
Federation Committee (B + _EREBSEMEETEEITEE) since
November 2018. Ms. Xu Yangyang was awarded the honorary title of the 16th
Fujian Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur (B +/NEREBEH L EREE
B5) in 2016, the Bearer of Red Flag March 8 (2E = \ALJE FEEEFE5E) in
2017, and elected as the Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Quanzhou
(RINTFFAEHBELESR) in 2018. Ms. Xu Yangyang graduated from
Xiamen University (BPFJAZ) with a bachelor’s degree in international
economy and trade in 2005. Ms. Xu is the daughter of Mr. Xu Shihui, the niece
of Ms. Xu Biying and the nephew of Mr. Chen Baoguo. Ms. Xu is a director of
Dali Foods and Divine Foods-3, the controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Huang Jiaying (E{E¥)
Executive Director

Ms. Huang Jiaying (Ef£%), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on February 8, 2021. Ms. Huang joined the Group as
investor relations director in September 2020. Ms. Huang has extensive
experience in the area of investment banking and investor relations. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Huang worked as the Vice President of investor relations
at Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 2018 to 2020. Before that,
she worked at investment banks, securities firm and accounting firm from
2001 to 2018, including serving as a director at Bank of China International
Limited; as a vice president at Barclays Capital Asia Limited and Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited; as a research analyst at Lehman Brothers
Asia Limited; as a manager at BNP Paribas Peregrine Limited; as an analyst at
Platinum Holdings Limited Shanghai Representative Office; and as an auditor
at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Shanghai) (B 2h & st EREF5FT(L8)),
specializing in the research of China’s consumer sector. Ms. Huang obtained
her bachelor’s degree in English for Finance and Trade from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the People’s Republic of China in July 2001.

Xu Biying ($FE2)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Xu Biying (5FE3), aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on June 14, 2015. With 33 years of experience in the food
manufacturing industry, Ms. Xu Biying has been the vice president of the
Group, participating in the formulation of the corporate and business plans of
the Group, since the establishment of the Group in 1992 until 2010, and has
rich experience in the food industry and corporate management. Ms. Xu Biying
has over 20 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Xu received the
Certificate for Qualified Accountant (& sHET{EREEE:EE) from Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of Fujian Province (f882& ANE R
M ZRIEEE) (previously known as the Personnel Department of Fujian
Province ({872 A ZEE8)) in December 1998. Ms. Xu Biying is the sister of Mr.
Xu Shihui, the aunt of Ms. Xu Yangyang. She is also the sister-in-law of Ms. Chen
Liling and the cousin-in-law of Mr. Chen Baoguo.
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EENEREIEEBE
Hu Xiaoling (&AB%3%)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Hu Xiaoling (¥BE¥S), aged 52, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. She was appointed as a Director on May 4, 2015. She is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Ms. Hu is responsible for
providing advice on investment activities of the Group. Ms. Hu joined CDH
Investments in 2002 and is currently a managing director of CDH Investments
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, which is a Hong Kong company
incorporated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on April 22, 2003.
Ms. Hu is also currently a director and general manager of CDH Investments
Management (Xiamen) Limited (SAIBIGEEIR(EFY)BEAR]), a manager of
CDH Investments (Tianjin) Limited ({REERE (KE)EPRAT]) and a director
and manager of CDH Hetai Investments Management (Xiamen) Limited (5AH&
MRREEBIZ(EPI)BRAT). Ms. Hu is currently a director of Belle
International Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the Stock Exchange
since July 28, 2017, stock code: 1880), a non-executive director of Baroque
Japan Limited (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, stock code:
35480) and Topsports International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 6110) and director of Hangzhou Beika Industrial
Co., Ltd.. Ms. Hu had also been a director of Anhui Yingliu Electronmechanical
Co., Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
603308) from March 2011 to April 2017; a director of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000333) from
August 2012 to July 2017; and a director of Beijing Motie Book Corporation
Company from July 2010 to December 2017. Prior to joining CDH Investments
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Ms. Hu had worked at the direct
investment department of China International Capital Corporation Limited
and Arthur Andersen. Ms. Hu graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University (3631
ZZIEBAER) previously known as Northern Jiaotong University (157532 1@K
), with a master’s degree in Economics and Accounting and a bachelor’s
degree in Economics. Ms. Hu has also been a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Mr. Ng Kong Hing (5278 5)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (527#8H), aged 68, joined the Group as an independent
non-executive director on March 28, 2022. Mr. Ng has over 49 years’ experience
in the area of accounting, taxation, company secretarial, financial
management, strategic planning and due diligence service. Since 2011, Mr. Ng
has been a director of K. H. Ng & Partners Limited (2782 ARAT). H
was the owner and director of K. H. Ng & Company (R BB & 5+ EF5F) and K.
SBERERI AR/ E) respectively for accounting,
financial management and taxation from 1977 to 2011. Prior to that, he
worked on auditing at . S. Li & Co. (ZEf@1H & 5HEMZE75FN) from 1973 to 1976.
He has also been a director of Lucky Industrial Group Limited (F£iE T £ E
BIRAE]) for manufacturing of toys and die-cast products since 2008.

H. Ng & Company Limited (

Liu Xiaobin (21/)\iK)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Xiaobin (2I/)ME), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Liu has been engaged in teaching Chinese in Xiamen University (BFIAZ)
since September 1989. He was an assistant professor of Chinese language and
literature from August 2007 to July 2010, and currently holds the position of a
lecturer at the Overseas Education College of Xiamen University. Mr. Liu
graduated from Xiamen University in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in Arts
(Chinese Literature) and Northwest University in China in June 1989 with a
master’s degree in Arts (Classic Chinese Literature).
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Lin Zhijun (HEE)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun (}3EE), aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr.
Lin is currently an independent non-executive director of Sinotruk (Hong
Kong) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3808),
China Everbright Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 0165) and BOCOM International Holdings Company Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3329). Dr. Lin had been an
independent non-executive director of Springland International Holdings
Limited (a company delisted on the Stock Exchange since March 2, 2020, stock
code: 1700) from February 2008 to March 2020, and had been an independent
non-executive director of CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1091) from October 2016 to July 2021. Dr.
Lin is an Associate Vice President of the Macau University of Science and
Technology, and served as the Dean of the Business School until August 2020.
From August 1998 to January 2015, he was a Professor and Head of the
Department of Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University. Prior to
these positions, Dr. Lin also taught at The University of Hong Kong from August
1996 to June 1998, Lethbridge University in Canada from September 1990 to
August 1998 and Xiamen University (EF9KZ2) from September 1982 to
August 1990. Dr. Lin worked at the Toronto office of an international
accounting firm from December 1982 to November 1983.

Dr. Lin holds a master’s degree in Science in Accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada in October 1991 and a Doctorate’s degree in
Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen University in December 1985. Dr. Lin is
also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
August 1995, the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
1995, the Washington Institute of Certified Management Accountants since
May 1995 and the Australian Institute of Certified Management Accountants
since 2003. He is a member of various educational accounting associations
including the American Accounting Association.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chen Baoguo (FFEE)

Vice president in charge of production

Mr. Chen Baoguo (BREEEI), aged 52 is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Chen is responsible for overseeing and managing overall production activities
and quality control of the Group. With over 29 years of experience in the
Group, Mr. Chen has served in Fujian Dali as the head of production
technology development department from 1992 to 2010. He is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Xu Shihui, uncle of Ms. Xu Yangyang and the brother of the sister-in-
law of Ms. Xu Biying.

Mr. Chen graduated from the Professional Online Education Program in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) of Jiangnan University GCLEAZ) in 2011
and further obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering with a major in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) from Jiangnan University (IR AZ) in
January 2017. Mr. Chen was awarded the professional qualification of Grade 1
Senior Technician by the Ministry of Labour and Social Security of the PRC (Ff
#FE A\ RHEME BT E1RFEER) in December 2008. Mr. Chen was awarded
the Certificate of Professional Technology Training by the Technology Training
Center of the China Food Industry Association (PEI & & L& R AriEsl
F) in December 2007, and was appointed as a member of the Expert
Committee of the China National Food Industry Association (FEIE fa L7
BHEREEEZEE) during the same period. He was awarded the certified
qualification of senior baker by the Bakery Food and Confectionary Expert
Committee of the Society of Food Science of Shanghai ((E/8HBREE) in
April 2004.

Wu Xinchuan (32R%)11)
Chief financial officer

Mr. Wu Xinchuan ($fif)1]), aged 41, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Wu is responsible for overseeing
and managing overall finance of the Group. With over 20 years of experience
within the Group, Mr. Wu had held various positions at the Group from 1999 to
2008, including head of the finance department of the Group, financial director
of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd., accountant of Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd., and
financial specialist of Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu graduated from the
Accounting Department of the School of Modern Distance Education (R{i=
T2 B £05%) of Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (365 ZE
AR AER) with a diploma in Accounting in 2015.

=BREERE
PREE
BB (BELE)

BRERLE 525 AREERIEE - RiLEE
SERNEENEEREREE TS REEES o
AL AERBERR 2FNEE  B—NLT
FEZE-ZF-HIETREENEERTRE
ERER R o M AFFHIBALERIZESS (brother-in-law) ~
FFRRfE L MBS (uncle) REFEHEZ THIHEIEM
fass o

BRAEER —Z——FRENIEARE  BEXTE®
MR TIE (IEE) SXEEHERE - T Eﬁ'ﬁ?‘
—tFE—AEE T IR ARSI EE]
EERBZ2ETIE (EESME) o Iﬁ%i\é:'gg
NE+ZHAEHEANRHMES M GRES
MEE—RERITMNEEER - AEENRZZZT
tE+ZAESPEE ST ERSREMEIIT 08
BEHERMIEIIEE ﬂﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁ%&"éﬁﬁ_ﬂﬂﬂ?
mMIEREERZTERELZE R IZEZWNFMN
B BAELELSTEREeMIEEREERE

XL EREENSRILIEMERESE o

E=Y

B EE

BRRNEE > 1 AREEMFEE B2
SENFRE—BEBRERERGU  RREEaEERN

BEAERNERENE SASEELAERESR
WFENEE > R—NANANEEZZE N\FEBER
EEETZERE  OEAEENBEITIE S E
MENERBERABDUEETE - RINEFNEBERE
RABIgstE s Mt EFERERABDHUHE
B BEANRTZE—AFREERIEEMEMAK

BREREREESHEHBHE > TRETHX
& o

ENERERARRE | £ 2021 53



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
SEEREREEEGBE

Huang zhiqing (E&3)
Chief procurement officer

Mr. Huang Zhiqing (E&35), aged 55, is the chief procurement officer of the
Group and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Huang is responsible for
supervising and managing the overall purchasing and supply of the Group.
With over 28 years of experience within the Group, Mr. Huang had served as
the head of the procurement department in the Group from 2006 to 2008, as a
purchasing manager in Fujian Dali from 1998 to 2006 and as a purchasing
specialist in Fujian Dali from 1993 to 1998. Mr. Huang was awarded the
professional title of senior economist by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jilin province in 2012. Mr. Huang was elected as a
representative of the sixteenth People’s Congress of Quanzhou Municipality
(B+H/NERIMNHAKRNTE) and recognized as one of the Top 10 Professional
Managers in 2016 for Food Industry in Quanzhou (RN B RITE T —X
FEHEBZELIEA) in2017.

Le Zhengiao (44RZR)
Head of product research and development department

Mr. Le Zhengiao (#43RER), aged 44, senior engineer, is the head of product
research and development department of the Group and has held the current
post since 2007. Mr. Le is responsible for research and development of new
products and supervising the quality control of the products of the Group.
Mr. Le has over 18 years of experience within the Group.

Mr. Le graduated in 2001 from Shaanxi University of Science and Technology
(BRAAFRIE KZ), previously known as Northwest Institute of Light Industry (78
168X T2 E8857), with a bachelor’s degree in Biochemical Engineering, with a
minor in Computer Application and Maintenance. Mr. Le completed the food
safety capacity building program organized by the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security (AJ7ERFILEREESL) and China Food
Industry Association in 2014. Mr. Le was awarded the professional qualification
of Engineer of Biochemistry by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Fujian Province in 2009. Mr. Le was awarded the Certificate of
Professional Qualification in Quality Specialization (B &2 i1t A BRI
BIEFEE) by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (12 A RALFIE A E3F)
and the AQSIQ in 2005. Mr. Le was engaged by the Committee of
Standardization Administration of the PRC (PEIEISKIZELBIEHE D) as
a member for the National Committee of Snack Food Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC490) (ZEAHE B iZ 2 EHMTER S ) in 2009 and
as a member for the National Committee of Baked Product Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC488) (2 EIEIE M MIREEIERITEZ R E) in 2004. Mr.
Le was awarded the honorary title of National Advanced Worker for Quality
Works (2BIE 2 T{ESE T E&) by the China Quality Inspection
Association (FEIE 288 1%E) in 2014.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
SEEREREEEGBE

Chen Ying (Fk3E)
Company secretary

Ms. Chen Ying (B&5H), aged 36, joined the Group in 2016. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Chen was a lawyer at Shanghai Llinks Law Offices from 2011 to
2016, specializing in capital market with extensive professional experience in
securities issuance, merger and acquisition, corporate assets reorganization,
equity investing and financing and post-listing legal and compliance matters.
Ms. Chen graduated from Xiamen University with a master’s degree in law in
2011 and graduated from Southwest University of Political Science and Law
with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2008, as well as a bachelor’s degree (dual
degree) in English literature from Sichuan International Studies University in
the same year. Ms. Chen obtained her practicing certificate in Law in the PRC
issued by China Ministry of Justice. Ms. Chen is also a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Chen Ying (BR5H), was appointed as a joint company secretary on March 18,
2018 and has served as the sole company secretary since August 27, 2021.
Please refer to “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management — Senior
Management” for details of her biography.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and enhance corporate value,
formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange and the Company has
adopted the CG code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended December 31, 2021
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, detail of which is explained in the
relevant paragraph in this report.

The Board will periodically review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the requirements of
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the transactions of
securities of the Company by the directors and the relevant employees who,
because of their office or employment in the Group, are likely to possess inside
information of the Company, the Securities Dealing Code, on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the Securities
Dealing Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2021.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is
spending sufficient time in performing them.

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Ms. Huang Jiaying (appointed on February 8, 2021)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (resigned on March 28, 2022)
Mr. Liu Xiaobin

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Mr. Ng Kong Hing (appointed on March 28, 2022)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 47 to 55 of this
annual report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed under
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 47 to 55 of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of any
legal action against its directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by Mr. Xu
Shihui who is the founder of the Company and has extensive experience in the
industry. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same individual would enable the Company to achieve
higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating business
strategies and executing business plans. The Board believes that the balance
of power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
Board, comprising the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing not less than one-third of
the Board) with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company are appointed for a specific term of one year, and the term is
renewable for one year automatically upon approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily
operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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TEERRS

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the following Directors participated
in the following trainings:

Directors Type of Training "ot

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shihui A,B

Mr. Zhuang Weigiang AB

Ms. Xu Yangyang AB

Ms. Huang Jiaying AB

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Biying AB

Ms. Hu Xiaoling AB

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan AB

Mr. Liu Xiaobin AB

Dr. Lin Zhijun A,B

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and
workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of the
Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) and
are available to Shareholders upon request. The board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice and
other assistance under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting system, internal control and risk
management systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to discuss the audit
process and accounting issues with the external auditors and to review,
among other things, (i) the annual financial results for the year ended
December 31, 2020 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30,
2021 and the relevant reports prepared by the external auditors relating to
2021 annual audit and interim review plans and major findings in the course
of audit/review, (i) significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, (iii) the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, (iv) appointment of
external auditors and their relevant scope of work, as well as (v) continuing
connected transactions.

During the year, the Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the management of the Company to discuss the audit
procedures and accounting issues.
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TEERRS

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out
under “Report of the Directors — Senior Management’s Emoluments” on page
42 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning for directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to strengthen the performance of the Board,
promote effective decision-making and better corporate governance and
monitoring. The Company considered that diversity of board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, experience and cultural and educational background,
geographical, industry and professional experience, ethnicity, gender, age,
knowledge and length of service.

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination Committee has
recommended and the Board has adopted the following measurable
objectives:

(@)  at least one-third of the Board members shall be independent non-
executive Directors; and

(b)  at least one of the independent non-executive Directors shall have
obtained accounting or appropriate professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy and review the progress of its measurable objectives from time
to time.
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TEERRS

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the
Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following;

. Candidate’s age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
qualifications, academic qualifications, background and other personal
qualities

Impact on the composition of the board and the diversity of its
members

Commitment by the candidate to devote sufficient time and effectively
perform his or her duties

The number and nature of the positions of candidates in public
companies or organizations or other administrative appointments or
otherimportant work commitments

Potential/actual conflict of interests with the Company upon
appointment of candidates

. Candidate’s independence

Length of service of the proposed re-election of independent non-
executive director who has been serving to the Company

Other factors that the Nominating Committee considers to be relevant
on a case-by-case basis

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended December 31, 2021, Ms. Huang Jiaying was
appointed as executive Director of the Company on February 8, 2021.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

KRB TRMEFRBEER > HHIIARES K
HEFABERNHERGREFUAREEGE
ESEINEE > SERFREFEEEEART
ERCLERESFEER G BEAMATRIOREE
B~ NEEHRM D EEISTE -

ERRABRETFTERBEEANGEL R
EZeNEREER AR  8EETRIUTE
15 :

RBEARYEFSS ~ Bk~ A&~ 88 BER
HEEK  BF - REEMEARE
HEFTHEMKRESTENRE

RBE A A TE 8 MBS 8 B8 28t B 17 LB
BRI

REAR AR A B RAABNEMITHREE
FEMBE T FRENHEREE
REANREEMS | ERARTNELE B
EAIFEES

ARG

MEREEBIIFNTESFMNS » KEE
EZBRFSEEA

REZEERERBERDHERFRHEM
ENES

BEREBBERNEINEREAGHERZIHRE
EREREENEF HE_Z_—E+_8
—t+—HIEE SEFEELINR S —F_4
NBEZETARABNNTES o

REZEGHENBERBRIEFREIBE XU
FEARBRRY ©

ENEREBRBRAR | F£iR 2021 63



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2020 Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committees
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended
December 31,2021 is set out in the table below:

FR > RREEEEAR—REH > LUBRSNES
GRS R RAE R U R B L IFRITE RS
T BEBR _E_EFRFBFAG LRE
MREEENER - REZEGVHEFEST
ERHN BT EHESUAES -

EEEaERTEETRRTANFXE D3RR

FR EFETERANETARNEEERBRNS
R EEREREBENEIRSESEERE
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, EERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting
LT EXg BEEY FHES5T REZEY RRAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Shihui St E 44 NARER  NATER 11 11
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEmist 4/4 N/A B N/A i N/A i 11
Ms. Xu Yangyang HFeEe L 4/4 N/A i@ B 1/1 N/A FiE A 1/1
Ms. Huang Jiaying HESLT 34 NATRER N/A B N/A B 71
Non-executive Directors FEHRITEE
Ms. Xu Biying FEBELT 44 N/ATREH N/A i N/A i 11
Ms. Hu Xiaoling A L+ 4/4 2/2 N/A R iE A N/A R 1/1
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 28115 4/4 22 N/A iR 11 1/1
Mr. Liu Xiaobin 2/ ETE 44 N/ATRER 1/1 11 1
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEERL 4/4 2/2 Y1 NATER 11

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year.
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TEERRS

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 157 to 163.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out below:
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Service Category ARFEEER Fees Paid/Payable

eft BHER

RMB

AEHE

Audit Services BIZIRFE 4,500,000
Non-audit Services (including Tax compliance service, JEEIZARTS (B FRIRFS:58:0 ~ IR1E ~

Tax advisory, ESG reporting advisory and HEREARREEAR
Risk management reporting advisory) Bl SRR E5H) 660,000
Total &5t 5,160,000

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chen Ying (“Ms. Chen”) is qualified to act as the company secretary of the
Company under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. As a result, Ms. Mak Sze Man
(“Ms. Mak”), a senior manager of Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services
Limited, has resigned as a joint company secretary of the Company with effect
from August 27, 2021. Ms. Chen continues to serve as the sole company
secretary of the Company after the resignation of Ms. Mak. Ms. Chen is the
primary contact person of Ms. Mak at the Company during the tenure of her
service. Both of them have satisfied the training requirement for the year of
2021 under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of HKEX after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, any two or more shareholders or any
one shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director of the Company” which is posted on the
Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following;
Address:  Room 2601, 26th Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.dali-group.com as a
communication platform with shareholders of the Company and investors,
where the financial information and other relevant information of the
Company are available for public access.

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is also available on the
Company’s website and HKEX’s website.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibility for Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Board of Directors, as the supreme leading organ in risk management of
the Group, undertakes ultimate responsibility for construction and effective
operation of the overall risk management system, takes charge of the
establishment, improvement and efficient operation of the overall risk
management system and has the discretion to delegate senior management
and operational division of each department in the risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Group is prepared to take in achieving its
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board has an audit committee which is responsible for overseeing the
appropriateness of the risk management and internal supervision procedure
and the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group, as well as
providing a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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Characteristics of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Group’s internal control system fully adopts the requirements of the 2017
COSO ERM’s risk management framework and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ guidelines on risk management, attaches

importance to the underlying connection between enterprise risk

management, corporate strategy and performance evaluation, takes into

account the actual situation and business characteristics of the Group, and
refines the three levels of the risk map into the process level to form a risk-
oriented internal control evaluation system. The objective is to evaluate the

effectiveness and applicability of the internal control system and provide

reasonable assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s business activities,

reliability of financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations.
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Figure 1: Corporate Risk Management Framework
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Risk Management Organizational System RREIREASER

To ensure effective risk management and to form a long-term mechanism, the  A{REEGEIETEANERBI R ENILE) >
Group has established a three-line monitoring system for risk management. It EEEEZEAMEE-EBENETRERZ - vES
contains the following roles and responsibilities at different levels. Ty ZERRRBHANEEHEE -

Risk Management Organizational System

R ERERRER

The Board
of Directors
EEE

Senior
Management

BREEE

Internal
Audit
REBE

>
Legend: To be responsible for, To authorize, offer guidance, provide To remain consistent, maintain
5 to report to resources and supervision communication, coordination, and in

HEAE L 1S ANIE R RS mutual collaboration
RIF—E BB 8 R E

Figure 2: Risk Management Organizational System
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Line 1 is composed of various functional departments as well as the
subsidiaries of the Group. As a risk bearer, it undertakes the primary and direct
responsibilities for the risks in business activities. Its main functions include
establishing and maintaining various risk management mechanisms for
departments/subsidiaries, continuously collecting original risk information in
daily work, and assisting the Risk Management Taskforce to carry out risk
management work, including providing necessary data and samples,
determining significant risks associated with departments/subsidiaries and
identify significant risk countermeasures.

Line 2 is composed of the Risk Management Taskforce and responsible
persons of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group who are responsible
for the Group’s implementation of its risk monitoring and control work. The
Risk Management Taskforce is staffed by professionals from the Legal
Department, Human Resources Department and Financial Operation Center,
facilitating the improvement and execution of risk management and control
measures through the transfer and accumulation of professional knowledge
and skills as well as the coordination, integration and monitoring of risk
exposures and management in each business area. The primary duties of
responsible persons of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group are
coordinating and formulating the Group’s risk management and internal
control policies and systems as well as implementing major risk
countermeasures and pivotal internal control processes.

Line 3 is the Internal Audit Division, which is responsible for conducting
independent supervision and inspection of the risk management work carried
out by various business units and risk management lines, evaluating whether
the Group’s risk management mechanism is effectively implemented, urging
the relevant departments or subsidiaries to carry out rectification in response
to the areas identified during the audit process, continuously following up on
rectification progress, and reporting the results of various audits and
inspections to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

F-RREEBHAELMPINEFATE - HERE
RREEE > HERBEKEEFAENREERR
B2 EENET TEREARBRIEMEELRR
P/ FREABREENSIEME > THBEITEHR
FREWERERIGER  LHRZEIIFERERE
EBREET(IF  SERHOENEIRERE - 1#
E BRI, FARMEMNENER > LEES
KEREEHE

FIRBRAZIEE  EESTLOEEARFA
BEEAEN  aERPERERERRES KE
HITIF - B> RIZTRAEREFRE - AFH
MHEEROEEANTAR > BIEFENHER
BERVEBAMER > i « EANEIES XA
MERREREEER  EHRREZEERHN
THRE EEZXTLEEAEFRATEEAE
EEMERIEAEERER SRR N AR
B BB REEARRREY E R R P ap
BHBVEAT o

FoZHANER  AEEHNSEFAFINAREE
HENEREETFRRBRETELINEER
T EEEAREERFIESANEE  #HY
FSHBEPRYEIRRS  BE(RARAMPINFARE
TR FHEIRBENER  WEHRBBEZES
ERBBESAREER -

ENEREBRBRAR | F£iR 2021 71

V A5



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

Achievements of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has developed a mature risk management and internal control
system procedure that is in line with the management characteristics of the
Group, including collection of risk information, analysis of risk assessment, risk
countermeasures, continuous supervision of risks and optimization of risk
management.

Collection of
Risk Information

R

Analysis of Risk Assessment

BREEHES

Implementation of Risk Countermeasures

mpEERAES

Continuous Supervision of Risks

BRSREE

Optimization of Risk Management
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Paying attention to changes in the external regulatory environment

and competitive markets to keep abreast of industry dynamics
RSB BRI AR F IS BRTEHR

Collecting risk information through various channels such as

internal semistructured interviews and questionnaire surveys,

with reference to external outstanding enterprises’ risk management experience
BARNBHEBCHX B ERE HIRNEREERR
BIRERE L TEERERRENR

Reviewing risk management situation on a regular basis and assessing
the impact of risks in a comprehensive manner
ERERRERER fEesTh R

Analyzing the root causes of risks and their interrelationships to identify
significant potential risks
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Establishing a sound internal control environment and putting in place specific
positions of responsibility

BIUREHAIERIRE AR AREESrIE

Strengthening internal and external information sharing and developing reasonable
and efficient risk countermeasures
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Establishing a top-down monitoring and control process with bottom-up accountability
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Deepen the understanding of the threeline risk management system and strengthening
supervisory and management responsibilities
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Scientifically and systematically analyzing the intrinsic logic of risk relationships
B RFE DN ARATTEERF

Grasping key risks effectively

ARUBIE R KRR

Constantly improving the internal control system

FEENERER

Penetrating risk management awareness
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Figure 3: Risk Management and Internal Control Process
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During the year, the Group’s risk management effort has the following
constructive achievements:

1. For Collection of Risk Information, the Group effectively identified and
analyzed each risk point by considering both internal and external
factors, and continuously revised the risk map on the basis of the 2020
Risk Map, taking into account the actual business development of the
Group. A three-level risk “Operation Risk-Information Technology-Data
Protection” was added and the content of risks related to supply chain
management was updated and revised.

2. For Analysis of Risk Assessment, the Group’s Risk Management
Taskforce led the annual comprehensive risk assessment for the Group
and its subsidiaries. Through on-site visits and questionnaire surveys by
various functional departments, the Risk Management Taskforce
understood the potential risks in various business processes and the
measures taken to address them. In addition, the Risk Management
Taskforce led the staff of each department to rate the risks in the risk
database in terms of their likelihood of occurrence and degree of
impact, and selected the risks that the Group is facing or will face.

3. For Risk Countermeasures, the Group insisted on extending the risk
control point to the front line, and formed a regular response and
emergency response mechanism respectively. On a daily basis, the
Group relied on the Food Safety Centre’s comprehensive quality
management system and high-level quality management team to
prevent food safety-related risks at source. In addition, in order to deal
with unexpected risk events, the Risk Management Taskforce
established an emergency risk response system, opened up bottom-up
reporting channels, gave full play to front-line risk control
responsibilities, refined emergency risk countermeasures, created risk
responsible departments and specific positions, specified emergency
work arrangements to ensure that emergency response measures were
quickly implemented and effectively monitored.

4. For Continuous Supervision of Risks, the Group carried out in-depth
supervision of risks in a comprehensive, multi-faceted and wide-ranging
manner. We established a sound distributor management system,
which was continuously deepened through the mode of “daily docking
by supervisors and weekly inspection by city managers” to realize
regular supervision of risks; optimized the sampling method of product
quality and implemented “random buying of samples for sales and
unified testing by the Group” to further enhance the objectivity of
testing results and safeguard the daily supervision of food safety;
continued to assume the supervision responsibility of the joint working
group, and achieved real-time risk monitoring and rapid response by
collecting and monitoring external information on a daily basis.
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5. For Optimization of Risk Management, the Group steadily promoted the
informatization construction of a modern risk management system,
added multiple business process modules to the internal Office
Automation, converted offline paper approval into online electronic
approval, and incorporated some control nodes into the system,
scientifically standardized process operations, so as to save corporate
supervision costs, improve risk management and control efficiency, and
upgrade the internal control management system.

Major Risks and Management Measures in 2021

After the process of risk assessment, the Group has identified five major risks
and potential risks in the industry. By integrating them with the characteristics
of the value chains in the food industry, and gaining an understanding of the
potential impacts of the major risks on the Company’s core processes and the
logical relationship among them, the Group proactively pressed ahead with
the comprehensive rectification of risk, specifically formulated and effectively
implemented risk countermeasures, so as to fully support the healthy
operation and development of the Group.
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Figure 4: Major Risks - Business Procedure
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In respect of its risk exposures, the Group has designed and monitored the
implementation of the following countermeasures through collation of
business processes:

1. Market Competition Risks:

The food and beverage industry is characterized by varying fashion
trends and low barriers to entry, and consumers tend to enjoy and be
surprised by different consumer experiences, product categories, flavors
and services. The only way for the Group to continue to maintain its
leading position in the food and beverage industry amidst the changing
competitive market environment is to pay timely attention to the
diversified consumer demands, inject new growth momentum into its
established brands, balance the expansion of new channels with the
maintenance of traditional ones, strive to increase its market share, and
allocate resources appropriately in response to the overall changes in
the market environment, and continuously enhance the Group’s overall
product, brand and competitiveness.

Countermeasures:

1)  Multi-track layout gaining momentum and multi-brand
strategy in full bloom:

In 2021, the Group continued to develop the three major industry
segments: household consumption, ready-to-drink beverages
and snacks, with its multi-brand strategy in full swing. In the
household consumption segment, Doubendou launched a new
high-end product, the organic whole soy milk with “triple native
nutrients”, promoting the continuous innovation and
development of China’s plant protein industry; Meiluchen
launched 14 bulk products and 12 single-serving products,
covering toast, meal packs, cakes and other categories,
continuing to enrich its product matrix. In the ready-to-drink
beverage segment, Hi-Tiger launched a new 500ml packaging,
and Hegizheng is upgrading its sugar-free herbal tea and
launching healthy carbonated water to tap into the incremental
space of existing markets. In the snacks segment, Haochidian
launched the wafer biscuit “Veekin” with three popular flavors;
Landy Castle Cookies extended and upgraded its products,
launching small packages of delicate biscuits to meet the young
consumers’ pursuit of quality.
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2)

3)

Grasping the changing trend of consumer behavior and
meeting the national demand for healthy living:

The Group has accurately grasped the national demand for
organic food and the desire for a healthy life, and has been
expanding its organic industry footprint, giving full play to the
advantages of the industrial chain and continuing to develop the
plant protein series, and by adhering to the concept of “natural
and non-additive”, it has created plant nutritional values with
“high quality plant protein, 0 cholesterol, 0 additive (0 added
flavor, 0 added preservative)”. In 2021, the new high-end organic
whole soy milk was launched with “triple native nutrients” which
include native natural dietary fiber, native Gamma Aminobutyric
Acid and native plant protein, reshaping a new level of whole soy
native nutrition and pushing China’s soy milk industry and plant
protein industry into a new phase. In addition, Hegizheng is
upgrading its sugar-free herbal tea, which precisely fits the health
concept of reducing sugar and low sugar among young
customers, in line with the current trend of changing consumer
behavior.

Exploring new opportunities through multi-channel
development and enhancing product market
competitiveness:

The Group continued to attach importance to the differentiated
management of multiple channels, optimized the structure of its
sales team, reshaped the channel value chain and transformed
the distribution channels. At the same time, it kept up with market
trends, increased investment in e-commerce channels and
managed new e-commerce platforms such as Douyin and
Kuaishou. Doubendou used diversified and innovative marketing
methods to continuously strengthen brand education and
efficiently achieve user conversion. Doubendou Plant Yogurt
became a partner of Hunan TV's “The Treasure” show and joined
the fifth season of “Viva La Romance” to precisely expand the
coverage of target groups in the household consumption
segment; launched a brand pavilion in Tmall Supermarket, co-
branded with KANS’s facial mask, and promoted activities
through Weibo topics, Key Opinion Leader short videos on
Douyin, Xiaohongshu seeding and B-station information flow to
achieve sales conversion. Hi-tiger became a special partner of the
reality show “On the Road”, conveying the brand values of
positivity and optimism, exploration and tolerance, and
strengthening differentiated brand positioning.
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2. Food Safety Risks:

We cannot live without food; hence food safety should be a top priority.

Food safety risk is one of the key factors affecting the business

development of food companies. Any negligence in the process from
research, development and production to market transformation may
result in major food safety incidents. If the Group fails to inspect raw
and auxiliary materials and finished products in accordance with the
latest laws and regulations and regulatory requirements, or fails to
standardize and effectively control the procurement, production and
quality inspection processes, it may lead to negative food safety
incidents, which may in turn affect the Group’s reputation and cause

loss of economic interests.

Countermeasures:

1)

Deepening the three-tier quality management system:

The Group attached great importance to food safety and quality
management and continued to deepen the three-tier
management system of “Group — Region — Subsidiary”. Focusing
on the “four strictest requirements”, the Group implemented a
monitoring procedure of top-down supervision and bottom-up
responsibility, and built a three-tier quality management system
in which the Group sets goals for regions to interpret and assigns
subsidiaries to implement. By doing so, product quality is fully
controlled, and food safety is effectively supervised in all aspects.
At the same time, the Group followed an all-round, multi-angle,
high-precision quality management policy, kept the source of
food safe, strengthened the awareness of food safety supervision,
improved the breadth of supervision, and built a strong line of
defense for food safety.
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Optimizing food safety testing methods:

The Group has set up a high standard testing center, equipped
with top international testing facilities, to conduct safety testing
throughout the entire chain from raw and auxiliary materials to
finished products. Through qualification screening, theoretical
assessment and on-site evaluation, the Group selected quality
control personnel and technical experts with independent
qualifications to meet the gradually increasing external regulatory
requirements for food safety; the Group’s testing center is
equipped with advanced facilities such as Bruker testing
instruments to ensure rapid testing of nutritional composition
through scientific means; the Group continued to optimize
product quality testing methods, and conducted regular quality
random inspections on products that have achieved market
transformation through “sample purchasing by sales team for the
Group’s testing”, paying equal attention to both internal and
external factors, and continuously improved the professionalism
of testing personnel and the efficiency and accuracy of testing
equipment to ensure true and objective testing results. In 2021, a
total of more than 1,600 batches of internal and external random
inspections were implemented, and the test results have met the
requirements of national standards.

Strengthening multi-system accreditation:

In 2021, the Group’s food safety management system and product
quality testing capabilities were steadily maintained at a high
level in the industry. In addition to the 1SO9001 Quality
Management System, 1SO14001 Environmental Management
System, 1S0O22000 Food Safety Management System, BRC Global
Food Safety Standard System and HACCP Hazard Analysis and
Critical Control Point System, the Fujian plant obtained the
Intellectual Property Management System Certification to
continue to strengthen the effectiveness of intellectual property
protection. In addition, the newly launched high-end soy milk
product “Doubendou Organic Whole Soy Milk” has an exclusive
organic “ID card” issued by an organic certification body, with one
code for each box, enabling full organic traceability.
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Raw Material Price Fluctuation Risks:

In 2021, affected by the combination of global economic downturn
under the impact of the pandemic, rising consumer index, exchange
rate fluctuations, weather changes, natural disasters, market supply
and demand, environmental protection requirements and other factors,
the prices of raw materials required for the Group’s production, such as
palm oil, eggs, soybeans and other agricultural and sideline products,
have gone up, resulting in increased uncertainty in production costs
and its composition. If the Group fails to scientifically forecast and
reasonably predict the price of raw materials based on the
comprehensive analysis of macro-economy and price trends of raw
materials, or lacks effective coping strategies in the event of unfavorable
fluctuation of raw material prices, the Group’s purchasing cost may
increase, which may reduce the Group’s profitability.

Countermeasures:

1)  Standardizing procurement cost control procedures and
making smart use of multiple procurement methods:

The Group continued to optimize procurement cost control and
make comprehensive use of multiple procurement methods to
achieve delicacy management of raw material prices. At the
beginning of each year, the procurement and supply operation
center analyses and predicts the economic situation at home and
abroad and the price trend of various major raw materials,
develops annual procurement plans, sets procurement budgets,
and makes monthly adjustments to the procurement plans and
budgets according to the actual situation to precisely control
procurement costs. The Group adopted an anti-seasonal
procurement approach to effectively avoid the risk of seasonal
fluctuations in raw material prices; signed medium and long-term
strategic procurement contracts with raw material suppliers to
lock in prices in advance through forward pricing to reduce price
uncertainty; and signed procurement contracts at low price
points to lock in bulk material prices in advance to avoid price
increases caused by unexpected events.

R EHEN R E ER

TECF o REBEERETHERKEET
T HBEBRH R EREEH  XRRE
£ BRAKE - THHTE BREXES
RAEHEFE > EEREEFBEREME > 1
RidH s BE - AKEFRAERERSA
PRETT  BEREEMAREBRNTETE
MEIN5E o EEERER BB MEREM K
EREDET2EDNT > HEMEMERE
THEEANMSERA > RETRMEHE
1% 8 £ M R B RS ER B B A B FE XY 4
It > FIAEE R EE MIRAE A A B N > PRIEE
BZEFBES

FESTHEE

1) HREREREEERRERF > LYERS
TIREA
EEFERCRBRAEE RAE
BETHEERDN » BRERMEHERE
MEEE - SFFY) > FEEZDO
HHEFRNIMEBET BMNEEEE
R EHEIE EESET DA TAH > TIZAL
FERBHINRBERE > LSARE
BERBEREREMNARETH
B BEEERBEHE - EEREKX
TEHRBEL I BRRBERMEHER
TEMEREER ; BEMEHERR
SR RIEBERB AR > BBERR
BEiRAHESBRE » FREERITEE
t; EERERRIT B ERLUER
HERTYRMER - BRAREEN
SIEEBVER LT ©

ENEREBRBRAR | F£iR 2021 79

V A5



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRS

80

2)

3)

Optimizing and upgrading product packaging design to
achieve cost reduction and efficiency management goals:

The Group’s R&D Centre is committed to continuously optimizing
the design of product packaging specifications, taking full
account of the product volume ratio, reducing the grammage of
packaging while ensuring storage and transportation safety,
minimalizing the waste of packaging materials and thereby
reducing costs. In addition, the Group has continued to
strengthen the control of various expenses and to hedge the cost
pressure through precise placement of expenses; some food
series have been appropriately priced to cope with the pressure
of rising costs.

Continuously promoting supply chain optimization and
accelerating the allocation of supplier resources:

The Group continued to promote the transformation and
upgrading of its supply chain, relying on its nationwide
subsidiaries to integrate the resources of suppliers from all over
the world and co-ordinate the overall allocation of suppliers. The
Group reorganized all key links in the supply chain, and effectively
reduced procurement costs and significantly improve
procurement efficiency by streamlining some intermediate links;
it has also been actively developing and cultivating qualified
suppliers in the factories’ localities to effectively reduce storage
and transportation costs by shortening transportation distances,
while also reducing the risk of long-distance transportation
disruptions due to the pandemic or other unforeseen
circumstances, and driving local agricultural and economic
development while optimizing the layout of its own supply chain
resources.
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Macro-economic and Political Risks:

The impact of domestic and international macroeconomic trends and
changes in the global political environment on the food and beverage
industry cannot be ignored. If the Group fails to accurately grasp the
policy direction of the regulatory authorities and update the existing
standards and regulations in a timely manner, it may affect the Group’s
judgment on the direction of its strategic development and adversely
affect the promotion and sales of its products and services. If the Group
fails to establish appropriate emergency management mechanisms and
formulate contingency plans in response to changes in the external
environment, the Group may not be able to resume production and
operations in a timely manner, making it difficult to ensure the long-
term, healthy and stable operation and development of the enterprise.

Countermeasures:

1)  Actively applying for various types of support and subsidies
to support the operation and development of enterprises:

The Group paid close attention to government support and
preferences for the food industry and related enterprises, and
actively applied for funding support projects to help the Group
and its subsidiaries to obtain national and local government
support and achieve sustainable development. In 2021, Group
applied for a number of national, provincial and county and
municipal funding support projects in various areas such as
e-commerce and technology integration, adding to the
achievement of broad-based market expansion. Subsidiaries
from various regions enjoyed a number of policy subsidies, with
particularly outstanding results in agricultural industrialization
projects. Other types of subsidies included subsidies for
technological improvements, discounted prices for direct
electricity purchase transactions, subsidies for job stabilization
during the pandemic and subsidies for local contributions. In
addition, the Group’s expansion of its new plant in Ma’anshan in
2021 received strong support from the local government in terms
of fixed asset subsidies, tax contribution subsidies and full
coordination during the start-up phase of the construction.

REEEBA R |

B SR A TE B U R 2 IR BUA KIRIR
SEHRRMEITEERNT ETERBR -
EEEREEELEREERNERER -
KB ERIRITIREN AR - P BER
BB RS0 0 HESRMIRFESBHEE
MIFEEREETE - BREHEINGIR
15 A0 2 1 AR FE RO R = TR A R L 76 X
SREENE  PEERNEREERETE
TEEE BUFRILERM RFE R
EEFER -

FEETHEE

1) TRIBREEEKRS@E > KOXFHE
EEEUR:
EEBYRPIBTE BmTE R
TENKFER > BRRRESHT
HE » WHEERSFREERFER
REMKITRE  BRARELRE -
TEC > FERRZEERR
AMEBHRESHKFER - KRB
FEB iR EELEE > RER
REEHHERAENE « StFA
RERLAMRMEE > EREEXESL
HE D EESHARLARS - Hit
FNHEBNE SR s BB
ZEEER - BIFHBREHE kit
HERBEEE - i ZT " —F&E
BESR BRI  EXBFNE
TEEEMY - MEMEERETIE
RIFERBIZ DR - EFEMBUTR
RIZFs o

ENEREBRBRAR | F£iR 2021 81

gy



Corporate Governance Report

o

82

2)

3)

ERmE

Keeping abreast of the trend of industry standard setting and
accelerating the pace of healthy development of the industry:

The Group paid attention to the latest national food safety
standards set by the national food and beverage industry,
grasped the trend of policy and regulation changes in the
industry, closely followed the trend of industry standards and
actively participated in the development of industry standards. In
2021, the Group participated in the formulation and revision of
GB/T 20980-2021 Biscuits, GB/T 20981-2021 Bread, GB/T 40360-
2021 Metal Can Filling and Sealing Machine for Non-aerated
Beverages, GB/T 40361-2021 Beer and Carbonated Beverage Can
Filling Production Line Standards to ensure the safety of food
production, packaging, sales and catering services, took the pulse
of enterprise development, promoted the Group’s quality and
efficiency-oriented development, accelerated the standardization
and institutionalization of the industry, and contributed to the
healthy and stable development of the industry.

Establishing an emergency response network system to
effectively mitigate sudden public crises:

In 2021, major domestic and international events occurred
frequently. In order to ensure normal and orderly production
operations, the Group has built an emergency response system
for public emergencies such as natural disasters, public health
incidents and social security incidents under the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations to effectively safeguard product
quality, employee health and operational safety. The Group has
strategically located 36 food and beverage production bases
across the country to effectively reduce the adverse impact of
local public emergencies on local production operations and
ease production pressure during emergencies by deploying and
releasing reserve capacity between neighboring regions. In
addition, in the face of the ongoing spread of the coronavirus in
certain locations, the Group has implemented various prevention
measures, insisted on the wearing of masks and temperature
checks, and achieved zero infection and transmission among the
Group’s more than 40,000 employees.
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Brand Reputation Risks:

Brand reputation is inextricably connected to corporate image. A good
brand reputation contributes to a positive corporate image, the image
of products and services and the image of the surrounding supply chain,
and plays a vital role in the sustainable development of a company. If
the Group fails to formulate effective strategies to prevent brand
reputation risks, it may have a serious negative impact on the brand’s
goodwill, recognition and trust among consumers, which will be
detrimental to the maintenance of the corporate image it has built up in
the minds of consumers over time, resulting in damage to the Group’s
reputation and affecting its long-term development.

Countermeasures:

1)  Winning authoritative scientific and technological awards
and building diversified quality brands:

In 2021, the Group’s products won a number of awards in the
“China Food Industry Association Science and Technology Award”
(FEERITEHIR2RIEE), the highest and most
authoritative scientific category in the Chinese sugar, wine and
food industry. Doubendou Soymilk won the Grand Prize for its
patented technology of “natural without additives”, Hegizheng
Herbal Tea won the First Prize for its “freshly brewed extraction
technology” and Doubendou’s innovative technology of ambient
plant-based yogurt category won the Second Prize. In addition,
Doubendou Ambient Plant Yogurt was awarded the title of
“Pioneer of Ambient Plant Yogurt Category in China” for its
excellent product and technological strength as well as the
Group’s continuous innovation, exploration and contribution in
the field of plant protein and plant yogurt. By continuing to
enhance the brand image and value, the Group consolidated the
brand’s goodwill and trustworthiness among consumers and
promoted the upgrade of the Group’s brand awareness and
reputation under the multi-brand strategy.
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Monitoring public opinion and taking multiple measures to
maintain brand image:

The Group has a complete public opinion monitoring system,
with various professional departments participating in the
establishment of a public opinion crisis response team, which
monitors the latest trends in the industry and external market
changes in real time, makes timely public opinion analysis and
early warning, opens up communication channels between
subsidiaries and the Group, comprehensively analyses the
development trend of public opinion and the scope of influence
of communication, actively guides and formulates effective
response measures, and achieves rapid response to external
public opinion. In addition, the Group has formed a good
communication mechanism with its business partners and
implemented standardized and refined controls. Through regular
supervision of distributors’ pricing and conduct, strict control
over the style and image of live broadcasts on e-commerce
channels, and rigorous selection of brand image endorsements
and advertisements, the Group has effectively maintained its
brand image and reputation.

Continuously fulfilling social responsibilities and carrying
forward the fine tradition of emphasizing education and
promoting learning:

The Group has always been mindful of its social responsibilities
and has always been keen on public welfare, making its due
contribution to social and economic development and regional
education. 2021 witnessed the Group’s continuous efforts in the
fields of education scholarship, elderly care, pandemic prevention
and disaster relief, etc. In January, the Group held a ceremony to
distribute RMB10 million worth of love pensions, and has so far
distributed a total of more than RMB90 million worth of love
pensions to 100,000 people. In July, when an exceptionally heavy
rainstorm struck Henan, the Group was among the first to deploy
20,000 pieces of food and beverage supplies worth more than
RMB2 million from its factories and partners to the frontline of the
disaster relief in Henan. In August, the Hui’an County Liangliang
Education Fund continued to distribute RMB10 million for local
fellowships and scholarships in Hui’an. In September, the full-
time non-profit private secondary school, Huian Liangliang
Secondary School of Huizhou Normal University, which was built
by the Hui’an County Liangliang Education Fund with the
donation of RMB1 billion from the Chairman of the Group’s, was
officially opened to continue to promote the development of
talent training and education, and to carry forward the fine
tradition of respecting teachers and educating people in the
famous cultural city.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
REVIEW OF 2021

The Internal Audit Division, in accordance with the annual audit plan approved
by the Audit Committee in 2020, carried out independent review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and major internal control,
covering financial control, operational control and compliance control. The
Internal Audit Division reported the audit results to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors, recommended rectification measures and exchanged
views with the management and took follow-up actions to ensure that the
management has put such rectification measures into practice.

The Audit Committee scrutinizes and approves the review results and
comments from the Internal Audit Division regarding the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and the risk management system on a regular
basis and reports major events to the Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2021, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including adequacy of resources, employees’
qualification and experience, training programs and budgets of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board of Directors is of the
view that there is no material deficiency in the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in terms of integrity, rationality and validity.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report

IRIR HEREREKS

ABOUT THE REPORT
Overview

The report is the sixth annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter referred to as “ESG”) Report issued by Dali Foods Group Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Dali” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries “We” or the “Group”) which is targeted at all stakeholders of the
company and mainly discloses the Company’s Management, practice and
performance on economy, environment, society and governance.

Reporting Period Of The Report

The report covers the period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 (the
“reporting period”), with some information tracing back to earlier years.

Scope and Boundary Of The Report

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data in the report
basically cover the Group’s headquarters and subsidiaries while certain
information on community is related to “Liangliang Education Trust
Association” of Huian County. The currency used in the report is RMB.

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” to Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (hereinafter referred to as “HKEX”).This report identifies
and ranks important stakeholders and important ESG issues, determines the
boundaries of the ESG report, collects relevant materials and data, prepares
the report based on the data, and reviews the information in the report to
determine the content of the report and ensure its integrity, substance,
authenticity and balance.
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Data Source and Reliability Assurance

The information and data enclosed in the report are from the statistics report
and official documents of the Company and have been reviewed by relevant
departments. The Company undertakes that there is no false record or
misleading statement in the report, and we shall be liable for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of the report.

Language and form of the Report

This report is available in Chinese and English. The electronic version of the
report is available for reference. For more details about the background,
business development and sustainability vision of our Company, please refer
to the official website of Dali Food.

Report Preparation Process

This Report is prepared by working group, data collection, stakeholder
questionnaire, framework determination, report preparation, report design,
and review by departments and senior management.

Confirmation and Approval

As confirmed by the management, the report was approved by the board of
directors on March, 2022.

1. RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE, COMPREHENSIVE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group always adheres to the core value concept of sustainable
development, continuously strengthens internal ESG governance and
business ethics building with the goal of achieving a well-established
sustainable development, to ensure the company to walk steadily over
great distance on the right track.

BRIRIRR A ST RE

R EWENE BMBBRRN AR B F RS
FMIEX M - W iBBAARBFIEZ - XA KGE
FRERNFEEAERCCEH R EERRG > I
NEBEEN - ERMENTELESE -

HEES RPN

FRERAPNHEXR » WABFRRZA S
B R THRBEBLHENARATDNE R FHERE
MeIREERIES > DA EEN R RE A

HERRRE

FREEB TR/ EAER - BRIRE ~ BEAGD
CERFETE C MERE GRS BFIRES
BEZFIRHTTRRS o

RSB Rt
¢ﬁiwéﬁﬁﬁ
598

1. BEARE - Z2EMERE

EONMIEIHF=-REE

AEFRKBETIFEERNZOEERE
2 UEBERBRNAIFEZERABER T
BRI ABBESCE AR R ERER - T
fRIEFEAESNTEIEFERVIE RS LITIRENE -
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1.1 ESG Governance

Strictly abiding by the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies, the
regulatory requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
other laws and regulations regarding corporate ESG governance,
we focus on building a well-established ESG organization
structure and work mechanism, to provide institutional
protections for corporate daily operation. Meanwhile, we
continuously enhance transparency and effectiveness of
management, to effectively protect the shareholders and
stakeholders’ rights. We have established a top-down ESG
governance structure, in which the Board is the top management
consisting of audit committee as the supervision authority and

1.1

ESGER

FEPEEET(PEAREMEARR
EY S (ETHRATRIEER) KB PR
ERE MM ESCEARBRERE
1R BN EES S ESCAHMERE
TR > Ah¥ER S EZ RN
ERME > AR SIBBEHERER
T IBRERE RER AT
meo HMERITHLEMINNESGE
BRIE HEESSEARS SEH
B TREZZESALERE
ESC TAE/NBABITIHEME > 27501~
LAEEHHPES TIFNRERE

4 mm

ESG work group as the executive authority, to comprehensively WEE  EHHrEaEFAMEE -
drive in and effectively implement corporate ESG work from all
perspectives, and help create greater value for the corporation.

®  The Board is responsible for assessing, defining and managing the risks associated with ESG
EFFaEME EEL ERESCER
The Board e Ensuring that the Group has appropriate and effective ESG management and internal control systems
EE! in place
FEREM R A EEMNESCEERAIEIE AL
e  Auditing ESG policies and reports
BHESGHUERR IR E

BEEAARRE HERELRER

e  Making suggestions to the Company s ESG strategies, and identify major ESG risks and opportunities
-, R ASIESGIRM LUR B EAESCR IR A

e Approving and reviewing policies associated with ESG

R st ESGHERIRELR

®  Reviewing the Company s annual ESG report, appropriately enclosing the ESG risks the Group is facing,
measures taken and progress of target achievement, as well as suggesting the Board to approve the
ESG report
BRA QBN EEESGIRE M BB A5 M PEHHIESGRME - ERERMIEHE R E R B IRAER >
T RE R TBIBESGRE

& e  Supervising the en vironmental, social and governmental matters of the Company
/

Audit Committee

BZEEY

e  Responsible for putting forward daily ESG matters

ESG Working Group ARARESCEHIME
ESGI{F/éH e Regularly reporting to ESG executive committee
EHIRESGHITER B GER
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Statement of the Board

As the top responsible authority for Dali’s ESG matters, the Board
is ultimately responsible for Dali’s sustainable development
strategy, ESG policies, ESG risks and the progress of relevant
objectives. The audit committee, as the supervisory body of ESG
matters, is responsible for identifying and assessing issues
associated with Dali ESG, overseeing the effectiveness, objectives
and implementation of works, coordinating ESG resources and
reporting regularly to the Board. The Board, by holding regular
meetings, reviews sustainable development strategy, ESG
policies, ESG risks, target progress and relevant ESG matters
involved in the operation of the Group. Furthermore, the Board
explores if modification is needed for key ESG areas based on ESG
performance, corporate strategy, business mode,and operation
process to ensure the sustainability of the Group’s development.

Daily Implementation B % E i

je

daily operations.

EEGEBH
EAENESCEENRS S TS
EEGHEFNFEZERERE - £SC
B3~ ESGRBMU AR B R EEEE
ERaRREF BEREEGES
ESCEEMNEEIKE > aEHA T
HEMESGHHRAZE > BEEESCAR
BEXM BERERBEIENERE
W HHEESCGHERER » WEBE
EEETER -  EEFBEBTEHRT
B BRANFEZESRK  ESCHK
HESCRAMKBEREEER UK
AEBEEBRTISRNESCEME
B IR PESCT RIS & B E
B~ £HER  BERERRNREDS
=Y E BEESGAA I 1T I R BB
2 IR REE R AT RHEN o

Dali has established the ESG working group which is composed of the head of each department which helps develop and
implement ESG risk prevention measures as well as set ESG targets and management principles,to integrate ESG elements into

EF B R AR FIE B AR EIESC TR/ VB - 17 BN I E I 5% BRESG R BRI 8 » LURESG B AR KR B IR # I EABRE TF>

HESGTTERMA BREE

please refer to the content set forth below.

Materiality Analysis E X1 2 #h

The Board has discussed and approved the identified material topics, and then formulated sustainable development strategies,
ESG management guidelines correspondingly. We have followed international sustainable development trends and other
companies’ performance and conducted a review of related working progress regularly. For information of material topics,

EEG B mANRUERTHR HAYESCE A M 5mE - M AR AR B SRRAR E Al R A 38 RBUIE ~ESCBIR /5 #1 > KR BRIE R R eI 55
BERBLURETRE I E AR TFREE BN EAERE R RA S EEEH THARE

ESG risk identification and target setting ESG & 3I Rk BiEfE

We have carried out identification of ESG risks including climate change risks during the reporting period, then formulated

solutions to all types of identified ESG risks. Meanwhile, we also prepared four corporate environmental targets, and
determined the main approach to achieve them. For information of ESG risk identification and environmental target setting,
please refer to the ESG risk management details set forth below in this section, as well as Low Carbon, Green Production set

forth in Chapter 4 of this report.

HPIEREHAMET SERGE(CRREABESCRRH A TIF Wi HH 5 H S IRESCIER RIREIE 7 EH 5 %2R
B> H PO E 7 IIREEIRIG B IR WHEE 7 RIRRE B RN T ERE R ESc A A MIRR B R E B RA 2 T4

BN AESGRREERNZR URAREFISEHIRR REEERND-
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ESG Risk Management

While carrying out 2021 risk identification work, the Group
simultaneously conducts the identification of Dali ESG risks with
causal analysis method based on risk possibility and influence,
then analyzes and puts the identified risks in order, to determine
priorities, refine solutions and take actions accordingly. The key
ESG risks and solutions we have identified are as follows:

ESG Risks
ESG A&

Food Safety
EmZE

Quality of Raw Materials
EtEmE

Covid-19 Prevention

4 DR

IP Protection

R EERE

Climate Change
SR

ESG R EE
AEBMEHE_T - —FENEKEH
A TIENREES > BIBRR DAL
ERMRERREFERE > HEER
ESGHERAERIERFE LR T @5 T
B > 3 8 B B9 R B AT 0 A A BE
Fe o LU E R ERAFNANC FEEHE IR
W IREAB FEFE 2248 o B EEH R
H B9 A 88 £SG L B B HLFE R R
T

Measures

FEH 248

Strictly abides by National laws and regulations as well as food supervision
requirements, further refines safety standards, regulations,supervisions and other
internal compliance management, to establish normal risk prevention
mechanism and eliminate food safety scandals
BEBRBETRZOAREARABEREEENR  E—SMEL2RERE - 8B
BEEENMERUEER  ERARBRCHERT > tEeRZsamE Y

Ensure the high standard and quality by original supplier selection and sampling
check in all procedures

BERBEMEREEN2RAMRTREFANRERNNSRE - aRE

Formulated a complete and normative Covid prevention emergency plan,
established Covid leading group, fully implemented every Covid prevention works
including wearing masks and body temperature checks, to ensure staff health
and operation safety

FIE T RRRBHBBHIEEEHIE - MR EENE  2EEERENE
I BEMEOSHERED > REEIERENECEZS

Accelerate response to infringement disputes by promoting collaboration with
external professional rights protection agencies

BEINR RN ERERAERB S > RESHINREERMAUMHNERERE

Increase energy utilization rate with energy saving technical reforms, actively use
clean energies such as natural gas, and collaborate with local energy services
institutions to explore measures and opportunities for mitigating climate change
BB ERRESERMNAE > BIRERARAREBLER > LEEHE
EEERIRBIEBESE  HERRAERIEZCAEENES
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Communication with Stakeholders

We are fully aware that the long-term momentum of our
sustainable development lies in striding ahead with our
stakeholders. We attach great importance to the communication
with stakeholders by learning the demands, opinions and
suggestions from different parties and integrating the focus of
stakeholders into the operational and decision-making procedure
of the Group, and hence continuing to pursue the mutual value
maximization among us and our stakeholders. During the
reporting period, the major stakeholders who are closely related
to the Group that we identified including shareholders/investors,
government departments, suppliers, staff, community/
organizations/NGOs, medias, as well as customers.

The following table sets forth issues of concern from different
groups of stakeholders during the reporting period:

Communication channels/

Issues of concern Feedback form
RN EESRE BERE REBEHX

Operation Results
Pandemic Response
Food Safety

Green Production

— General Meeting

— Investors Conference

— Investors Telephone Conference

#mABiE
RPIRNREASEZ AR FHERRD
ARFEERNRES] - KIS
EERETARBE > 257 RS
FHEK s BRMER > SEm AR
BUIRBATEENESTARRE
12> TENEREREm AHREBER
RAAE o FEHM - FAIRR LA
EERFZYNIEED ASER
RREE -~ BUTERPT ~ g~ B
IT~#HEAL B8 JFBATES
IRREADHEE o

TRIIL RSN E T ABRIR
REERVERE ¢

Frequency/Number of times

SRR R

General Meeting is held once a year;
Investors Conference and Telephone
Conference are held irregularly

— Result Announcements Meeting
— Press Release/Announcement
— Online Reverse Roadshow

Climate Change Risks

— Mail Communication

BRI EE EEE —REXE RRAEESFER TR, REER
&5 —REEEHEE HEMEEENERRT
Bm%E —REERES
mEmEE —RERUMmE
RIZECREMRE — s NS
— R LR MERE
— WHBE
Government Food Safety — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Departments Green Production — Meeting
Operation Compliance
HFFERFT BmZE — RGO EH
mEeLE — &
BREE
Suppliers Supply Chain Management — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Food Safety — Supplier Assessment Regular
g e EIR — RIS TEHA
BmZE — HEERHEZ EHA
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Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback form Frequency/Number of times
A 4H5 RN EEHRE BERE RESN SE R

Staff Employee’s Rights — Staff Interviews Irregular
Remuneration and Benefits — Internal Email/hotline

— Internal WeChat Public Account

— Employee Satisfaction Survey

— Employee Complaint QR Code

BIfEm — BT ms EH
#ENEF — RE, LG
— MBS R
— BTl mREERE
— BT M
Community/ Green Production — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Organizations/ Food Safety — Meeting
NGOs
HEAL B4 gkl — IRIGER REH
FERLAFAR A BmZE — g
Food Safety — Press Release/Announcement Irregular
Product Tracing — Interview
— Meeting
BmZE il VN REH
P mmiB — &
- &%
Consumers Food Safety — Online Promotion and Release Irregular
Food Nutrition and Health ~ — Offline Promotion

— Contact Through Telephone/Email

— WeChat/Weibo

— Questionnaire

— Symposium
BmZE — AR LI NEHR
S BB — BN EEES

— B /BT BN

— s/ iE

- ﬁ:ﬁ%

~ BB
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Material Issues Analysis

In 2021, we have identified a list of potential material issues
considering the Group’s business development, industry policy
trends, media reports and ESG regulatory requirements, and have
integrated the opinions and expectations of various stakeholders
into our ESG management strategy and policy formulation
through interviews. By conducting a material analysis on each
identified issue, we have developed a matrix for material issue of
the Year.

Identify potential materialissues BT EEREH

EAMHEED R

TEC - RS ERESRE
RIER ~ ITEBRES - HERE
ESCEREERFMPILBEEANEH
BRE > WBBmRTIFRERmA
R B AR B ESC B IR BB R IR
FIERR S » WA MR B ET
BARMBEEDN > O FHEEER
EREHERDMRE

By examining the media analysis, industry benchmarking analysis and other relevant documents, we could
identify the potential material issues which reflect the economic, environment and social impact brought by
the Group’s business, or affffect the stakeholders’ evaluations and decision making on the Group.

FfIBBIREE D FIT AR D AT R ELAABRA S HARE B RESA R R AN SR B E B E E ROASE  IRIBAIME

T W B RS N A E R ERAREEEE RS

Prioritize potential materialissues B EEHEHF

To conduct comprehensive and in-depth interviews, learn the priority issues of concerns for each stakeholder,
review the potential material issues again and prioritize them based on the influence on both the Group’s ESG
development and the stakeholders, resulting in the formation of a matrix of issues.

FRREERANGK 7RSS EE AFREERER ENMERETEERE WIREHAEBESCERER

EFH S A EWE S EEITHR A/ p—E R

Summary and Feedback 4Rk R &

principles and invite input from stakeholders.

To examine whether the report content provides a reasonable description of the Group’s impact and ESG
performance and whether the process for preparing the report content reflects the intent of the reporting

BEREABEARME T AN AEENF EMESCRITN S URRRREANBHTIZRE R T IR

HRANEE TEFSEEARMER

Assessment process of material issues

EAMEETLIBRE

During the reporting period, new topic of “response to climate
change”was added and the topics of “social participation” and
“public welfare and charity” were integrated based on the
assessment of the ESG material issues for 2020 and according to
the operation characteristics of the Group and priority of concerns
of stakeholders, thus developing 10 most material, 7 moderately
material and 3 less material ESG issues for the Year. Such issues
constitute a significant part of the content of this report, in which
we will disclose relevant management initiatives in detail.

WREAR BT S _ZFESCE
AEZEETENER - RIEAER
EEIS L R R AR SR 10
TESREECEE aHTHES
BN EEEZE LU T & E
EN0ESEEESGHE » 1P
EEErSGHE > UKRIBREEE
ESGHERE  BERBEMAREAR
MBI D BB EEARS A
4RI EABRE AV E IR RS o
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MATERIAL
REEE

BB S - Btme e siopjoyayels spiemoy aduepodw|

LESS
MATERIAL

BESE

Integrity
EIAE 34

Water resources management

KERER

Pollutant management
ERYER

Carbon footprint

fix B B

Packaging material management

BEMEE

Response to climate change

FEHRIREME

Employee rights
(=

MODERATELY

Importance towards the Group HEBMNWEEM

Employee salary and benefits

B T 22487

Employee development and training
ST ERME

Employee care
EBTRAE

Occupational health and safety

EDESTE S

Supply chain management

s EE

Product innovation

EmAlH

Food safety
BEmE2
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Food nutrition and health

BEmERAEE

Intellectual property rights
pIE: -3

Product tracing
EmiB
Customer communication and service

ZREBERE

Customer privacy

=R

Public welfare and charity
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1.2 Business Ethics

The Group is in compliance with sustainable development
principle. Upholding the business values of openness, fairness
and mutual respect, we strive to build a working atmosphere and
business environment of fairness, integrity, and probity. We
strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations including but
not limited to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Basic Standards for Corporate Internal Control and the Interim
Rules on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery, as well as formulated
correspondingly internal regulations including the Anti-fraud
Management Rules. We resolved to eradicate any form of
corruption and bribery. In 2021, we have specially established a
permanent anti-fraud body and performed integrity inspection
work in the Group based on the sessions of prevention in
advance, investigation during the event and afterward disposal,
ensuring the healthy development of the Company. During the
reporting period, Dali did not have any corruption lawsuit cases.

1.2 BEERER

NERETARFEERERD > TARQ
M-AF -MEEEENBEEE
B SIITERQYALE  BIERBEN
TEREMNEEIRE o FIRKRES
(FPEAREMBERGE)  (PEA
RHEMBEIR NEEFHRFEE)  (BER
BRI EAFRE) ~ (BRI
RITANEITRE)EXEEE > I
HESIE (R EFBEEEFIE) SR
BIE » BRMB AN E RS
TR ZE T —5F > BMEMKRL
T RERTIEERIEE  KIBEATE
B~ EPAEMEREENREEE
EEEZERTE  BROEEER
B o SREHR > EFRBEERETH
SAARARI AL o

Strengthening Controls: During the reporting period, we issued the Notice of
Strengthening Regulations Regarding Corporate Probity. We require each
department and company of the Group to completely avoid taking advantage of
the position for personal benefits, private banquets and other violations, so as
to rectify corruption

ERELE | MEHA > RO TECERINREXERZBEBMRERNS
MY BEREBEEF]  SRAEZRILEN AR 2 ERh - BEER
FERRR > BABBNTRER

Anti-corruption in suppliers: Continuously strengthen anti-corruption efforts

System Guarantee

B fRPE

among suppliers and distributors, explicitly stipulate in Supplier Code of
Conduct the prohibition of any corruption

HEMRER  FENREEFNCHEHESSERFNIREBRER > 7T
(HRERITATRD) PRRRER LERESEHRITH

EMNEmERERQRE | £k 2021 95



Environmental, Social And Governance Report
RIE B KERARS

96

. Self Inspection: Conduct self inspection activities in the headquarter of the
Group and all branches on a quarterly basis, strictly implement system
requirements of anti-corruption
BEEEA  HEEEEA2E) FREISEECHHEBEEMUITE
BISEEREERNGIEER

Probity Inspection . Regional spot check: The Group conduct regional spot check regularly in each

RZEE brand company and investigate corruption such as accepting gift money from
clients privately, holding private banquets and abusing power for personal gains
through company visits, staff questionnaire and peer appraisal

BIHE  EREEMRHZ S RERETEEEMSE  BAARES B

TEEBSENEAARBELTRRERES  WHEER  UHEELE

BERRR

. Induction training: Provide business ethics and anti-corruption trainings for all
the new employees
Consciousness Raising AR APTEWMARES TREmEEEN R ZEERE
BlRA . Special project: Conduct all form of anti-corruption trainings regularly for
procurement, sales and other key departments

FIEETE | HERE  HEFHREEMT > EFRESBREESFEE

2021 Anti-Corruption Priorities
—E_-EREBIFER

Anti-Corruption Special Training
R EREEEN

During the reporting period, the Group continuously enhanced corporate probity and self-discipline culture construction and
conducted a anti-corruption training themed “Legal Liabilities for Malpractices and Fraud in Procurement Officers’ Work”. 28 people
joined on site and 103 people joined online for a two-hour training. This training interpreted in details the legal terms regarding
personal gains by abusing office power and doing harms to the interests of the employer in the Labour Contract Law, acceptance of
properties in the Bidding Law, non-state functionaries bribe-taking crime, crime of duty-related encroachment, embezzlement crime in
the Criminal Law, as well as dereliction of duty and being cheated on signing and fulfilling contracts. We interpret the law by cases, alert
the trainees to be dedicated,honest and self-disciplined, not to illegally accept properties or unjustified interests, and to resolutely
eradicate bribery from the aspects of contract, administrative and criminal liability.

REHE > AEEFENBECERZEREERER > HRT U RBEBABT L FRABIERNEZREME) ATENR
[EBRUEH > 33528128 A 0 48 EARIBA N2 M 103 A 0 B R 2/ o IbF I F EB B (HEEREIE) RN E
FEBEBURNE - BIRRARE) RRANEZTY ~ (RUE) RN FEBRRX TEAEZHFE - BBEGLTE - BRETRERE
5]~ BT RKABRERES ARIERE T RS > UERE  RaFEF  THEE - IEEE=EHFEEEZIAE
ZIREBRT > REER > MR ZHYRNE R EEN m > BRHEERZ A -
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Feedback reception

Whistle-blowing mail box has
been specially set up and
specialists are engaged to
manage and response in time
when a letter is received
BREFFINRRBA W EIK
EANEER B BRRESERE

BrE

In order to be supervised internally an externally on the
implementation of compliance and business ethics of the Group,
we has established diverse whistle-blowing channels for reporting
corruption, well-developed whistle-blowing and investigation
procedures, and inspection system for corruption, to ensure the
timely and effective handling of any reported cases. The Group’s
whistle-blowing procedures are as follows:

whistle-blowing procedures

SIS

Verification and Investigation

iR BERES

Verify and investigate by
reporting to the Administrative
and Human Resource
Department and the department
where the person being reported
is working
REBATHRAFHRRBEA
FRIEERFPIEITERIZE

In addition, the Group strictly undertakes the privacy protection
of whistle-blowers. All reported information is received and
managed by a limited number of specialists and transferred to
the investigation department, and no information about whistle-
blowers would be involved in all investigations, so as to ensure
that no staff or stakeholders will receive unfair treatment due to
reporting corrupt practices. In addition, the Group promises to
strictly protect the privacy of whistle-blowers to avoid them being
treated unfairly or retaliated due to reporting. All reported
information is received and managed by a limited number of
specialists and transferred to the investigation department, and
no information about whistle-blowers would be involved in all
investigations, so as to ensure that no staff or stakeholders will
receive unfair treatment due to reporting corrupt practices.

Award and Punishment

Ifitis verified, the employee who
violate the rules will be fined or
fired while the whistle blower
will be awarded accordingly
THEBE RIBEREER
BTETIRCBREED
BT RMAER

ar

ATEZNINEENAERS RN
XEBRBETERNEE > R
YT ETHEBEHRERERE T8
MRRBEEERF » UNREBEHER
127 o EREMNRERENTIRES
MERIE - REBMMEREERIZW
e

TRBEE

Eoh » EEEEEBIRRERRAR
o BRHEEBHKTHMRETALE
MRFBMITRRE > FAARRESH
REFAZKREEERBETESH
FI> EFTARETA Y REIBRHA
EAEEURRIAEE L& Em
AT EHERERBEHRITAMZIEAFR
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1.3 Honorary Award

In 2021, with the excellent governance, independent undertaking
of social liabilities and continuously output of high quality
products and services, the Group obtained praise and recognition
from the industry and all sectors of society.

HEIE
2% AEEREALENE
AKE  BEREHEEENLERE
B UAFEBESEEER R
%o BRTITERMEERN—HE

155807 o

1.3

No. Name of Certificate Issuing Authority
FFak FEERTE NEEEE (i
1 Advanced Private Enterprise of Combating COVID-19 in Fujian Province Fujian Province Federation of Industry and
Commerce,Society for Promotion of the Guangcai
Program in Fujian Province
rEAMEMEMEBTERERE EEEIBEMSE  BEEAXERERED
2 Excellent Private Enterprise in Fujian Province Fujian Provincial Committee, People’s Government of
Fujian Province
EREESRERLE TEEEEZ BEEARBA
3 China Top 10 Enterprises of Bakery and Confectionery Industry China National Light Industry Council, China
Association of Bakery and Confectionery Industry
FEEER mBRMITE Bi) Ak PREEIEBSS - PEISEERERRITER
g
4 Ranked 306th among the China Top 500 Private Enterprises of the All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce
Manufacturing Industry: Dali Foods Group Company Limited
RESEERERE 008 - ENERERBRABE 30611 FEXETHEMESS
5 2021 Top 100 Fujian Enterprises (44th Place) Fujian Province Enterprise and Entrepreneur Union,
Fujian Broadcasting and Television Group,Fujian
Province College of Social Science
2021 @I 10058 (5544 8) FRACEEPERMEE - BREEEERE
CREETENER
6 2021 Top 100 Fujian Manufacturing Enterprises (17th Place) Fujian Province Enterprise and Entrepreneur Union,
Fujian Broadcasting and Television Group,Fujian
Province College of Social Science
2021 fRIBRIEERE 10058 (B5178) ERACEEPERMEE - BREEEERE
CREETENER
7 Ranked 22nd among Top 100 Private Enterprises in Fujian Province: Dali Fujian Province Federation of Industry and Commerce
Foods Group Company Limited
EEEAREEE10%E - ENEmERBRATFE 21U EEEIHENKSS
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No. Name of Certificate Issuing Authority
FFik EERTE NS EA
8 Ranked 70th among Top 100 Innovative Private Enterprises in Fujian Fujian Province Federation of Industry and Commerce
Province:Dali Foods Group Company Limited
BEERIMAERERE 1008 -~ ENERERBRATE 701 EEEIHEMSE
9 Ranked 12th among Top 50 Private Enterprises of the Manufacturing Fujian Province Federation of Industry and Commerce
Industry in Fujian Province:Dali Foods Group Company Limited
EEANGERECE0%R - ENERERBRATE 1211 EEEIHERSS
10 2021 Responsible Brand Award The 11th China Charity Festival Association
TR FEREmEE BT —EAEHERE
11 China Federation of Light Industry Science and Technology Progress Award China National Light Industry Council
1st Class (Project Name: Traditional Soybean Food Quality Enhancement
and Efficient Processing Key Technology and Equipment)
FEHEIEHSERSRMNES SR (FEEE  BRAEZRm FEETEHES
e = XN T RASE R B AL )
12 TheVice Chairman of the Sixth Session of the China Association of Bakery China Association of Bakery and Confectionery
and Confectionery Industry Industry
FEEEEmEEm L EREENEEEERIEEREN FEISEE MM I ERE
13 Ranked 12th among Top50 Enterprises of China National Light Industry China National Light Industry Council
Food Industry
FERTXERTERFREE BHE | 12) PEIEE T RS S
14 Ranked 30th among Top 200 Enterprises of China National Light Industry China National Light Industry Council
PRI T2 " HREE (@S 30) FEEIEHSS
15  China Top 10 Enterprises of Bakery and Confectionery Industry China National Light Industry Council, China

PENEER mIERMITE BiEz) b

Association of Bakery and Confectionery Industry

PRETEHSE  FEEERmERMA TR

&

=

ENERERARRE | £ 2021 a9

V A



Environmental, Social And Governance Report
RIE B KE RS

2. CRAFTED QUALITY, ATTENTIVE SERVICE

2,

The Group always adheres to the quality principle of “Putting Quality
and Honesty First for A Satisfactory Customer Service”. Meanwhile, we
are committed to researching, developing, innovating and introducing
world-class advanced production technology to meet consumers’
increasing needs for a healthy diet, and working with our supplier
partners to actively fulfil our responsibilities and build a quality life for

the customers.

2.1 Quality Assurance

The Group always adheres to the philosophy of “creating quality
with heart” and attaches paramount importance to food quality
and safety throughout every part of work. We strictly comply with
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations. Besides, we have put in place internally a quality
control policy which follows the principle of “being conscious at
the outset, gaining control of the source, having attention to
detail, placing focus on the process, conducting inspection as
safeguard, and striving to ensure safety”, as well as the four
management principles , providing an accurate and strong
support and guarantee for quality control.

EomE > Bk
AEBBKREE TEEHR BliEA%E ; R
HREE  mERE— NEERH > ARNEE
PSR > Sl R L E R - LUR
EHEEHEREMBEASERNER I
BFHEBRRHEBRES  BFHEHE
EBIMBELEE -

21

mERE

FEEBRERTAORRE) X
MRS ERnEBRHZ2EAER
ZEEFRGETIFIREG c ZMER
BRET(PEARENBERREZE
) (PEARKNBREREEZE)
(PEARZNBEERZEEBIME
BI) FERER B > FEEEAER
RIT TEHLT  EHIRE - BT
MED . EEIBE  MBRRE > BRR
21 REFHMOAEERA > 2
AEEERHERMANNIENR

f& o

Four Principles of Quality Management 5 B &2 QI1&/5 Al

From raw and auxiliary materials, half
finished products to finished products, we
stick to the product standard, strictly
examine and review it an d never lower the
standard
WRERE R Al BRI E AR R
B RAHERE - ABRPEEZER

One Standard
—EEE

Raw and auxiliary materials are not allowed
to warehouse, half finished products are
not allowed to pass on to the next process
and finished products are prohibited to get
out of the factory when they are unqualified
FIBE R AT AR LR T AT
EEETELR et et fEH KR

Three
Prohibitions

=AFE

Two Levels of
Supervision
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Each company shall stick to the basic daily
quality control and the Group inspects and
monitors on a monthly basis, to form two
levels of supervision and ensure the quality
FEAFUEAERESEE EESAKE
EoPE MARIER FER M E

No tolerances should be given to products
when the cause of problem is not clear, the
corrective actions are not well-made, the
responsible person does not learn from the
mistakes and/or the corrective actions do
not work out well

RIREY R R SRR HUE > 4l (EFETERE
FARRGR s BAE N R B IREEGEI R HGE 4
TR T FARGE
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In order to further ensure product quality and safety, the Group is
actively aligning with advanced international standards and
establishing an all-round integrated management system based
on I1SO 9001 Quality Management System and ISO 22000 Food

AE—FRBEREEHALTE > KE
ERRBE R E R EREE ) BT
ISO 9001 EEEIEFEF ~ 1SO 220008
MEZEBEBRAEARER > HACCPE

Safety Management, and other management systems, with the ENTEARMREFIMBRATEIER
main philosophy of HACCP Hazard Analysis and critical control HN—IRbREEERR c RSN »
points system. During the reporting period, the certifications of FERESHNBRIZNEESEE
the systems obtained by the Group and their range of coverage WA

are as follows:

Range of Coverage System Certifications

EEHE fER g
v 1SO 9001 Quality Management System
v 1S09001 EEEERBR
v" HALAL Product Certification
v HALAL BB ZE fhsdsE
Headquarters v Informational and Industrial Integrated Management System
4mEn v ERIENIFCREEERER
v" CNAS Laboratory Accreditation Certification
v NASEREDIIEEAT
v Intellectual Property Management System
v HIEEREERR
Headquarters and 7 subsidiaries in
Chengdu, Jinan, Hubei, Jilin
e > L v" BRC Global Standards for Food-safety

Guangdong and Ma’anshan

HBER R REER ~ T  HA3E ~ HAk - EEERAN

v BRCEHKEBMZEZERZ

BRLTREAR
v 1S0 22000 Food Safety Management System
v IS022000 B Z 2 EEER
Head t d all subsidiari
<4 ql:é;:‘;;;r;ﬂﬂ;é:“:; aries v" HACCP Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point System
. RV
e = v HACCP BB EL RN GIBLEE 7
Subsidiaries in Fujian, Hubei, Jinan,
Shanxi, Ma’anshan and Henan v Organic Product Certification

R A6 ~ F ~ PREE - BRI - v AREMEE
B AS
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To reinforce quality control of the entire process, the Group has
established a monitoring process to ensure supervisions are
carried through from top to bottom and staff are held to be
responsible from bottom to top. The process has a full coverage
including supplier screening and evaluation, verification of origin
inspection, inspection of raw and auxiliary materials, supervision
of production process, and after-sale tracking service. We have
also established a recall system to pay special attention to all
potential quality control problems along all links of production
and form a complete “chain-style” product supervision
mechanism, effectively ensuring product quality and safety
throughout their lifecycle. In addition, we have set up a triple-level
integrated quality control team, which comprises the Group’s
quality control department, the company’s quality control testing
center and workshop quality control officers. Currently, the Group
has a strong quality control team of over 1200 quality control
personnel and technical experts with relevant professional
background and technical skills.

AR

Supplier evaluation

/ FeE=, )
EREERER

Dali “Chain-Style” Full Supervision Mechanism

EF Mgt 2REERR
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“Chain-Style” Full Supervision System

ATIEERIENESEE  A&F
FETELETERBEE - BTmEL
BREsNEEER > 2EESNMH
FERE A R a e > [REMEZERE ~
REMN AERSA - £ EBIRE
B ERBEHRY  RNERILITHE
EIFIE » ENMKIERE A EH IR
PERIRE > T — AR Ay Mgzt
EREERZ > BURREREYED
BEENREMZE o i - FHfERE
BT HEAREDBI AT RERI TP
D BEREEE =R —ENBRAR
PEE  BelEERRSE2ENE
MEERENHERE ABRBMERE
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Supplier Management and Evaluation

Building a stable and healthy supply chain is one of the crucial
parts to ensure product quality. The Group has a well-established
supplier management system to further ensure a stable
production and operation. In 2021, the Group further enhanced
the supervision of the supply chain and optimized the supplier
service system and supplier grade evaluation system to carry out
systematic, modular, standardized, and data-based big data
management for all of the Group’s qualified raw and auxiliary
materials suppliers, so as to achieve an all-round and full
supervision of the supply chain. As of December 31, 2021, the
Group had 397 concentrated suppliers and their distribution is as
follows:

19

Northwest
China

[iplr

19

Southwest
China

il

e EIR AT

TERTE ~ BRRMNHEERREER
EENEEIRHZ —  AEEETT
TENHEBHEESE  E—TDR
REREEBENRE T ——
FoEFRE—SMAT HEHEEEN
B BT HERRBRATHERS
LIRETHIE - HEEEPREEHE
FEBETRAE « BRIRE « REE
BRI ERE » BRAtERES
H s 2RENEE BET——
F+ZA=+—8 > xEEHLE3T
REPRBUEER > HOHBEROT
PR -

40

Northeast
China

ESln

46

Northern
China

E3ln

2

Overseas

pi=p )

178

Eastern
China

ER

56

Southern
China

i
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The Group always adheres to the attitude of openness, fairness
and helpfulness and achieves win-win cooperation by joining
hands with suppliers. We have established corresponding
management measures for supplier screening, evaluation, on-site
review, communication mechanism and other aspects. Besides of
supplier’s production quality and price, we also include
environment qualifications, food safety qualifications, honest
behaviors and labor rights protection in the scope of assessment,
and require the supplier to sign Supplier Code of Conduct. In this
way, we encourage and promote suppliers to raise their
awareness on quality management and social liability
performance, so as to reduce potential risks in suppliers and
ensure the stable production and operation of the Group.

Supplier Management Procedures {1t fE i & 18 55 12

FREBMBKREFURAT ~ AR~ B8
WEE > BFHER > ERGFE
o RPIEHEEEA - 574 1B
BiZ BB EHEIFE T AE
EEME o FRT £ B HERNE
mmE ~ BERERRZIN > RAPES
REEEANRFREE - BMZEE
B ERR - B LEEREBE R
ABIZEZBES > B EREEERET
(HEERITRAM) - UL SRS B A #E
RS RASEEESHUARGTE
BEEEBITESN > BREHEEETR
B REAEEEEEZNRE

o

104

Supplier access {HFEREA

Adopting stricter entry standards for group suppliers and productive suppliers, including food safety system
qualification and honest behaviors, as well as labor rights protection into the standard;

HERMHEEREEEHRERNRABRENEARS RERLERATEREMMERE B ISR
FEERY AR EAREZR;
All suppliers are assessed based on ISO and HACCP systems and are evaluated on multiple aspects;

ERISOMHACCPEER - S B E N R ETTEX;

Perform on-site assessment to the suppliers on a yearly basis, comprehensively covering the scope of supplier
assessment to better maintain a good operation of suppliers;

SEHHERRSETER 25 UERHERERER Bt RERTE T

Supplier Evaluation {HFE& T

Perform on-site review to suppliers on a yearly basis, comprehensively covering the scope of supplier assessment
and better maintaining a good operation of suppliers; provide solutions and technical support for the supplier who
is found problematic in the on-site review, and help introduce well-established quality and production
management systems to suppliers;

SFEHARBIRGETER 25 8 S HREEZHE BIirER R R IHET; R RSEERINR-E
BYELAER B EIR HARRTT B RIS R B HEES ERTERA TSN A EERA S EEER

NR=F>

Set up a supplier grade evaluation system based on which we ensure that the well performing suppliers succeed
and those which are poorly run are eliminated; give feedback to those found unqualified and submit rectification
materials; the testing center then reviews together with procurement department, quality department and
technical department;

BUHEEBERETHE RESEETERS L HERNTN S ERETRYOE  LERE LML
TR OB S RS A B AP R B S BB FIIEI TR

Require suppliers to submit technical specification of raw materials regularly, and review the relevant raw
materials, ratios of additives and technical risk indicators provided in the specification.

ERMFERE EHIR R RHRAITAR NG & > MR AR B AUt (BB RAR A AR DB EC LD R R B S IR 1T B %o
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Supplier Communication {&fERBiIE

0 e Maintain a constant multi-level, widely and in-depth communication with suppliers via emails, phone calls,
WeChat messaging, interviews and video conference and other tools, tracking down and grasp timely the relevant

activities and changes of the suppliers.

FERMERREZEREZ RANBE KA BE - MiE

HEFI SRR BB RS AR A (b -

Raw material inspection upon storage

In terms of raw material quality control, we established a series of
acceptance standards of raw materials and strictly perform pre-
inspections to every batch of raw materials which are then
reviewed by the testing center together with procurement
department, quality department and technical department. In
addition, the Group requires all suppliers to submit technical
specification of raw materials regularly, and review the relevant
raw materials, ratios of additives and technical risk indicators
provided in the specification, strives to eliminate all the
unqualified elements of the product from the very source.

During the normalization of the epidemic, we still remained on
high alert, investigated Covid-19 situations in materials suppliers,
asked for positive test report of materials, and sterilized the
vehicles and packaging. During the reporting period, there was no
food safety pollution events happening in the Group.

Production process supervision

The Group attaches great importance on the quality control of
products during production process. We are equipped with a
professional quality control team to perform regular inspection
on-site. Besides, we put great efforts on promoting production
equipment automation, datamation, and networked equipment,
such as automated chips packing machine, automated egg-yolk
pie packing machine, auto aligning machine, palletizing robot for
bottled-drinks packaging, PLC control panel and program for
equipment, and integrated central controllers of production
equipment, to reduce mistakes caused by human factors during
the production process, so as to strengthen the supervision of
food safety in every production procedures.

BT RS S BT RER

AR A B R
ERMHNEEEESE  HMAET
BABRM I ERRZEE > W BRIEIRIRIR
EHGHRABRRET AERR
A BRAPOBEHRES B
BB~ BT BRE BRPIHETTSVER o IESh
FEESREMEHEMRFEIHL
MTRAEE > WEIRE S IR HAERS
R~ AINAIACEE ~ BT R R e IR
TEZ > DRRERREHF—TR
ARAER -

ERIEBECHE > ROANDARES
EE7 > HYRHEEE TSRS
BERALE  HYHREURE SRR
& HEREWMNEESRETHES
F o REHN  AEBRELEEMR

mEEFREM

S EBREEE
FEEBEEREEBETNERE
BEEIF  FRAHEFEENRIZEER
ETRSKRERERE > RN _F
TERNIEBEEXRBEEDE B
BAE ~ MRIEEHE > MER BET
B EREREBEEE - BEHER
1o B B AR RR IR I T - SR PLC
ERERKRIEF  EERBERTE
Lo DB EEBRETHRABEER
BRI IRERR @ REMIEHSE
TERMARREZENEENE -
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Finished product inspection

Each factory of the Group has a testing center which is equipped
with world-class top-notch testing equipment that could
complete all testing projects for all raw and auxiliary materials,
food, and beverage products. The testing center at the Group’s
headquarter obtained the laboratory accreditation certificate
from China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment (CNAS), which covers 270 projects.

In addition, the Group formulated internal Annual Food Safety
Sampling Inspection Plan and sampling inspection mechanism in
accordance with Measures for the Administration of Sampling
Inspections of Food Safety (No. 11 Order of the State
Administration for Market Regulation)and GB/T 30642-2014
General Guidelines for Food Sampling Inspection. By formulating
internal sampling inspection and external sample procurement
plan, the director of the testing center determines the items,
frequency, location and quantity for sampling inspection based
on relevant safety and risk inspection projects as well as the risk
assessment of internal products, and perform risk inspection
referring to the sampling inspection items provided by the state

DALY L]
FEEBETRIIRIBAIFL > I
e E BRI R BT K T AR
FILSER R M ~ BREIET A REE  E
M2 EERAERE - EEAAERAIT
DEHAHPEGETERREAIE
B (CNAS) IR S M BERERDAIES
BET 200MEEE -

ok EEKIR(E BT 2R
BEIE) (FERERELEEEIEE
L 1158) ~ (GB/T 30642-2014 B {
IR ERIERER) » BIE T REB(E
EEmT Mgt ) FMimigigs) o
IBIBESFEEPSIEREB MMM DR
xaTE) > RIRAIFR O EEREAERE
20 & B BRI 18 B A A 3 E B R B
ST 2R E IR SR IE ~ FEEE ~ 3R
2> WEEFERER TENE
SR IE BT REREDR o IREH
A AREEEF R LTI

administration. During the reporting period, a total of 1,711
sampling inspections were conducted.

. At the beginning of each month, our customer service officers list the items that
should be sampling inspected in that month according to the plan, and notify
the QC director of each company in WeChat Groups or by email;

SHAY > BRABBRES IR ER BB MIEYIHIBEE » 1 UMY
EENIENFRNENERATNREEE;

PIBR IR . The QC director takes samples in the internal sampling area in the company

Internal Sampling

after receives the notification, and then send the samples to the Group’s testing
center by mail within 10 days.

mEETEFIBENE > AT EREETI > ITE 10 KA LLES
FH 0 B mEIERZAP o

. At the beginning of each month, our customer service officers list the items that
should be sampling inspected in that month according to the plan, and notify
the QC director of each company in WeChat Groups or by email;

BRAY > BRABBRESIRFER BRI MIEYIHIBEE » 1 UMY
EEHNIGNAFRNENEATNREEE;
ShERRBTR . The QC director purchases samples designated place after receives the

External Sample Procurement

notification, and then send the samples to the Group’s testing center by mail
within 10 days.

mE T EFIENE > HIEENMEETEERR > LE 10 RAUIEF
B i SRE R E BRI o
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As for the healthy zero-additives products, we take a much stricter
testing methods. In 2021, the Group’s testing center carried out
food safety inspection for such as acrylamide in Zero trans fat,
zero sugar, zero cholesterol, dietary fiber, propylene glycol in
pastry products, nutrients in children’s biscuits and product
nutrition labels (dietary fiber, vitamin C, etc.), heavy metal lead in
potato chips paper cans, fluorescent brighteners in paper holders
and Tetra Pak cartons, so as to manage food safety from the
source and ensure the health and safety of consumers.

Product Tracing and Recall

In order to achieve full traceability of products, the Group has
established and implemented the “Product Identification and
Traceability Control Procedures”,as well as “One Product, Once
Code” tracing system. We take measures including spray printing
organic code for each bottle of organic soybean milk and spray
printing QR code on the cartons of beverage products. We has
implemented full batch management for each product item
entering and leaving the warehouse, by which each batch is
traceable, can be traced and will be traced.

Product Tracing Chain

o 1B ) 5 0
Finished Finished Production
product Product ingredient
batch Inspection rge cords
number Record "
BEEEME RofEas S ERcklCR

During the reporting period, in the BRC system audit and 1SO
22000 food safety management system audit by a third-party
professional certification institution, the Group successfully
completed the forward and reverse tracing of products on-site
within four hours, fully demonstrating the effectiveness of the
tracing system. Meanwhile, we organize a product withdrawal
simulation drill annually to verify its suitability and effectiveness.

Raw

materials

_Inbound auxiliary’
inspection materials

records and packaging

EEISER materials
R

aRmE
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Unqualified
products

FatEm

108

In addition, according to the Administrative Measures for Food
Recalls, we have established and implemented the Product
Withdrawal Control Procedures and Non Conforming Product
Control Procedures, which include clear provisions for the
preparation for recall plans, the implementation of recall activity,
the disposal of recalled products, and corrective measures. During
the reporting period, the Group did not have any product recall.

Product recall procedure

EmBERiE

Quality Training

Based on a well-established quality management system and
process, we also attach great importance on increasing
employees” awareness on quality control and professional ability.
The Group attaches importance to promoting ideas of food safety
and quality management. With a company, workshop, production
team three-tier training mechanism, the company and workshop
coordinate with each other to carry out relevant training. New
employees are allowed to work in production posts after training
and examination. We also established educational training
records for employees received the three-tier training to improves
the quality awareness and operation level of employees, with an
aim to achieve the goal of “quality for all employees and safety for
all products”. During the reporting period, the Group assigned
inspectors from equipment department and testing center to
join the training of special equipment operators technical
examination theories and on-site practical examination held by
the administration of market regulation. We also invited the
industry experts to conduct professional training for our technical
employees.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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2.2 Product Innovation

Dali always strives to develop into an innovation-driven enterprise
by adhering to production technology reform . We have invested
in the establishment of a product R&D centre to build a R&D

2.2 EmEER
ERBARE IR A F e Eh (> % 8
B BIFEERITEN - HMRER
17 EmIFEERL  FTERERIE

innovation management center equipped with a strong R&D team B R o BIBARR A ER

and cutting-edge R&D facilities, closely working with research
institutes at home and abroad in food industry to focus on
developing new products beloved by consumers and satisfy the

Bofis t SROTIERV R 3 50 8 ~ BB RS
BEBMITEMREBEYSE > &
ARHEEEESERMER > LU

diverse and increasing needs for food and beverage from the EMZHHEERNLZTIEREBEK °

market. During the reporting period, the Group has invested
RMB69,290,000 in R&D innovation, increased 6% as compared

with last year.

Develo

WREHIR > AEBRFZAIFIRAZE
B ANRE69298 Tt BN E—F
B0 6% ©

ment and

innovative system
PR RIFES &

Product R&D
Embfs

Technological innovation

BRI

Establish and implement a complete
set of R&D processes involving
product planning, laboratory R&D,
trial production, R&D validation,
product evaluation, and product R&D
conclusion

BT ERRE N BREFE
Enstf HERE ERRi Em
B ESHERE | N — B E R ERAE

|

To meet various needs of customers at different
times, enhance the competitiveness of the
Group, and take on the leading position in
development direction in the industry through
product research and development

BIBE TR RS TRER
R PB ) 5IBTEERS A

Actively carry out independent
innovation, introduce technology
and joint venture projects, increase
investment and increase patent
application and improve patent
management

TaMRE R B A S ERMTMEE
HEEBEE AR A IR SEEEH]
R EIE

|

To improve energy conservation and emission
reduction, stabilize product quality and
improving operational efficiency through
technological innovation in order to ensure our
advantageous position in the industry
BB RN NSRENAE B R EEmE 2R
FHEEW S FRITRERHL

Dali R&D Innovation Management System

EFREAMEERER
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During the reporting period, while we actively developed new WERA > RAEEmAEENZE R
products, we also continuously upgraded existing products. In B W RETR B R ERETAHR o
addition, we have made various achievements in terms of tEoh > BeFI7E £ E R TR 5 mhER
production technology innovation. During the reporting period, BT ZIEMR - MEPA > EERI
the Group’s technology center was awarded the certificate of FROVESHEREER SRNE - 88
“Provincial Enterprise Technology Center” by the Department of BTHENERE - RREMEES
Science and Technology of Fujian Province, the Department of BBEBEEN TS EERMHO
Industry and Information Technology of Fujian Province and the AR o

Department of Finance of Fujian Province.

BEFEANZEN MEESEFESR
Dou Ben Dou Organic Soybean Milk He Qi Zheng Sparkling Herbal Tea
Major New Products R&D Cases
BB R RTH
. Launch new flavors such as yogurt flavor, pineapple flavor, cranberry flavor, Salted Egg
Black Wholewheat bread York flavored “heart-filled” pie. Sour and sweet yogurt flavor, sea salt and cheese favor
2oz s e BRI N LA K © AR« BB 22518 EARI
LROBHE S ~ MM ED © BEZ LK
Veekin Wafer biscuit . Make the wafer products more crispy and with stronger aftertaste by technology reform
Veekin Bi{LBIES BRI ERCERENR » kSR

. Launch flower fresh-cut products based on flower blossom seasons in Spring and

Summer and upgrade new flavors such as Rose and Lemon, Jasmine and white peach,

Fresh-cut potato chips

Green tea and plum,etc.
AER REBEEELE > HHICBATESR  FHARMONK » SEBUREENK S B8k
IR/ EE%REER

. Develop products including truffle paste pull-apart bread, small package bread,
Daliyuan waffles, pineapple flavored half-cut toast, meat floss and seaweed flavored
E-commerce customization bread according to the special needs from e-commerce channel to satisfy the needs of
ErES the consumers shopping online
RIEE A M AR REAZE TIMEFEES «/NORMEE ~ EREZERS
FUHEIRENK - N EEREESER  MEEBBYARNT

2021 Existing Product Innovation Cases

—E_—FEREREIMARTE
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A new bacteria-free
sparkling line was put in
use which adopts drying
sterilization technology to
reduce the use of
sterilizers as well as
energy and water
consumption
MHEESVSRAER
»IRFARRERRE AT AL
TIHEEIREREREE T B
FERKFE

Technology Innovation

5% 4 &1 R

Make the baked products
fresher by adopting
deoxidation and constant
pressure preservation
technology in separately
packed baked food and
bulk baked food
EBELEHIEE mAAREE
HIE R mERRNRE B
IREFRAT G EME
i)

By the technology of
pre-sterilization for black
wholewheat, pollution of
bacillus in the black
wholewheat has been
reduced to ensure the
quality and shelf life of
black wholewheat bread
BRI E AT
AL BT RER SR
MRS REE/|EERE
mmBHRER

Intellectual Properties

The Group highly values the transformation and application of
innovation achievements as well as the protection of intellectual
property rights, and strictly abides by the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other laws and regulations regarding intellectual
property rights, and improves our intellectual property protection
and management system constantly. In 2021, Dali has acquired
31 new patent applications, 19 authorized patents and owns
1,686 effective registered trademarks.

In 2021, the group has comprehensively strengthened the
intellectual property management system. From the control of
the front-end review, application and research stage, to the
discussion and verification with external experts, lawyers and
third-party institutions, we achieve the full process, internal, and
external bilateral management of intellectual property protection.
On the basis of the existing Management System of Rights
Protection and Anti-Counterfeiting of Dali Food Group, we have
created the Model Material of Administrative Infringement
Complaint Materials, and established a long-term anti-
counterfeiting and rights protection mechanism with the Simple
Manual of Rights Protection Cooperation as the connecting
process.

Controlling the cleanness
of the wafer workshop
and maintaining constant
temperature and
humidity, to avoid water
transferring in the process
of wafer products and
make them more crispy
BIBRCERRR P EE
HIERNERITRMR Bt
RECERBENTIARZ
IR B IRE R
{CEmBIBERRE

W EE
SEESEERAIFRESCNER
DUREN A EERE VR B » BRASEST(h
EANREMBESFFE)  (PEARH
MEEIZEE) ~ (PEARENBEZEE
R SMMERMBREIEELE >
e S ERERENTESE - =
T —F o FENFIGER R
WiISHER 19 > RetER B MG
MEES= 1,68618 ©

TR —F AEEEEMNER T AH
EREERR > UAREE - #H5F
MHIPEERREE > BB ERE
BD ~ =S AEREI MIEREE - MEIR
HERMRENEZRE - WINDEEE
o RMERAN(EN RRERE
T REENE)ER L RIFT (T
BUS ISR EE A A i) - M LA CHE
RIGIEE S T EatiEmniE 2
3T RAUHFT RS
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Measures for Intellectual Properties Management

MEEERSE

With production companies across the country as the points, their radiation areas as the planes, a rigorous
investigation network is formed which is mainly comprised by the visiting of sales representatives who know
the market and sometimes the investigation by mediation lawyers

NEE&MEEAR RF UHBNEEAE U T EH 5 R RHEBRSEEN AT LR REMIvEREE

112

A8 T A R R ARAR

Discuss with contracted law office and try to stop Internet Infringement by mailing a layer’s letter to the
e-commerce platform on the basis of the E-Commerce Law, so as to address the difficulties of online evidence

taking, high cost and long cycle of right protection

SE1FEPEa ER LB FREBE) FEEA KR UEF(REMR)G

AR HAEREE R B R AN S R B R S

BT oA RS EETS

Establish and improve the Group’s trademark, patent, copyright database, and formulate application and

maintenance process accordingly to achieve full tracing

R T SR P AR A R SRR R M E AR FR A MEE AR BIR 2RI

In addition, we continuously increase all employee’s awareness
to intellectual properties management. During the reporting
period, with production companies across the country as the
points, their radiation areas as the planes, we provided legal
knowledge training for the standing vice directors of production
companies, especially trained them on the basic knowledge of
intellectual properties infringement, then the standing vice
directors performed a second-tier training for sales in each
production companies.
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2.3 Nutrition and Health 23 EEHERE
As a food supplier who strives to create wonderful quality of life EBRINABEEFEEFEER
for consumers, Dali has deeply cultivated the food market and BB REER  EFLBEEITEY
continuously promoted the output of delicious food with high- BORMEBERME  FEEEARE
quality raw materials, low calories, low sugar, high nutrition and HEME - BE2E - BE - 2EE
high freshness, so as to ensure the health of consumers in an all- SMEENENREREY » 25 AR
round way. [EHEE SIS o
In 2021, based on the actual situation of the enterprise and the TET—F BAENRTCESRER
market development trend, we continued to strengthen the NMmBERES  FENRESERE
development and promotion of nutritional and health products, DEMNASNTEE  SEIATR
including Dou Ben Dou sugar free series, He Qi Zheng sugar free BRI~ BEMEERS « RIERE
herbal tea, Mei Bei Chen short shelf life bread, etc., so as to FEEE SRR A HEEIRM
continuously provide consumers with products with natural KRS EEEENER o
nutrition.

. Simplified formula includes only strictly selected Northeastern Non GM

soybeans and water;

EC AR - EAIEERILIFERERANT K ;

. Zero sucrose, Zero cholesterol, Zero trans fat;
OINFENE » 0REREIER » 0 R =UAEAA ;
Dou Ben Dou Pure Soybean Milk . A box of sugar free soy milk has less calories than an apple;
BAEMAEN —AEET R —EEE ;
. The product is rich in natural dietary fiber conducive to human health; It also

contains high-quality plant protein and y Aminobutyric acid.

EMaBEENRANBIR ARRENESEE ; AN EEENA
MEBMyRETE -
. The product focuses on the concept of “zero sugar, zero calorie and 0 fat”. On

the basis of retaining the authentic herbal tea formula, the flower and plant leaf
materials extracted from boiling are added to improve the taste of herbal tea

He Qi Zheng sugar free herbal tea
EEMELERS

while taking into account the nutritional value.
EmEtT lotEo-REREofEM) & > TREERRREHELR L > 11
AT HRBREBRNIEEEME  ERARRORNESFREEEEE -

. The product adheres to the brand concept of “fresh, delicious and diverse”.
With a shorter shelf life, it is fresher than other products.
EEGmERFT [HrEF ~ 320k~ 24 WRIBES > REMERRERER -8
A o

Mei Bei Chen short shelf life bread
EIERERER

2021 Nutritious and Healthy Product Demonstration

R -FERRRIEERTA
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2.4 Customer Service 24 ERR

The group adheres to the concept of providing quality life for KAERRTAHEERHERELEEN
consumers and treats every customer with heart. While strictly BR ALBRE—UERRF - KT
abiding by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the BRETF(PEARKEMBE HEE
Protection of Consumers’ Rights and Interests, we have further miREE)NER > E—FRETE
improved the Working System for Handling Customer Complaints BRI (ELRFEETIEFE) » U
within the Group to carry out fine management of customer RBEARIZH R PR FETRAE
complaints with standardized processes. During the reporting BIE - REBR > AMFENIRRME
period, we continuously explored and optimized the communication CHEAZBRINHEENBBREREE I
channels with key customers and consumers, and improved BIEZEANERETEEREMN UM
management based on customers’ opinions to meet customers’ ABEPMEEE o

expectations

. Besides the existing 400 hotline and contact of the service debarment in each
production base, we newly added an official account. Consumers can follow
the official account and directly reach the responsible department of the Group
to make complaints or give feedback

FRIRA RV 400 BaE R & £ EEMBIARF A PIEEE - IR T ARIRSE

Consumers HEEBEMIARRTERNRIEEABHPIETRAABER
HEE o
. From the original sales team, we selected and built a operation team. We

collect and organize relevant feedback by interacting with consumers in outlets.
TEFRZRAVIHE R EEET > RORERIL —ZESEE > BB SR
HEEHETLDY  WEKBERFREER

. In 2021, we further improved our key account management mechanism. We
fully implement a vertical management from the Group’s top management to
Regional management and to branch company management, so as to build a

Key Accounts periodic communication mechanism with each level of key accounts and

AEE quickly handle complaints and feedback from them

R FE—PRETARPERRT > HEREEEIAEERRE

BIESAREEELEBETEEEERM  BATREERITEILILS

HAMBYBIEHS]  REMARREFRFNERRE

Customer Communication Channels
ERBBERE
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“Potato Chips Flower”Product Optimization and Upgrade

In 2021, according to the feedback of consumers’ shopping
experience, the Group launched Hua Yan fresh-cut potato chips
to create an exclusive visual symbol “potato chip flower”.

The upgraded products strengthen the unique mark of Hua Yan
series products. The color contrast technique forms a strong
visual impact, and the bright and eye-catching color matching is
easier to get the attention of consumers. According to the
demand feedback from consumers, we carried out unified image
construction for the main stores across the country, form the
layout of industrial vertical promotion market from the unified
image display in terms of image and vision, so that consumers
have a deeper experience of the new experience after product
upgrading, and formulate three sets of different display image
methods according to the different type and actual situation of
stores in order to adapt to the situation of stores in various
regions and systems.

#%2X2m #£1.5X1.5m

At the same time, the Group has also established a sound
complaint and feedback mechanism. From the early stage of
complaint investigation, to the rectification and settlement in the
medium stage, and then to the follow-up and return visit in the
later stage, the group has put forward clear management
measures to minimize the impact on customers and actively
improve according to customers’ feedback.

MBR1t) EmEEHR

TEBEC—F AEEHEHEERY
RRERIIRERIBT - HEHIEERMTIZER
TEEBREFME BRIE

TR ERBIET IEERYERE
BENRE » BEF AT AARINGREDR
g BRERNEVEREZNES
HEENRT - ZFIHEHEENT
KEE > HEEFERETR—TR
B RERE LE—BT KRS
FREXEERETSNME  ©HF
BEENWERTREREREERD
B2 WA RBEERMERMPIEE
BV A # PSR R R B RIS R
FIE=ETEBRITRAEI

#L1X1m

EF > RERMRI T ERFAR
BRI > ERTHARY IR AR > BT HE
BB ARR - BEIRIARIREDS) -
IR T BRI EIENNE - UEKIZ
BRI D HERIERNTE > WIRE
R RETRERIE
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Complaint Feedback Mechanism

iR R ER
Complaint investigation Rectification solution Follow-up
ERFERE BeapgR EREE] 25

® Customer Service Department
conducts investigations based on
the content of customers’

® Customer Service Department
communicates with customers on
the response and handling

® After the implementation of
solutions, the Customer Service
Department will take follow-up

complaints solutions of the responsible action and complete a customer
= EREEREE R IBRAS department satisfaction questionnaire
=G B RIRB A SESPINEENEE HRBIEE TR RSEHEITER

BhRARREE
® Solutions will be organized for
implementation by the responsible

® Customer Service Department will
return the customer satisfaction
questionnaire to the responsible
department for filing
BRERBIHREAREERAETRE
EIEERPIALFHE

® For substantiated complaints, a
completed customer complaint
transfer form will be transmitted
to the responsible department department upon acceptance by
HRBERBEHNRFEHBER customers
REFEIREE > mEESPIHE ZR &&ﬁ@éﬁ%ﬁ > B fEERPY

BB
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In the promotional process, we always adheres to a responsible
attitude. The Group implemented all its promotional activities
strictly in accordance with the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law. They have multiple
levels of review mechanism including internal team reviews
involving legal department, R&D department and QC
department,as well as external media inspection, to ensure a
compliant and legal promotional activity with accurate and
reliable information that can be delivered to the public.

In addition, we have also taken strict measures to protect the
privacy of customers and consumers. We have established
corresponding privacy protection measures. The designated
department shall uniformly manage the relevant customer data,
arrange special personnel to file and archive the customer
information, and require that no employee could consult, forward
screenshots, share and disclose the privacy of customers and
consumers without application. In addition, we will regularly carry
out personal information risk impact assessment for consumers
to ensure the privacy and safety of each consumer.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

FEHBET > RIBERFEES
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EMPOWERING TALENTS AND CARING FOR PEOPLE

Upholding our philosophy of being “people-oriented”, the Group always
regard our employees as the growth engine for corporate sustainability
development. We are committed to setting up a well-established
employment mechanism to provide diversified career advancement
opportunities that concur with our corporate development, creating
favorable opportunities and environment for our employees to enhance
their skills and comprehensive qualifications on the basis of a promised
living, safety and dignity.

3.1 Talent Recruitment

The Group regard our employees as a vital part for our corporate
development. We strictly adhere to the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Labor Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China. We have a well-established system in relation to the
recruitment, cultivation and shortlisting of talents, ensuring that
the process of recruitment and employment of each candidate is
lawful and fair. Meanwhile, we offer an equal employment
opportunity, forbidding any form of discrimination against or
unfair treatment of any employee in relation to their recruitment,
promotion, training and welfare, regardless of their skin colour,
nationality, race, age, gender, religious beliefs or disabilities, if
any. In addition, we have labour contracts signed with our
employees according to the law, ensuring that there is no forced
labour and child labour.

During the reporting period, we organized a number of
recruitment activities, both online and offline, through multiple
platforms. We worked with several universities nearby, providing
an internship platform for university students with talents.

< oy W

Online Recruitment Adverts

RLIERES

3.
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AFHREE - ODRET

FEE UASE B ~EEBRIES
THEACEBERIFELERNGHZR -
HPBIRBUITENRERE 22
BRIENBEEREE > TR HEDEME
BEGHHE AREETLEE - L RER
BER EEHRIEANNIES B TRAEN
RO RO ERIRE o

AFA RS

FEREETRACEERNEEE
R e WAREET(TEARKNEA
BEE)  (PEARAIBESHEE
)~ (REAREMBETEE) R (F
EARAMBEMGREE) FARE
Mo BIUTENATBEREEER
HIE - EERESEAERENETREE
RRERERT o B > WIFIRGET
BETHE &7 BlMNENFS
H FmE® - EE - Bk FiL
MR~ RBUE B BEERR » 191R M
TEOMERS > ZIHERZIRIE
RN ATFHEIE L5 > HFIEET
AR BBERE > HAERFIZHEH
EEETINTA -

3.1

HREHN - RMEGEREREE L& T8
EEMZREREEE > THEFE
ERBNEE > HEFABLERMHM

MEBTE -

Offline Base Established
BTRIEREMN
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During the reporting period, our Jinan branch also cooperated
with the local social security bureau, offering more than 300 job
opportunities for the local population living in poverty,
representing our commitment to fulfilling the Group’s social
obligations.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 40,745
employees. The charts below show the distribution of our
employees by type:

Total number of employees
by gender (number of employees)

BB SHETHEEH(A)

19,028

21,717
| [ |
Male Female
B 74

Total number of employees by
job level (number of empoyees)

BRIBAB DS THEEH(A)

805

9,823

30,117
| | [ |
Senior Intermediate  Frontline
management management employees
BREERE iR EIERE g
—RET

WERR > BREOATERZEM AL
B&E > AtEERACRMIE
EAI300% AKX > KNI5015 T AEH
Bt g EEREH o

HE_Z_—F+"_HBA=+—H &
EFEHERWET 40,745\ > 12 &4E
BATRERW A

Total number of employees by
by age (number of employees)

BRERBSNETHEH(A)

428

7,709

16,180 16,428
[ | |
30 and below 41-50
305E AT (B305%) 41-505%
| |
31-40 51 and above

31-40%  S1mBE (B515%)

Total number of employees by region
(number of employees)

RUER SRS THEE(A)

3,498

4,175
’ 3,536

4,332 5,434

B East Chinaregion Northwest China region
ERME FibtE

[l South China region Southwest China region
ERtE it

@ Central Chinaregion [l Northeast China region
FErhith® ESslnulE

[l North China region
FEEE
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group respect the efforts made and value created by our
employees and are committed to providing employees with
competitive remuneration in the market. We set out in the Human
Resources Management Rules a comprehensive remuneration
structure and welfare and protection system. We also adjust the
wages and allowances of our employees in accordance with
indicators such as their professional skills, potential and quality,
and performance of work in a timely manner. We encourage our
employees to reeducate themselves, enhancing their self-
development and personal value alongside with our corporate
development. In addition, we highly value the sense of belonging
of our employees to the Company as well as their recognition. We
secure the general benefits of our employees in accordance with

V A
Nt F
REBREES NS TWEIHMEM
BABE > ZONAETRHAERS

BHF 0N - RAE(ANER
EIEFIE) AR T T ERFEE
HERMNEERE > RREENETH
FERKGE S BEKT  BEBRERFE
BRERETENMR  SBETH
HE > BECEERNAKERER
BERMEABE © IS HM+2E
RETHEENRBRNDER > &
REREE TERENOER » E—
T B TIRMERN LIRS -

the law, and provide them with further support in life and work.

Statutory Benefits
EEEF

Social insurances and the housing
fund

hke—&

Statutory leave

= EERH

Paid leave (annual leave, home
leave, marriage leave, maternity
leave and other vacations)

ENMER (R ~ 3R~ 18]~
ERE)

Other Benefits
EIMEF

Free physical examination

BB

Transportation allowances, meal allowances, night shift allowances,
overtime allowances, etc.

AL ~ NRIRAL ~ IR ~ INPLERGE

Providing welfare supermarket to meet the daily needs of staff
REEFET > MREBTHEME SR

Providing expatriates with assignment allowances and home leave
AINKA BIRMINKEEL - FRERIR

Applying for working and living allowances for employees with degrees
and above who come to work in Quanzhou

AR R L2 A S2REMN TIFREE L ERHE)

Applying for high level talent allowances for people who meet the
requirement of the county and city

AT EMEFRTERNAT RRSERAT KAHE
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3.2 Training and Development 3.2 HEIEERE
We firmly believe that our employees are the backbone of Dali; HAREE 8 L2 EMNNTR
the rapid development of Dali would not have occurred without MEAT o ERIMRIRE BREA S L
the support of each of them. We explore and utilize talents among BTITH%E - RMEBUE TP
our employees, which benefits both the employees and the AT WKERR > KMBRE TH
Company. We always try to perfect our employee training system, ENHEHE - M TETEET
increase the working quality of our employees, explore their BIIFE > REEIIEES  Z1F
potential and enhance our team chemistry. Meanwhile, we set BIE  HaBxER - B &
out development plans for outstanding talents, activate their PRBEBmAEESANAHERERE » ¥
subjective agency, so that more outstanding talents may emerge. HETHNTWMEEEY > BESHAS
During the reporting period, the Group conducted trainings with REEMmL - MEHR > KEBFET
various contents, enhancing employees from different job levels LEENEINAS » BREHRE ~ &
and positions in all aspects. Bl /e 1 Y B TR 5 Eas IRV
Fo
Training scope Training Content
1EEIEEE ENRE
v Induction training
New employee training N -t
B TIE:N v One-on-one training with tutors
v EEEs—H—E
v Production safety training
v et EE
v Food safety training
v BmZEE
v’ Fire safety training
v EBZEEE
Internal themed training v Transport safety training
P BRI v RIBREE
v’ Integrity and anti-corruption training
v BERRE
v auto-food packaging machine usage skill training
v BmBEEEKEEET
v Plant-based yogurt production training
v RN B RS
v' Middle and senior management skill enhancement
Training conducted with external parties v HEEEERERT
RS E (R R BN v Occupational quality training
v BEZEE
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Meanwhile, we encourage self-development and reeducation of B ZMEBEEETBHEREMN
employees. In 2021, the Group cooperated with several external BYE & > AEERBHA
professional institutions to provide reeducation opportunities for HMEREETRRETE » BEIE T ARE
our employees. To encourage them, we set up an award bonus of THRHE > HREEE2BHIER2E
RMB3,000 for employees who completed the full-time junior KB Ti—R 46T 52/ A K 3,000
college education. JT e
During the reporting period, the Group’s total number of trained BREBRN REBEIBARE
employees reached 51,773, while the total number of training 51,773 AZR > 4B 353/ 8 165,387/
hours reached 165,387 hours, with a training covering rate of B > el BEZEE42% o
94.2%.

Training covering rate of employees Training covering rate of employees

by job level by gender

RBGBSMETIRNEEZE BENBSMETITNEEZE

1.24%

21.47% 44%

56%
77.29%

| | | | |
Senior Intermediate Frontline Male Female
management management employees s M
BREIEE iR EIERE g
—#FET
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Training hours per capita by job level

B AR B 3 B9 A 3935 8 B 2X

10.01

I 4,01 3.91

Training hours per capita by gender

B BB 5 B9 A S35 B B

4.27

Senior  Intermediate  Frontline

management andjunior  employees

management
=R iR Big
EIEE EEE —#8T

In addition, in order to enhance the Group’s talent echelon and
the structure of the shortlisting, promotion and development of
our talents, we have established a clear path to promotion for our
employees in accordance with the promotion management
program of the Human Resources Management Rules, where
promotion conditions and job responsibilities of each position
are set out clearly together with a fair assessment system,
providing competent and outstanding talents with good
promotion paths and development directions. At the same time,
the Group assess our employees from different levels in multiple
aspects, where employees with the highest scores are first to be
promoted, while employees with low scores are given chances to
improve. Every employee can thus find a position most suitable
to them, which fits our principle of being ‘people-oriented’.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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3.3

Care and Communication

Insisting on the principle of being “people-oriented”, Dali strives
to establish a friendly and stable employment relationship with
our employees. By establishing diverse communication channels,
including but not limited to face-to-face communication, WeChat
groups, questionnaires, telephone interviews, we carefully listen
to our employees about the difficulties they face during their daily
work, and respond to their demands in a timely manner, wherein
the connection between employees and the leadership team is
strengthened, and a comprehensive, fair, equal and just platform
is provided for employees to participate in corporate
management. In 2021, we set up an Internet communication
platform run by a specialist whose job is to provide information
on the Internet and respond to trending questions and doubts of
our employees and instruct them to express their demands
reasonably and objectively. We also utilized our forefront status
as a party member and labor union member to report to our
superiors the demands of our employees and promote to our
subordinates our policies, thus protecting the fundamental
interests of our employees.

3.3

RZ R

EFREER TUABE ES
HAOREE TERMBIEE RIFHRE
RRE - WABBBREZTERER
RiE > oEEEEER  EF B
BE  BrERFE LN - DEIEE
ETHERARIEPBIIRRE - RE
REEE THEENFR » WELILIBIZH
TERINSRE T HRBEE 2 FAYHE -
A/ETEIFZ2RAGEERRMEE2E
RF~FESRENTR 2" —
Fo HIMERTEMEBEETS
MEASSMEENSRER  RER
BRI TRACBIZARE ~ BERFEE » 515
BIFHEERK®RECSENNES
Ko HFFRDERES - TEEER
SRR > M ERREBTR6E [
TMHFBRE R 0 B2 EEE
KRB TRIRAF o

Main Communication Channels for Employees

BIXERARE

Face-to-face communication: EI¥E 33 :

Face to face communications with our employees are held irregularly.

FEMSMEES T RGBS

Questionnaire: #3535

Questionnaires are given to employees irregularly, in which employees reflect on the difficulties they may face during

work so that they can be dealt with.

TG ETHEMAENS EE TH T FEERAHEET RETA T AR

Telephone interviews: BiEEI5H:

Employees who have resigned are interviewed on phone to understand the reasons of their resignation and problems

within the Compan so as to improve and innovate.

AR RERE T T R RRE R A B R R M RRIE T eUER o

WecChat group: f#{S8:

WeChat groups are established, so that problems raised by our employees are dealt with one by one. If certain

problems cannot be dealt with, explanation and information will be given.
BiuEE SETRENBEE—ETERI EZERTNAE T EERE

Internet communication platform: EEi4EBETE:

Demands related to the interests of our employees are collected in order to solve any conflicts among employees.

WE R IR TH R E S ERRR T e
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Given our diversified communication channels, during the
reporting period, we upgraded and optimized the logistics
canteen in aspects including meal quality, canteen hygiene,
service attitude, as well as dormitory hygiene and comfort based
on the feedback of our employees to provide them with a more
comfortable working environment. In addition, we began to offer
free meals to our employees, and renovated and upgraded their
accommodation. We also introduced new shuttle bus routes,
added a new movie theater and karaoke room, and held quarterly
staff events to ensure that our employees are happy to work at
Dali.

S bRBERERR Y £
BEETRERER  MREHREE
HEEERRDE  BIEFE -« R
BRE UEREamENSEES A
ETFREL  AETIRHBFEN
TEIREE o IbHh » BB ETHE
NAREE EBENRABETIEEE
TBIRIE « BRHPIITERRAR BTG
HEREHOKE - BFEEHREET
XEMEE > BHORFREIETENT
R ERIEERL o

Accommodation renovation

ESEREE

New public toilet
EAHKFE

-

Hand dryer Security door added at each accommodation entrance
RFHEL SIEES ADMKKHEM
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We also pay attention to the balance between employees’ life and
work. We focus on helping our employees to get closer to each
other as well as enhancing their sense of belonging to the
Company. In 2021, in strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations, while providing employees with the according

welfare benefits, we actively carried out various cultural and
sports activities based on the needs of employees, such as
employee appreciation meetings, sports competitions, festivals,
employee birthday parties and reunion activities, fully
demonstrating the Company’s emphasis of humanistic care.

EEIRLETE

appreciation meeting

FEBFEIREAE

Mid-Autumn Festival

BRI S

bakery event

sk G K EED

In order to examine the effectiveness of various care measures,
during the reporting period, we conducted an employee
satisfaction survey, focusing on five dimensions: company
management, work aspects, salaries and benefits, training and
personal development, and living arrangements such as meals
and accommodations, so as to understand our employees’
opinions in all aspects. According to the findings of the survey, the
satisfaction level of our employees in 2021 is significantly higher
than thatin 2020.

Basketball competition

Employee birthday party
ETXHE

BMTFEEETHERTEZENT
> BERHIA RS T 2 RRYERRE -
B THEENDRER -~ BB
“ET % RMERERAERER
R EAB T REBEENTEN
FE > ILERBIRR > BiEHES
RS METREARE 88
BRE HEIZY BEI4EHEEE
% RRRIREFHN AR -

Patriotic song singing contest

BTATREIEE

Team building activity

A

ATRBEIEE TRIEEREENY
B HATRSPANEETEIRR
ERAE  #HHATEE S TEH®E -
HEMERN  BHIMEARE BE
MEBEEELERBEHE » 251
THRETDE - #AEHERER —F
T FETEREREER_SEF
BEER -
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Comparison between employee satisfaction levels
in 2020 and 2021
—E_EFER-_F-_—FRAIREEBL

46.94%

45.71%

33.33%

19.73%

14.29%

Very satisfied  Relatively satisfied Average
FFEWMR EEBmE —R
| |
2020 2021

The overall employee turnover rate of Dali in 2021 was 5.96%, the details of which are as follows:
TECFREN S TERRAER596%  SHADEMT ¢

Turnover rate by gender Turnover rate by age

BRI 2R TRERER/R BRERIDHREER/R

6.74%
5.58% 5.70% 5.82%

6.30%
5.62%
Male Female 30 and 31-40 41-50 50 and
B oy below 31-40% 41-50% above
30K 505% K&
T Mk
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Turnover rate by region

2kl bsg:opie S opt

8.3% 8.2%
6.8%
5.8%
5.2%
4.1%
3.2%

East South  Central ~ North  Northwest Southwest Northeast
China China China China China China China
region  region  region  region  region  region  region

EH £ Eh £yl il ] 3l

& & & & & & il

Dali’s Employee Turnover Rate by Category in 2021
B —FENSENSTIRAE

3.4 Health and Safety

The Group are highly concerned with the safety and occupational
health of our employees during the procedures of production and
operation. We strictly comply with laws and regulations including
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Fire Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases. We have formulated several internal regulations, such
as Safety Emergency Response and Control Procedures and Work
Environment Control Program, in order to formalize and normalize
the health and safety of our employees during work. We continue
to optimize our safety management system, clarify the
responsibilities of each unit, and set up safety management
personnel in both factories and branches to thoroughly
implement employee health and safety management.

3.4 BEHEZZ

FEFRFLEECEBRETSEERS
Thme2ElBERE > HARRKE
TCREARHAMBERZ2EEE)
(HRZEAREMBEDEPED ~ (REA
RHEMBIBERGGE) EERE
R BIE T (EaERMNEEEGRE
) A TAERIBIERIZF) TR ER
EfE  RETREARETFERIE
b~ SR#AE - HATEBELZ2EE
RIERER > PR EARE > TIM
MO RBEREZEEEAR » RA
REEITREZE2EETI(F-
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The Group adhered to the production safety principle of “safety
first, prevention-oriented and comprehensive treatment”,
thoroughly fulfill the responsibility of safety production and
manage the daily production activities. We established a safe
production environment and adopted the “5S'” site management
approach to conduct a risk check on our production sites. We also
set up risk maps to strategically eliminate any existing safety
hazards. In addition, we have established a production safety
emergency response team to deal with any safety issues in a
timely manner.

In 2021, the Group further increased the investment in safety
protection facilities by upgrading employee protective
equipment, optimizing the working environment for employees,
investigating workplace safety hazards, setting up eye-catching
signs in dangerous places, regularly publicizing rules, regulations
and operating procedures on occupational disease protection on
publicity boards in factory areas. We also further standardized
employee occupational health inspection and file management,
regularly spot-checked whether each company has put in place
the protocols of emergency responses, so as to protect
production and life safety in all aspects.

In 2021, the Covid-19 pandemic was less severe than it was in
2020, but the situation remained critical. In the face of the
pandemic, we did not lose focus. We have adopted a
standardized management style while paying attention to the
trends, risk level and local policies in relation to the outbreak in
each region. During the reporting period, no Covid-19 case was
found in the Group.

“5S” refers to (Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke).
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BAUTZ2E— BhAE - HFE
BB NZEEERLHBES B
BTZ2LESES > HABEEE
BETEE - RMBERERZE2EE
IRIR 0 B/ sy MIGEEZE > HE
ESMETZ2AREE > ERTE
BHE ) > R EENZE2RBET
A EERIEERR o L5 > IR T
TREEERDE 0 REFHHEN
LR EETRE

TEBECF AEEE-TIMAT R
ZERMRA > BBARETH
EEE S BEEITIFRE 8L
EEFZ2RE > ERRBARERE
BiRH > THReEERENEEEM
BERERRERE ~ RIFRE
WiE—SREE THERERERIE
FEE > THMERREREREE
LB EHINAESERE > 25 (R
PEAELERS o

B RN B BEAN
BT > EEBHARIE - WEE
BEREER RURECEES
E > BRBES HEEDE « ARE
BULUR EHOBEE © BRESABPS AR
SRR B R A -

55 5 (Z832 (Seiri) ~ E1E (Seiton) » ;5 R (Seiso) ~ 7&
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Covid-19 prevention and control measures of Dali Group

ENEEREEBRHTERE

. Information about Covid-19 prevention measures was circulated regularly, while employees were required to come to
work in a health state with proper protection, including wearing masks correctly, maintaining personal hygiene and
disinfecting their hands regularly.

EHETHEEE » BRETHMER L - MUrEAR®E » ERFEASRCOSE  EIREAEE  MRFHHEE -
Anti-pandemic materials, including but not limited to masks, thermometers, protective gears and sanitizers, were
stored amply. Isolation rooms must fulfill the requirements of the local anti-pandemic policies, and professional
workers were hired to maintain and disinfect the rooms.

MEFHEMERE > BRYESENSE  2RE « ER  HENS > [RREEEREZREEMMHEER > LHF
NHEENDHS o

Lockdown management was strictly implemented. Body temperature checking stations and isolation stations were set
up, with recycling bins for used masks in each area. The masks were disposed of in a non-hazardous manner.
BASBEHHANEE » RUBRRSHAIRHEL > SeENEREOSEWE » f—IEFRSEEIE -

. People dining must bring their own utensils and eat in a less crowded place. Kitchen waste should be recycled

collectively.

ERAEANEBETRATEIABREERBNIZMAE » EEHURA—EIUERE -

The cafeteria regularly made herbal tea for each workshop, which helped prevent Covid-19; logistics workers shall
disinfect the workshops from all angles regularly — in the morning, afternoon and at night — and at the same time
ensure good ventilation.

BEECHAZBEMNEDGZRSE  BIABRPMEHRRES S IEIEABREFETIE -

. External personnel and vehicle management: strengthen the control of external individuals entering the factory and
reduce non-essential visits. People who need to enter the factory must provide the health code as required, wear
masks throughout the process, accept the body temperature test, and follow the sanitation procedures. Individuals
coming from high or medium risk regions would be denied entry.

SMRANEEEEIR | NARINEABARERE - BOIENBENFFT o HEERMN A SRERZHEERN > 2I2ME
OS> #ZEBRRA > BUPEELFE - HEsHRRME A S AR

. We cooperated with the local prevention and control measures and arranged for the designated hospitals for

vaccination, where all our employees would carry out their Covid-19 tests and get vaccinated.

BEMEROMERN > KFfEERREERR 0 SRR TETRRIRAREREE o

o

amany BRANS | peee .

¥4 B X & ENO

T
&

AmDE BEAA  BRs R

2ok )
2
- 4
ic
&
&

Graph: anti-pandemic signs in factories Graph: disinfecting vehicles entering the factories
! BE B ERAEIT P ABERHES
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Safety production training

We are constantly striving to enhance the safety awareness of our
employees. It is our goal that our employees attain a
comprehensive awareness of safety and health. We have created
a systematic employee safety education and training process,
with a three-tier training system covering factory, workshop and
shift work. This training system has been implemented in all
dimensions, as new employees must undergo training and pass
the examinations before they can start working. In 2021, each
subsidiary organized a number of trainings according to our
training plan, with training contents covering Production Safety
Training, Position Safety, Equipment Safety Talks and Drills,
Emergency Handling Methods, and Workshop Production Safety
Precautions. The trainings covered all employees of the Group,
with an annual participation number of 60,000. In addition, we
have conducted regular drills and exercises on fire safety issues,
and invited experts from the Public Security Bureau, fire-fighting
department and other related units to the Company from time to
time to conduct lectures to ensure that all relevant individuals
always stay vigilant.

Fire safety training
L4 EFEREN THPAR 2

As of December 31, 2021, the Group lost 6,380 workdays due to
work-related injuries and had no work-related fatalities during
the period from 2019 to 2021. Regarding the work-related injuries
that have already occurred, we have analyzed the entire course of
events in the injury cases and have immediately rectified the
potential risk points to prevent similar situations from happening
again.
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BRAUTEHR NN NBEINZEE
# BRETIZ2RBEEHNEEY
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W=FI > 2HUETEE » M8
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T —F > ENFREREEIIEE
BTS2 HEI BIlRNEHE
(Z2EEFID  (BUZE R

BRUEz2ER) (BSEMHEEMN
FEV(EEZR2EEEIRFE)E
HEEEEAEEREREET > 2
HAHMEFENHBEAR IS
PEEnZeMEREERERNER
FIRBRITAE » NEHBBLRL ~ B
ZHEMBEUABEARTHREES
BERSERAEEEEBZO

Transport safety training

prd kel

(EZE—F+ZA=+—H &
EERTITEEKLTIIEREN0K > 1
TE-NECE T —EHBRERER
THRTEHF - HHEEKQHIBNTEER
% B HRGBEBRERE
ERETT RBREETT DTN EE DY > B
LIS RBREIR
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LOW CARBON AND GREEN PRODUCTION CARBON
EMISSIONS AND GREEN PRODUCTION INITIATIVES

Pursuing economic prosperity in an environmental-friendly manner has
become a key topic of universal interest. The Group always regards
green production as one of its mainstays of operation. We have
continued strengthening our management measures for reducing
energy consumption and emissions on basis of compliance with the
regulatory regime for environmental protection. We strive to explore the
use of clean energy, cause the shift towards lower carbon emissions
mode in various operating facets, thereby transforming the Group into a
leading corporation in terms of energy-saving and environmental-
friendly.

We strictly comply with environmental protection laws and regulations,
including the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Environmental
Protection Law, the PRC Law on Evaluation of Environmental Effects,
the PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
the PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the PRC
Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Wastes Pollution, and the
PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution
Caused by Solid Wastes. We actively push forward the development of
environmental management system and the improvement of such
regime, with an aim to reduce the impact on environment by our
operational activities and create a sustainable operation model. As of
December 31, 2021, all our plants have attained I1SO 14001
authentication on environmental management system.

In conjunction with the formation of a purpose-driven management
system to promote closed-loop management and effective
enhancement in green production development, the Group has set out
environmental targets and implemented effective focus managementin
four aspects namely carbon emissions, wastes reduction, energy
consumption and efficiency on use of water, so that our environment-
related performance level could be further enhanced.

4.

(REKIRMR > BBEE

BEERCNAZHEHAMEINESZS
B AEEBRRFBROEEES  ®F
ERARERMNER LN R EE
SHRREFBZERNEH  BiBEERE
EIREBVEREE - ZHRIGEEIRAIE -
RIBRFREEE -

EMESET(PEARENRIRIERE
I (PEANRENEIRIBEFZ25EE)
(RRMAREMBEARISRAEZE) ~ (PE
ARBEMBEANCTEREAZE) (PFEARS
MEEREEY SR AE)  (PEARH
M E RS S RIRIE A L) SIRIRAR
AR BIREEIREESERBRBERMNGIE
TE REBSEEEIHHRENEE
ERFEERNEEEREX X -HEZS
Z—H+ZRA=1+—8 > HM2IBHNIHK
YIS 150 14001 IRIZ B IRRE R 5058

ATRIYBREDANEERST  EER
BERNPAIREENAMEA » 2EEE
RIUIREER  ERINE -« BEEYRLD
BEIR 15 AR B ARk e PO A 5 BN B 1T A Y
EMEE E—PRAXNERERESE
BIBERRIRKT ©
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Our Environmental Targets

RIRER

Emissions target HIEBIE Wastes reduction target FEEE

Step-by-step formation of carbon emissions
management regime , striving for continous

reduction in carbon emissions over years wastes recycled

BRI BUBRAIREERER  BON BRI EZEFE

Continued refining and strengthening the wastes
management system, raising the percentage in

TEfTEERERY SRS RS AR L

Energy consumption efficiency target

Efficiency on use of water A7k E1E

RERERMZER Progressive increase in water conservation and

Stepping up the development of energy
consumption management system, implementing
meticulous management in energy consumption,
and gradually raising the percentage of clean
energy consumption

IRAREEEEAER HITHMCRAEER BSEAE
RRERIGEE

4.1 Responding to Climate Change

In context of ever greater global concern on climate change-
related issues, the Group has made responding to climate change
as one of the key components in its green production
management. By taking reference of the recommendations from
TCFD (Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures) , we
have adopted a prospective risk management approach in
response to the expectation in our long-term commitment to
environment protection.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

4.1

recycle process and technique investment, further
enhancing efficiency on use of water

%gbukﬁﬁmﬂmﬁiﬁ@l&IﬁEzﬁﬁﬁB‘ﬂE?\’%EFH7J<
o

FEH mIREML
HHBERS = THN RE2(CHEE
HEIRART > AEETEEHER
BEECMAEESFEEERENEEMA
BER5 o FAFIZFR TCFD (Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures >
RAEMER M B E T E/VE) N
& BEE RN R R EIELEIRIE
BEAFENRARAE
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Risk parameters

A28

Risk description

B it

Responding measures

FEH 245

Type of risk

EEER

Physical risks  Acute

BERERRE =M
Chronic
g

Cyclones, floods,
droughts, extreme heat,
extreme cold and other
extreme weather events
REE ~ Sk~ B2~
R RS miR
ZihimRREH

Impact of changes in
temperatures and
rainfall level etc.
RURBERENEE

Frequent occurrence of extreme
weather events may cause hindrance
to our workforce in discharging their
duties, disruption in transportation of
supply chain, interruption to the
operation of production equipment,
and consequently may adversely
affect the continuity of our production
operation and our revenue may fall as
aresult.

hiH KRB IR EE TIEE
TE ~ HEEER AN EERE
EFER > MR BLEESEE
M R o

Changes in temperatures and rainfall,
albeit gradual and moderate, may
lead to relocation of some of our
operation premises that may be
affected by such changes.
Consequently, our operating cost
could increase.
RBKIEREMNEISLCTIEER
DR EBTTENESHIRE >
EINESE A ©

Closely monitor weather forecast to
ensure production safety and
adequate preparation for such
occurrence;

DRI RRERUBREERZS
R R

Formulate contingency plans to
address challenges to our production
posed by unforeseen weather events;
e SRR UER RERREM
HEENTE

Conduct prospective risks
identification and evaluation
procedures on chronic climate-
related risk(s).

18 M R R i T A BE M R R
Bl Ko 5 o
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Type of risk
EEER

ERmE

Risk parameters

A28

Risk description
B e i

Responding measures

FEH 245

Transition risks Policy and law More stringent reporting

FENEYENE

ESEAEE  obligation and
compliance
requirements on
emissions
BEENBIN SRS
BB REHRENR

Technology Failed investment in

=l low-carbon technology

R IR B R

Costs of transition to
lower emissions
technology
RHE M B R A

With the sophistication on and
implementation of regulatory measures
on carbon emissions and carbon
trading, the PRC has stipulated higher
requirements in emission report to be
prepared by business enterprises. The
Group would be subject to increasingly
stringent disclosure requirements in
relation to climate change information.
FEEDRERI ~ 22 57 S EIRIE T
TEREMN 0 FEHEESRRS
RETESHNER - XEEREER
HIRBERE N RIZEZEERE B/

WEEEK ©

The process of low-carbon
technological transformation may
involve further consideration on such
new energy projects like photovoltaic
system, which entails a certain level of
risk of investment failure
RS BIEF > DIEEM
ABEZMAREMERBEENE
B FE—ENREXRNER

In the process of low-carbon
technological transformation, we may
need to deal with issues like
technological evolution, replacement
and reinstallation of lower-energy-
consumption equipment. Our outlay
cost may therefore increase.
R TS AYIBIZH > TIAEEER
EREFERBPIAEREATIER ~ &
-~ BRELEME O EMAAZA
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Closely follow State’s policy on energy
conservation and lower emissions,
staying abreast of and in compliance
with relevant regulatory law and
regulation;
BYNERHE B SR TSR BB » KB
TSR EEEIER

Continuously update and refine its
standards of products and raw
materials purchase;

FHEE N T & X E IR
R EHREEIREE |

Optimise our enterprise energy
management system, setting up a
highly effective unified system on
carbon emissions data for the
strengthening of data disclosure
quality.

EECEEREIERZ > BUfi—
BB EIR R 0 INBEUE
HNigEEE ©

Enhance the overall assessment and
forward-looking consideration on
lower-carbon technology to take into
account any technological evolution;
s E MR M A AR & 14 5Tk AT
AIEME 2 BERIERRAE &
A ;

Consider working with new energy
suppliers in joint effort on lower-
carbon technology research,
development and identification,
aiming to lower our cost of
investment.
EREMERMEESE > HEMH
BEMRRERMIEE > FERE
PR o
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Type of risk
EEER

RS

Risk parameters

A28

Risk description
B e i

Responding measures

FEH 245

Market
iz

Consumers preference
to green and low-carbon
products
HEE R ERRE
Ay IER

Rising cost of purchase

PREBRA LR

With increasing universal exposure
and promotion for lower carbon
emissions, enterprises with lower-
carbon products in their pipeline will
be in stronger position during the
transformation towards lower carbon.
Any delay in implementation for such
transformation may result in loss in
market share and in profitability.

WE = ER S ERE RN E ENE
8 BEERINERNEERS
EEREERBGER M > &
BRI AR ] sEEER T 5
19 EEANF T TR R o

Climate change may have impact on
biodiversity, which may in turn create
difficulty in acquiring of and price
surge in raw materials (such as
agricultural produce and water
resources) during the operation
process, thereby increasing the
operation cost.
RIEEMCOIER EEM SN It
& B E S @12 R R Rk
(RIEY ~ KEIR) HEEREEIE
IR B L3R - BEUEE AN

o
E =) ©
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Progressive promotion of green and
lower-carbon products (like plant-
based foods) in line with consumer
demand;
BESEEEENRRED WNEY
Eam BEaHEERR;

Staying abreast of and taking part in
government’s green and lower-carbon
products supporting initiatives;
FRERRET 2 BT B i B IR E
mARIFIEE ;

Conduct analyses on trend of raw
materials’ price movement, through
our exchange with suppliers and
consolidation of resources to
effectively manage the risk of
purchase cost inflation.
DITERMEMER B > @ik
HEBIRRERES  BWEIE
PREERL AN EFRERE ©
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Type of risk
EEER

Risk parameters

A28

Risk description

B it

Responding measures

FEH 245

136

Reputation Stakeholder concernin

=5 negative information

FITABRE S & EH
BHIRE

A whole range of stakeholders are
increasingly expecting the Group to
take more action for effective
management of and minimizing its
carbon footprint. Falling short to such
expectation may put our reputation
at risk globally, affecting our
reputation and image, and dragging
down the demand for our products
and services.

K m N AEE RIS 21
REMEEN RS HIRIR E AR
LIRS o MARAEEMER AR
AR REBENNEE
R RIMTERDBEELR &
MmELSEERNRBERETE
LR o
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Pay closer attention to relevant
disclosure requirements on
sustainable development and climate
change. In addition to ensuring its
compliance, optimise the external
communicating channel on corporate
social responsibility;

INSRREEE P F5iE 3 B K R iR EEAE
RAEEE K > EHERESRIER -
BEEELESERIMEERIE ;

Staying abreast of and participate in
international and domestic
environmental protection initiatives
with high recognition or relevance to
shore up our brand image as a green
enterprise.

SRR 2 EA N ESNER MY
SERRVBIFRFIE VAR BIRIRIEE) > 4T
Gk B amE o
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4.2

Energy Management

The Group strictly comply with, amongst other laws and

regulations, the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. We have

consistently reinforced the development of our energy

management system and energy targets performance

management regime. Through the permanent energy monitoring

system, we have achieved refined energy management. We strive

to pursue innovation in and actual implementation of energy

saving and consumption reduction. We work to attain greater

comprehensive energy efficiency in perspectives of, amongst

others, energy conservation technological reform, energy

structure optimization and clean energy consumption, thereby
reducing our greenhouse gas emissions.

Technical evolution on energy conservation

Replacement of
equipment:

Process
optimisation:

Energy pipeline
optimisation:

identify higher efficiency equipment to
progressively replace those high energy-
consuming

We pursue progressive optimisation of our
existing production process. Participation
from all levels within the organisation in
innovation and upgrade is encouraged in
promoting of cost reduction and efficiency;
improvement. A new aseptic aerating line
has been put into commission in 2021.
Through application of dry decontamination
technique, use of disinfectant has been
reduced, thus less energy consumption

We have continued our steam line
optimisation work , extending our coverage
of steam line improvement work to Hubei
and Chengdu companies; energy waste and
loss during steam transmission is reduced
through technical improvement of pipeline
and heat recovery technique

ENe

REREIE

FEBEERET(TEARAMES
KIBEROE) FRREM - THINGARE
REERERERNA /TEFE’J”JSZA
B > BB ERCARERE A RN

4.2

R SR - SRS

OAERFETEOAIRTIN - (e

KPS BERASHEL TR AR

SRR BB - (T

EBEFAHA -

EBAE LR
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TEEL  BSELRERET
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5 BT
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Optimisation in
temperature
control:
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While ice water supply is used in summer
season to meet the production process
requirements, in winter, under the
conditions of outdoor temperature dropping
to below 10 °C, natural cold air is drawn into
the cooling tower by switching valve for
cooling down the water in the system, thus
reducing the temperature of materials to
required level of production process; in our
workshops, by switching valve of the central
air conditioning fresh air is drawn in to
reduce indoor temperature

Optimisationof energy structure

RERASIRERIE

Electricity trading /3% 5

BRI

B S {E Rk REE
ATEER; £#4=F
EINREREE 0B
THIBERT > B
RERFIF 2 AN IR
WERLERBRER
HACH > TR
HNAEEZEIITES
X BfEAE KA
BRI P R
0 P IR Wk L PR R =
RE

all subsidiaries have adopted multilateral market-based electricity transactions, and pricing standard based on

capacity-demand size auditing, as well as staggering power consumption

BFARENTENZ BTG ERZNZASREBRE HIERE

Centralising energy supply £ {#§E

We would gradually substitute the existing model of direct steam supply with a centralised steam supply
system after an industrial zone for such purpose can be identified

BYECHRABHZ AR SHEEETHEZRTETER

Use of new energy vehicles FER At EE

Diesel engine vehicles in our plants would be gradually replaced by electric vehicles

PR St B B iR B B BB Bl

Promoting the use of cleaning energy &5 REERE

The proportion of clean energy consumption would gradually increase through the application of solar

photovoltaic and energy storage measures

BRI REAES I BSRABRERIGEE
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During the reporting period, the Group’s energy consumption and

HREHN > AEERISERHFER I

carbon emissions are as follows: MBS
Energy consumption?
REIRIHFE?
Category Unit 2021
A L g%
Direct energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 98,048
ERAERE AR
Indirect energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 123,874
M AEHE AR AR
Comprehensive energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal 221,922
RERERE AR AR
Comprehensive energy consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue ~ Tonnes of standard coal/RMB10,000 0.100
Bt S aERE MERRIE, & T
Greenhouse gas emissions?®
BERBEHER:
Category Unit 2021
5 Efi g5
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 174,875
BEREHNE (8E—) WS EiREE
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 471,452
BEREEINE (#ET) WA biEE
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents 646,327
BERBEHHAES (EBE—REED) 7= o] =
Greenhouse gas emissions per RMB10,000 revenue Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents/ 0.290

BriamaERiEsimE

RMB10,000
M SEREE BT

During the reporting period, the Group refined the management of energy consumption, 2
with additional disclosure of main energy consumption in 2021 as compared to 2020.
Comprehensive energy consumption includes the processing and production of food and

BEHR AEENEREEETBALER 8
BN -TF > BRET S —FFEZER
ERABER - GREEEesRRMEEHEERIINTE

beverage products; the calculation of the comprehensive energy consumption was based on B REEEHEEFE2RURS R EBR)D

General Principles for the Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption

(GB/T 2589-2020).

direct energy consumption — mainly include natural gas, diesel and gasoline; whilst Scope 2
greenhouse gas is derived from indirect energy consumption — mainly include purchased
electricity and purchased steam; greenhouse gas emissions are calculated with reference to
Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Food
Industry (Trial) issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s

Republic of China.

During the reporting period, the Group’s Scope 1 greenhouse gas is mainly derived from 3

(GB/T 2589-2020) ©

BEHR AEEEBRERBEIEREERE
TOHFE — TEEERAR  SRBRNITH ; BE TR
ERAEREEREREE - TE2AEINEB M
BN BERBHNEHE2RPEARKNE
ERERMNAEZESELEMI(RRITEREZRER
R E R FRREER 5T)) -
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4.3

Resource Management

We endeavour to reduce our resource consumption. Through the
application of industry-leading resource recycle technology and
management measures, we continuously enhance the resource
utilisation rate, propelling the Group’s shifting towards a
sustainable economic development model.

Water Resources Management

The Group fully recognizes the importance of water as a
fundamental daily resource. We strive to implement water
resources conservation measures in every aspect of our
production operation and putting water saving into wide-ranging
practice. All our plants have stringent water resources
management and target performance review systems in place.
We strive to reduce waste in water resources and improve the rate
of reuse through the use of water conservation equipment and
water resources reuse technique.

On top of water resources conservation, we also take aim in
identification, management and monitor of water resources risks
in our operation. Depending on facility locations, water sources of
our production will vary. A majority of them come from civil pipe
networks. We normally assess the risk in water supply of our
facility locations during the environmental impact assessment
stage of such facilities. We put in place contingency mechanism
and measures such as spare water tanks to effectively mitigate
the risk of water resources.
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BMIBRNRRBERERE > BiBE
BITRAENERBIR MM EES
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KERERE
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ROEEMN > FEEESRIRMENL
BEKERMNSE  2ERREK
178 - HAIR TRIIERILEISAIK
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Water Resources Saving Actions

Reuse of reclaimed Our production plants have all installed
water: steam condensed water recycle systems
with hot water tank preheating, from which
a 30% thermal energy recycle rate may be

realised

Wastewater after standard treatment will be
put into such reuse like watering plant, dust
removal and toilet water etc.

Wastewater
recycling:

Packaging Material Management

As a food manufacturer, packaging material management is
always one of our primary concerns. The Group’s product
packaging materials are mainly cartons and paper sheets. We
choose recyclable materials for all our packaging on the
principles of recyclability and minimization, thus diminishing the
impact of use of resources to environment. During the reporting
period, we have been consistently pursuing research,
development and use of sustainable packaging materials. Green
packing concept forms an integral component in the early stage
of our product development. We commit to usage of
environmental-friendly packaging materials from sustainable
sources, such as those certified by the Forest Stewardship Council

KEREAEE

FokEIA BEEBBRIUEA
2 ROKEIWR R > 8
REUKERE > ITE

15 300 ZAAE [EIWF B

55K E RIEBEZRIGK
T RAEB o WE
e BREBERE
SERKE
BEMEER

ERBRMITHE  BEMHERINKE
HFIMBEER - 7EEBNERE
EMEEZ2HMENT A - RFRE
AIEIR ~ HECRIRA) > 2EFRAR
EWER MK REEREARIR
BHEE - MEMA - RFPFEEE
IR BSMEIR R > ER
MEFHRR S EaRERRARS
oo BB ERRE N FENRRER
B MERMEERZS G (FSO)UE
BYBLEATRL o

(FSC).
. Use “Tetra Pak” packaging for its “Doubendou” box packages. “Tetra Pak”
Environmental Protection Certified packaging has been certified by Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
IR1AEDEE AT RISEELEABLBHMEEZEE (FSC) BEMERIRRIF)
s
. Replace existing ink coding with laser coding to reduce the pollution caused b
Technological Upgrade ) kp . . ¢ . /
in

Bfiiehig

Material Switch

) Ei by plastic tape

Environmental-friendly Design

IRfRER AT

=

Sustainable Packaging Actions

AFRBRRE

[RA MR ERE B A B ERS o R

BEREITTR

. Replace tape sealing with hot melt adhesive sealing to avoid pollution caused

PBE B AR EHE  Br R BRI B SRRy 5 R

. Apply amorphous design on the bottle mouth of our beverage products, thereby
effectively reduced the wastage of packaging materials

MM EmBERFFRBIFERMAONRKG T E > JAMEESENR
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Resource Consumption

BiRHE

Category Unit

=5 B

Water consumption tonnes

FAKE g

Water consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000
BrlmREKE Mg, T
Packaging material* consumption tonnes

BIEEM KL HFE g

Packaging material consumption per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000
B B EEFE M, &I

2021
—E_—F

9,900,300

4.44

295,800

0.133

4.4 Emission Control

142

The Group has consistently strived to refine its management
standard in wastewater, waste gas and solid wastes, and strictly
adhered to such laws and regulations include the PRC Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the PRC Law on
the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, and the PRC Law
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused
by Solid Wastes. We place pollutant control as one of the primary
tasks in our environmental protection duty and strive to strictly
comply all emission regulations.

Waste Gas Control

Gas recycle: Recycle combustion of our colour printing
plant’s VOCs (volatile organic compounds)
resulted to reuse of thermal energy for our
plants, with any surplus steam thermal

energy to be used in food production plants

our subsidiaries in Jinan, Henan, Nanchang
and Hebei have completed activated carbon
adsorption-based regulated emissions for
the small quantity of VOCs incurred in
preform heating bottle-blowing process

Gas adsorption:

Packaging materials are mainly cartons and paper sheets
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Wastewater Management EEKEIR
Technical standard: Gradual standardization of sewage station TE4RE . EKIEERERIER S
wastewater treatment, adopting technical REL > WAWERE
processes such as collect/sprinkle+light W~ B EME
oxygen, sprinkle+activated carbon, R EMENEE
sprinkle+biosubstance to conduct regulated TEETHAEBYIR
exhaustion
Equipment upgrade: Increase centralized collection bucket for ST 75 O 18 1 & R g
sewage sludge, prevent secondary pollution M BEE#FERLEZ
by automatic storage R5F
Solid Wastes Management EEEYERE
Separate Separate solid waste according to the DEEEE . ¥ E LR E YRR
management:  classification of hazardous waste and non- BEEVMNESESR
hazardous waste, maximize the recycling of MINHEEE ) AR
non-hazardous waste EHEEEEYET
[ElYFI A
Regulated storage: Our production companies have been BRETE BRISEEADE
equipped with designated space for solid # 7T HEFINEEYE
wastes storage, with highly visible marking, W& > Wk TEREE
thereby optimizing our solid wastes NRH BE2TER
management system and improving its sale MEEBFIEUKR TS
and disposal procedures. WIHE ~ REMIZ
Unified We set up a solid wastes disposal desk m—EE RETEEYEREES
management:  registration, which accurately records the iR MBLEREEEY)
waste category, its quantity incurred, WEEE - EL 8IS
destination, usage etc. =@~ BiRE
Compliancein Work with qualified entity for such process ERRE HEKEEEMNE
disposal: in our solid wastes disposal and recycle GE > HEEYET
procedures rar=r | Il
Minimisation Taking consideration of waste residuals BEEE ! R —FEERR
management:  exhaustion in product design starting from SHRRNERTRERE
2021, thereby relieving pressure of B TERIRIR
exhaustion on environment and improving HHER R DB R B »
utilisation of raw materials HARF R S
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During the reporting period, the Group’s pollutants emissions are WERRN > AEBENSEYHRIER
as follows: mE:

Pollutant emissions

ISHMHERR
Category Unit 2021
Y| B —E—&F
Waste water discharge tonnes 4,946,140
BEKHEME it
COD (chemical oxygen demand) emission tonnes 229
COD (E2FEE) HlE i
Ammonia nitrogen emission tonnes 7.68
AP E it
Recycled non-hazardous waste tonnes 47,508
Bl eI R EREY) g
Recycled non-hazardous waste per RMB10,000 of revenue tonnes/RMB10,000 0.021
BrlmblimEEye Mg, &T
Waste gas emission litre 758,987,433
BE B E N
Nitrogen oxide emission tonnes 22.00
aatysina it
4.5 Green Office 4.5 LRBWA
On top of exploring environmental-friendly production R ERIRREERMARER > th
technologies, we are also committed to realize green office BIRRTEEeNAES  HEitiEE
concepts. We consistently promote such energy-saving and MACHIAEENRE R FEERE o ISR
emission reduction measures like paper-less office. We encourage F—(EINESHE  FA®ERL
our staff to initiate their own daily green office practice by B REEES LIEAIUNIXPBEREE
applying paper-less technology, such as teleconferencing, > DMEEE > WBBEEHRE
internet conferencing. We promote lower-carbon lifestyle among BENIFESR  ESEETERESE
our staff through various green and healthy office work initiatives. B o
Posting of Signage Paper-less Office Business and Working Travels  Electrical Appliance Management
SREGAR AR EIRiBE BB
+ Enhance employees’ +  Encourage shared use of +  Promote shared vehicleson «  Advocate to turn off the
environmental awareness computers, Advocate the business and working trips lights whereas appropriate
regarding water saving with use of internet conferencing to reduce carbon emission and use less electricity
notices and water and cloud wherever in staff duty discharge BEMEFRE - SRS
conservation signals possible IREHELT  BREIBE) . Control temperature setting
BiERAE A S ENKAR BENEKHEE « B ER IBIZAIBRBE of the air conditioning in
# o s B TEAIA KA RIaEnER offices and dormitories
IRIE=GH «  Promote two-sided printing HAMESERACRR

TRIELmITE EETTHER]

Green Office Actions

BReNARE
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5. GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY AND BUILDING HOME 5. [EIfFE#E > HERE

TOGETHER

As a national corporate, Dali has been deeply involved in the field of EEARGEOELFERFH LT AmE

social welfare for many years, putting corporate society responsibility B BREITEEMEET > HMAIIGA

into actual practice. We promoted philanthropy with great efforts, BAmEE BERESBEIIAFEMHEE

included charity donations in annual budget to provide institutional B FURELRE > WRERIIIKES

assurance, and set up independent institute to manage charity ANHEEDETRELCESE s EE8H%

foundations with scientific approach. For years, We supported HEZX PEEEREANNETRE A

education programs, gave care for the elderly in poor conditions and FRAERLUBEMER - HAERIE

left-behind children, providing warmth and care to vulnerable groups. B0 BKBER ARBRETFREMAM

Always remembering the roots of our success, we gathered all the little Sy

efforts of love and worked tirelessly towards building a better society.

5.1 Value Education and Foster Learning 5.1 FHEZS
Education is one of the major sources and motivations for HEEXEBMIREBENHEENRE 2
national revitalization, as the nation’s future and hope lie upon it. BEXRIRENEZREEH T2 — o RE
For a long time, we adhered to provide strong support for local LU > BRI A S A IE SN
talent nourishment and education development, established BERREAENIN  MIZEHS
dedicated educational foundations, and collaborated with B BHHEGE X REERZ
government to invest in school constructions, providing good R IBMET BEFNHBIRE > UBR
education environment and promoting the development of TEESHEEENEE -

education with practical actions.
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Contribute to Education Charities and Looking Forward to The Future

HEAL > UHARE

In August 2021, “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County donated scholarships of RMB10,000,000 as rewards for
outstanding teachers and students and help for students in difficulty. The scholarships of “Liangliang Education Trust Association”
were awarded on the principle of combining incentive and inclusive, involving three education stages of primary school, middle school
and high school. The scholarships have been given out for 11 consecutive years since 2011, covering over 23,000 beneficiaries with an
amount accumulated to approximately RMB95 million. In 2021, there were nearly 3,000 teachers and students receiving the awards. We
awarded three students who were admitted into Tsinghua University and Peking University this year with an Higher Education Exam
Elite scholarship of RMB100,000 each, rewarding them as well as encouraging the majority of teachers and students to thrive for the
best.

In addition, Hui’an Liangliang Middle School, which was invested and constructed by “Liangliang Education Trust Association”, has
officially commenced enrollment in 2021. In the future, Huian Liangliang Middle School will adhere to the fundamental task of “setting
up moral standards for individuals” with the objective of “founding first-tier school, commencing intelligent education, nourishing
innovative talents”, developing education in five aspects and promoting the comprehensive development of students, to build a first-
class middle school in Fujian.

T2 —FN\R BERSSHEESRESEGEIRGRRIRE S AR 10,000,0007T » MURETESENENRZENUREHIE
HELNEN SERHEESNERERFHEMNZEEEBEENERER T2 JF s 5FR=EHEMRE > 2T
— FESEBREENLF > HEPRBRBHBESN AR 50087t > BRANE23,00085A 0 Z2Z—FHF 13,000
ZENAIER c HFANRBLEWE » HMASEEABRE - LAN=ZUBFEAERT ARK 0B TS EHFHEE » 75K
MR ERBIEE AR FEm K

o HR SRR AR HEERNELR PR MR S - —FIEARRBLE - RRELZTZHERU A —R2
B WMERHE BAWALTI #ER BEUNIBEA AREAEE > A5LE  REBE2EER > TER/\B—R

FR o

&
2021 +-BERERRYBEERBRFEMRNN

202198R
¥ »

The Scholarship award ceremony of “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County in 2021

TEI-FERRRRHRE RURASREER
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Hui’an Liangliang Middle School
BEREH2

5.2 Pay Tribute to Elderly and Nourish Youngsters

Dali Group has always practiced social responsibilities with actual
measures, propagating Chinese traditional virtues by giving
special care to elderly in poverty and left-behind children. We
held hands with various society parties to send love and care to
the vulnerable groups, promote the establishment of good social
atmosphere, and spare no efforts in constructing a beautiful
society, helping more people to gain happiness and warmth.

5.2 HEZEL
ENERBEUERTHERTHEE
1T HPARSELIBHESHREE > 4
FERZAMBTREUEIRHE o
HAEFHLEIR > ERAPFHEE
EABOBMGE > MIFFINITE B
RFRRMNER » NERIBERELT
e EEEL NESSEREARE -
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Pay Tribute to Elderly and families and sending love
WEZH > BREL

On January 18, 2021, the old-age subsidy distribution ceremony of Dali Group was held in Luocheng Town Government of Huian
County, Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, where we granted old-age subsidy of RMB10,000,000 to elders above 60 years old without
pensions in some villages and towns in Huian County. This charitable event of Dali Group has organized for 12 years. Up to 2021, we has
granted old-age subsidy of over RMB90,000,000 to nearly 100,000 people in total. Dali Group hopes to involve more social groups and
individuals to pay attention to the elderly group together with us, so as to create a strong trend in the society of paying tribute to the

elderly and families.

“E—F—AtN\B ENEEZOHESERBENERRERNTELRENABTEM » HAADEZHIB IR0
UL RERKENEAZE R T AR 10,000,000 tHEOHES - EFNEBNEOMELADEHELTFBLRE > &E
“ET—F > AMRFEEI0BARERT B OMERE AR 0,000,0007T « EFEBOAEE LTS EEBLIREA
SR —ERETEERRERE > THE LURRENERMEZR -

Elderly eligible for the old-age subsidy receiving them at the community

HEERRGNEATHEENBOHES
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Sending Love to Left-behind Children across boundaries
LA > KEEE

The issue of left-behind children has always been one of the key concerns of the whole society. In 2021, the “2021 Daliyuan charitable
event caring for left-behind children reunion” set out again, which was instructed by the Rights and Interests Department of the Fujian
Provincial Committee of the Communist Youth League of China, hosted by Dali and co-hosted by Children’s Channel of Fujian
Television Station. During the charitable event, the Daliyuan reunion charity group, which is composed of volunteers of Dali Group,
volunteers of Children’s Channel of Fujian Television Station and caring members of the society, gave away 1,000 tickets for reunion in

over 5 months, and held three events including campus ride, camp for parents and children in Hunan and Fujian, bringing more care
and love to the left-behind children.

Volunteers gave reunion tickets to children in Wanquan primary school in Baoping Village, Xiangxi Tujia and Miao Autonomous
Prefecture, Hunan Province, and invited caring art teachers to bring drawing pens and give art classes. With 60% of local children being
left behind, the children incapable of reuniting with their parents drew paintings of reunion meals to express their effusive thoughts of
missing their moms and dads.

BTRERRERMEEMAIMAEZ —  —2 - —F  HHEEEREZEDSMEE  EN M fRBRA LV REE
L FEEEN I — T - —FEFEREETREBRADEE ) B—RH¥E - B > HENEERTREE - BR2ER
B RBEEREUREEEOATHRAMRNENEREAZERESEZ ANREERL T 1,0005REEER > L HE
M EEMMERRET RFES=5EE AETRERESETESHE -

SREMSHEE AL REREEAMNFRIN T2/ 2N R FFE EREES > B85 7 B ORMEMHER T EZ UK
EEEMR - Ethe0w NZFHRETRE » BENXSERNEZFMAZSEENT 1Rk BEK > RETHESHR
BB o

201| 31 @
s 2 1
AESE ";%t’

Hmi
Te

N

Picture from Daliyuan charitable event caring for left-behind children reunion

ENEMBETREREAMERNHT
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5.3 Relieve Calamity and Fight against the Pandemic 5.3 ERXE
We always pay attention to the development of society. EPRZIB G EE - ZHELUEE
Throughout the years, Dali Group has always been on the front BEENEEL  ENEENS A
line of the stricken region whenever there was a disaster, =HREXERE > EXIEERIFE
demonstrating love and providing help where we can in face of B0 IR SIFFEEARMER) > BE
the disaster, so as to overcome the difficulties together with the ANERILEEHR] » SFEEGFRE o

people in the disaster area and look forward to rebuilding a
beautiful home.

Defending Disasters Together to Overcome the Hardships

RFREA - HEHR

In July 2021, various places in Henan Province were struck with extremely heavy rain continuously, attaching the whole nation’s
concern. Dali’s Henan branch also suffered from flood damage, and the Group set up the “Henan disaster relief and rescue team”
immediately, proactively devoting in disaster relief while organizing Henan Dali to conduct flood draining in the factory and resume
production. The disaster relief team allocated approximately 20,000 pieces of food and beverage supplies worth of over RMB2,000,000
from factories and cooperative partners, and send them to the front line of disaster relief in Henan. We overcame difficulties such as
disrupted traffic, material transportation challenges, etc., and sent donated materials to the fire rescue station on Dongfeng East Road,
Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou and the fire rescue brigade of Xinzheng City, etc. While receiving the supplies, the personnel on the
front line of disaster relief expressed gratitude for the loving donations of Dali Group. When disaster struck one, all will come to help; In
the face of major natural disasters, we will always unit as one. Dali Group and the people of Henan will help and support each other,
looking forward to rebuilding a beautiful home.

TR —FtH IRESHEBBRERAZREE  EHEEEARNL  AMEND AR TEBRAKES » 2EES
—BERIRRIL DAl SRR IS/ BB R EFETTRE AR IMEE ENRE - BIRR ST TIE « FS0MER
TR~ B1ERBHERARCAY 20,0004 > BIEELA KR 2,000,000 THIRMEUEHIE » XA mRHTK—4R o FfIiR 7@ %E -
MEERAHEEEE > R IREYE EEEEI M B ERH & RE SR H PR s ~ i E R ABRSE M > K —%
ABEEERMENRRHENERNZOBERERT TN - —HA%  \AXE > EEXEBAKNEEA > RFGREGEE
—it > BN ERETmAR—ETER  IFEFRENER -

g o T i3
- an v ¥ 3
i EAET R W e
poy ESREERTEN [P S v g £ e
e e o e e Fmne

Dali Group donating supplies to the front line of disaster areas in Henan

EfEERAEKE—RIRENE
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Faced with the volatile condition of Covid-19, we also gave care to
the people in the disaster area. In September 2021, there occurred
several localized outbreaks in Putian, Fujian and other places.
While securing self-prevention of the virus, the group actively
supported the front line of defending the pandemic, sending
donations of supplies to Xianyou, Quangang, Huian, etc.,
providing food, beverage and other material supplies to the anti-
pandemic workers fighting on the front line. In 2021, a total of
RMB751,600 was used in donations related to fighting the
pandemic.

APPENDIXES

Appendix — The list of significant laws and regulations that
apply to the Group

B %

L BIERENIER »
EHAETEEARLRERE —F
Z—FNA > GEEHSHIREFI
S5 REBEHFESHENE
B BIBEIERE—47 > BIREYE
EIRREMLGE - BB BLEH > AE
BAE—ZRiEASRHER Bk
EYELF c ZT T —F - BMHEL
AANRE 7516 BTAREIEIRE °

Misk — ERANEEZRERBE

No.

F5%  significant laws and regulations that the Group should comply FEBTHERER

1 Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHFEQEE)

2 Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies. (EmABAERZER])

3 Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China (REARHMERFESHEF L)

4 Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHMERESE)

5 Bidding and Tendering Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMEIBIZEAZE)

6 Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEARENEERZRE)

7 Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHEMEERESE)

8 Regulation on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARKEME R RZEEEHIESG)

9 Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMBEFED

10 Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (EE A BRHFEEZE)

11 Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMEZ(EREX)

12 E-Commerce Law of the People’s Republic of China (FPEANRHEMEE FEHE)

13 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (FhEARENMBEIHEE R IREL)

14 Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMES EE)

15 Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEANREMNBESEHERE)

16 Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREAREMEIEE)

17 Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMEH FRERED

18 Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEAREMEAZZEEE)

19 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases (rhEE N BREFME R 2ERBRAE)

20 Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMELHBAED

21 Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (hE AN REMBEIRIERE L)

22 Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEA RHEMNBEIRIE R E B E)

23 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (hE A REMBE ARG RIAE)

24 Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (R N REMBEAGTEBRAE)

25 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Pollution Caused by — (HZE A RHEFNE EIBEREY) 5 4215 757%)
Solid Wastes

26 Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMBESARERIED
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Il. APPENDIX — INDICES FOR CONTENT OF ESG 1.
REPORTING GUIDE BY HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

RIR R ERHIR A —ARINE R RMISIT

Bisk — BBMZF(RIE 41 E
RERBEHES)AETRSI

Chapter
FRIZEEf

Environmental
RIR

Aspect Al
[EmEAL

Emissions

HERH

General Disclosure

—fRIRER

KPIALL

RSB RIEIRALL
KPIAL2
RASRAERIEIRAL2
KPIAL3
RASRAERIEIRALS
KPIAL4
RASRAERIEIRALA
KPIALS

RASRAERIEIRALS
KPIALG

RASRAENIEIZALG

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRAEROREREHN - MRS - BERBESERYMELSHN

(@) BE; &

(b) BFHETABEARLENERERRIROINER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

P IR K AR RA B B -

Greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

BERBBAIINE UEE) &k WER) BE MUSESEN - BERME) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

FREL R ZREREYRE (LUESTE) Kk UNER) BE NUSES B « BIERIFE) o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

FRELEZEREYRE CUESTE) Kk UNER) BE NUSES B « BIERFE) ©

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HRPRET L BN E B 1R R I E E S L B ARPTIRE R 57 o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of

reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HILBREEERBEEERYNTE - RHEMATET AR B R R A EDE LB AR

B BR ©
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4.2 Energy Management
4.4 Emission Control

12EREIE
4 4FERES

4.4 Emission Control
4.4 BERZE
4.2 Energy Management

42REREIE
4.4 Emission Control

44BEMEE

4.2 Emission Control

42HFNEIE
4. Low-carbon and Green Production
LARFRIRIR » RBAEE

4.1 Emission Control

41 BEN B



Environmental, SodaLAnd Governance Report

R B RE

ARG

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

IRIR B RERIHIR A —ARINE R RRRRISE

Chapter
FRTEEH

Aspect A2
[EBEA2

Use of Resources

HiRfER

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPIA2.1

RASRAEREER A1

KPIA2.2
RSRAERIEIRA22
KPIA2.3
RSRERIEIRA23
KPI A2.4

RSREIEIRA24
KPIA2.5
RSRAERIEIRA25

Aspect A3
[BHEA3

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
BYERAER (BIEER « KREMRME) AIBEE o

Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BEROJAREE 7~ Bl - 18F - BFRES -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENS DN ERER,NEEER (NS « KeUh) EE2 UTETRRE) RE
N EEBEBN - BIEREE) ©

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BIKEREE (INEESBA - SIEREE) °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HLFRE] 1L BIBE IR B et B AR e A R B L B ARPTERERAV 7 8% o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HSKREUB A KR LR BE AR E » MURFTET IR AR @S B R R AIERE
TRERB B o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SRR EEMENEE UM E) & ER) BEEBAES -

The Environment and Natural Resources

BLEBRFT

4.2 Energy Management
42BEIREE
4.3 Resource Management

43EREE

4.2 Energy Management
42BEIREIE

4.3 Resource Management
43EREE

4. Low-carbon and Green Production

4 AEBIRGR - MBEE

4. Low-carbon and Green Production

4AEBIRGR - BBEE

4.3 Resource Management

13BREIE

General Disclosure

—ARIRER
KPIA3.1

RSRENIEIEAL
Aspect A4
[EHE A4

IRIERRAER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

BREITARBIRRAAEREMEARZENER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them.

R RS HRERRAEFNEATERERNERAHTE
Climate Change

RIREIME

89178 -

4.3 Resource Management

43BREE
4.3 Resource Management

43EREE

General Disclosure

—RRiREE
KPIA4.1

RSB RIEIR A4

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

WA EH B R RAIEEHETAELEXENERRIGEFEENEBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HEEERFIEEHETAEELENEARGEREE - MEHTH -

4.1 Responding to Climate Change

4.1 EHRIREE
4.1 Responding to Climate Change

41 FEHRIEEME
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RIE B KERARS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

IRIR B REIHEIR A —ARINE R RRRRIET

Chapter
FRTEEH

B. Social
B.#1E
Aspect B1
[EmB1

Employment

1%

General Disclosure

—ARINER

KPIBL.1
RASRENIEIEBLL
KPIB1.2
RASBRAENIEIZR1.2
Aspect B2

[EEB2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BRI ERE - BRKREN - TEFH - BRI - TSRS 20 - RERUKE
B R AETE

@ BE; R

(b) HETABEAXENEREZERROIMNER

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

MR~ RIFEL - FERAERI MBS DN ESEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

IR~ FhER R e B DI ESMALLE o

Health and Safety

il ke

3.1 Talent recruitment

3IAAEE

3.1 Talent recruitment
31AA RIS

3.3 Care and Communication
33RAZATR

General Disclosure

—ARiER

KPIB2.1
RASRAERIEIRB2.1
KPI B2.2
RSN IETR B2.2
KPIB2.3

RARAEMIEIRB23
Aspect B3
[EmB3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
BREREZ2TFRERREREEBRRRELERBSM
(@) BR; K&

(b) BETFHBETABEAXENERMEERMRAGINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the past three years
BEZFRETERRIECTH AR LR

Lost days due to work injury

ATEELTERH

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R FTERAABV I E R R R 20 » URIBRAIT R EEE 505 o

Development and Training

BRRIE

3.4 Health and Safety

JAfRREZE

3.4 Health and Safety
J4REEZS
3.4 Health and Safety
34REREZS
3.4 Health and Safety

JAfRFREZE

General Disclosure

—RiE

KPIB3.1
RS 1R B3.1

KPIB3.2
RASREIEIEB3.2

154

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

AR EEEIT TIEMBE AR AERIEUER o Ht B IES)

Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the
employer.

EEIfEMEEE - B EEREE N EIRSNERERIE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management, etc.).

IR REEHEMN MR EERE - PREEES) B0NRIIRER DL -

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

BRI REEEED - SR EATRZ I TIIRFE -
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3.2 Training and Development

3285HI R

3.2 Training and Development

3285HI R
3.2 Training and Development

321%FI R
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RIE B KERARS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

IRIR B RERIHIR A —ARINE R RRRRISE

Chapter
FRTEEH

Aspect B4
[EE B4

Labour Standards

SR

General Disclosure

—ARIER

KPI B4.1
RASRERIEIEBA.L
KPI B4.2
RARAEMIEIR B2
Aspect B5

JEmEB5

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI EE TsamIz T

(@) BER; &%

(b) BETFHEBETABEAXENERMEERMAGINER

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.

RS IR BB B B A RE T LU e B8 T K5 HlIZ5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

i TE B IR B AR B R H R R B U P EREN Y 5% ©

Supply Chain Management

HREsEEE

3.1 Talent recruitment

31 ATIBEE

3.1 Talentrecruitment
31AA BB
3.1 Talent recruitment

31ATIEE

General Disclosure
—RiE

KPIB5.1
RASRAERIEIEBS.L
KPIB5.2

RARAEIEIRB5.2

KPIB5.3

RASRERIEIEB5.3
KPI B5.4

RASRENIEIEB5.4
Aspect B6
[EHEB6

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
BIEHEENIRIE RS ABEBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

R 2 N HERHE o

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

ML EREAMEENES > MERNTEMEGNHEREE - UREMBEINRT
T BEET5 % o

Description of management used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B RH HERSEIRHNIRRE R RAMRNERE » URBMIITREERTE
Description of management used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HRATREEERRREESARRERKRBNER » WRHEMAITRERSE
Product Responsibility

EmEE

2.1 Quality Assurance
21 mERE
2.1 Quality Assurance
21mERE

2.1 Quality Assurance
2.1 mERE
2.1 Quality Assurance

2.1 mERE

2.1 Quality Assurance

2.1 mERE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B6.1
RASRARIE1R B6.1
KPI B6.2
RASRAERIE1E B6.2
KPI B6.3
RSN E1R B6.3
KPI B6.4
RASREIEIR B6 4
KPI B6.5

RARAEIEIRB6.S

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

BREFFRHERNRFHNEEREZS - BES 28 - WESEURBRA AN

(a) BHR ;R

(b) BETHETABEATZENBEMERRMRGINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

BENBEXERBHTRALZL2 EREEHMERKWNE DL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with.

RN ERRRFR B UREE 5% o

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.

it B 58 T (RFE A ERE R RARVIE DI ©

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

HhE SR BRERERBIKER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented

and monitored.

HHUH BB R RERABEER » UIBARRIITREE A%

EMNEmERERQRE | £k 2021

2.1 Quality Assurance
2.2 Nutrition and Health
2.3 Customer Service

2.1 mERE

22 S EBMRER

238 FRRFS

2.1 Quality Assurance
2.1 mERMRE

2.4 Customer Service
248 F RS

2.2 Product Innovation
2.2 A

2.1 Quality Assurance
2.1 mERMRE

2.4 Customer Service

24ZRIRFE
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RIE B KERARS

ESG Areas and General Disclosures and KPIs

IRIR B REIHEIR A —ARINE R RRRRIET

Chapter
FRTEEH

Aspect B7
[EmEB7

Anti-corruption

R&s

General Disclosure

—ARIER

KPIBT7.1

BSRAERIEIRBT.1
KPIB7.2

RASRAERIEIRBT.2
KPIB7.3
RASRAERIEIEBT.3
Aspect B8

[EmEBs

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

ARALFRR ~ #1358 ~ EEFREREH ¢

(@) BER; &

(b) BETFHBETABEAXENERMEERMAGINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERBARBFITASEBRER LN EBENESFATENEE RIFFRER o

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

HR R EIETE R RRIET » LURIBARAIT R BT T5%

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HtmESEkE TRENRESE -

Community Investment

HERE

1.2 Business Ethics

1L2PEIETE

1.2 Business Ethics

12 EBE
1.2 Business Ethics

12 EBE
1.2 Business Ethics
12EEEE

General Disclosure

—fRIRER
KPI B8.1

Policies on engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BENZHERTREEMTHERTENRREER FHEE RHLER mIBEE o
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

5. Giving Back to Society and Building a Home

Together

5. ElEEHE - HEXE
5. Giving Back to Society and Building a Home

Together

BISRAERIEIEBs1  EEEREE WA RIFFEE  HIER - f#FE b BE) - 5. [CEEHE - HEXE

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 5. Giving Back to Society and Building a Home
Together

RARENIEIER2 HAEFIHBABHAER MEBRER) o 5. ElEEHE - HEXE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEENHRS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place,
979 King’s Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY =i

To the shareholders of Dali Foods Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dali Foods Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 164 to 262, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

RKEFTAISE A
HRBIRFREBEITN
Ribdh— 27

Tel E:%: +852 2846 9888
Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
ey.com

REMRREBARATRR
(RFIS8 S M B9 EA R B IRAE)

ER

BEEEEZE I4EER 0 BHENBERER
BRAR (MERE)) REMBAR (ME£H)) B
ARFBRE > ER B2 —F+"B=+—
BREHMBRRE BEZAILEFENSHHIE
mRKREMEEWmER EHEEEHR KRG H
REREX > UREHMBFREME (BEEX
GEEERME)

EER R HVBRRERESBIHIIAE
(TEBEEAE)) EHRNE B HRS %R
(TEBMBREED) AEMA TR S5
BN —F+ZA=+—HBNaHMBERR
REBEZAILEFENGHMBRERGHES
ME - WEBREBADFREINKERTE XA
8o

ERAER
EERBEBEHMRAGRMBNEBETER
(TEBBEER) BEITEZ - EFN&REELT
NEREEFNRENZHETRFEZ S HIBR
RAFREHNEF—NE—S B - RES B
MAENEERFEE B FA (PR > &
LFUN BEEE - TOBRETRETHEMETR
Bt - EFME  ESMEUSHERERERE
REEMAESENERIBMHER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

R EZER

Valuation of inventories

FEILE

As at December 31, 2021, the balance of inventories was
RMB1,194,257,000 which accounted for approximately 5.8% of the current
assets of the Group.

RIE-—F+"A=+—H » EE#&HraARK1194,257,0007T »
1 BEERNRENEELS8% °

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by the weighted average method and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Management of the Group
reviewed the stock movement at the end of the reporting period and
made allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer saleable in the market. Management of the Group
estimated the net realisable value for those items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. Considering the
significance of inventory balance and significant estimation and
judgement involved, we identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter.

FERMA RIS FEMENREETIR - RAIZMNEFITEE
T HRERMRNG > BEEEME  BERS T REZLLLHINE

ZER - EEEEEERBRSHABEEEEYEN  LHEH
RABEEAET S LIHERNRERRSEENTFEREEEE - &8

£ B ETEIE = BRI BTN R B R A IR R 3 SR
B EIEIRBE « I AR EAN MRS RAEA S

Hi

RFVE > EFREFENGERESRBEZEER -

158

FREEEZSIA

RIBEENFEIE > AREZFEAESETEZ
RERENEHPBRENREENFE - EF
EERAHMHFREMMILENE R EEILS
FE MAGMLEFREFERER -7 TX
KRFEEME > AMESERFRIEILEFEIE
PIRESTIEE)NivER P

EEERTAREZUMIIER S HUFREE
FIEFEF PR EE > SERILERIANE
RIREE - Bt EENEBELESELOR
EEHAHMHFRRETERRBRAE R R (G
WEFHRIR - BREF (BERAEETIIERA
METHIER) NERHEEBM S HIMHR
RERBZERREHETERE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B EITERRNMARIEMREREE

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process on the determination of inventory cost and
net realisable value and evaluated the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls.
EETHEEEEEFEMRA RIS FENE
FF o WaTh EERMEIEAIRET » MITREFR
ks

We performed testing on a sample of items to assess
the cost basis.

S DEITHEAIE > DT AR o

We performed tests on a sampling basis to assess the
net realisable value of finished goods determined by
management by comparing the expected selling prices
to the selling prices of recent or subsequent sales.
SERETHEAIR  LEHMhEEERBHLRE
HEBRTMREHENEBMETNMRA
BITEE

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021



Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

R BZEE

Valuation of inventories (continued)

FEAE (B)

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 18 to the financial
statements for related disclosures.

TR BB IR E I T BRI EE 2.4 ~ MYEE3 R MIsE 18 ©

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

B SRR R fE W R 15 B E

As at December 31, 2021, the balance of trade and bills receivables was
RMB1,371,487,000, which accounted for approximately 6.6% of the
current assets of the Group.

N ZEZ—F+ZR=+—H > > BZREEIERERERERAA
R&1,371,487,0007z0 > 1 BEERBIEEL6.6% °

Under HKFRS 9, the impairment of trade and bills receivables is based on
expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach. The measurement of the ECL
requires significant judgements and estimations on the key assumptions
used in the ECL models, such as the expected future cash flows and
forward-looking adjustments. Considering the significance of trade and
bills receivables balance and significant estimation and judgement
involved, we identified the impairment of trade and bills receivables as a
key audit matter.

BEEBMHBREERFE 5 > BZBRFIAREIRRERETZ
TRHiEERE ((FTRIEERER)) XET - SHERREEGETEY
FEHREEBREREAERN I EZRFZETERFE RS > HILITEHR
RIRIBE R AR REE o Z BE & 7 EUEIE & BB
BRMLURFTS R E XG5 RAE > 55K B 7 REUGRIE K B
SRR ER R ARAREREIE -

RREEE IR (1)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEITERRNRIEMREZEE

We performed tests on a sampling basis to assess the
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses of
the raw materials and work in progress by comparing
the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses of the raw materials and work in progress
with similar products in the current year or subsequent
peﬁods

FEETHENSE > BERRMHRERRD
TEqumIﬁ}ZZIK&ﬁJ%%Eﬁiﬁﬁifﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ 89
BUERETHEER SHEREMHRERBOEE
TLRAKRFERX

We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

EFTTHMEMBRRNETRERNERS D °

We performed an understanding of management’s
credit management process on the trade and bills
receivables and evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls
which govern credit control, debt collection and
estimates of expected credit losses.

ETREEENEZRUEIEREBREERENE
E\Aﬁ'@_%ﬂ‘ » WEHE T E AN BB MRS ~ T
FERN ) » HEEEEES - WEKRTRIAEE
EiEhEt o

We tested the ageing analysis prepared by
management.

EFAHEEREFRRIREE DT o

We evaluated management’s judgements involved in
the determination of impairment of trade and bills
receivables, including the historical experience and
forward-looking adjustments.
EETGHEBENET 8 5 B IEIE R EIERE
m{ﬁﬂ%f&ﬁ’]#wﬁ BIEIBHAE R AR L AR o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

R BZEE

Impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)

B G EWRE R EWR R E (4

Details are set out in note 2.4, note 3 and note 19 to the financial
statements for related disclosures.

TR B IR E I B R AN EE 2.4 ~ YEE3 R MIsE 19 ©

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

RREEE IR (1)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEITERRNRIEMREZEE

We tested the model parameters including the
underlying historical and external data used, examined
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessed whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances
and the computation.

EFAEHBRN2Y > OFEPTRERIBIERINEE
B SRNENYRFEERSHNEREBIERTH
HESHATEREEDGHEBHEAAEREFRE
BE o

We tested on a sampling basis on the cash receipts
from customers after the financial year end relating to
trade receivables balances as at December 31, 2021.
EEMN _E_—F+_B=+—HHNEZERK
B ER > MR AN REEREBREER
IS WEETTRIE o

We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

EL T HE TR S AR E R O o
HAFHRAHthE R

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained Section Management Discussion and Analysis prior to
the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the rest Sections of
the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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ARG EEESRRONER  BEEERNE
IZEENIR S B RIS RV HEREH o

EEHAHYFRRFENER L RNEHME
> BEFTERHEMERNEREAT NS

Ao o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ESMSHUBHRRARENSE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

162

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR ER S GIIE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
reportis CHEUNG NG.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 28,2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

SR R H RS mR

Year ended December 31,2021 #F _—EFE_—F+ _H=+—HIFFE

2021 2020

—E—F§ -t 2

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

HIsE ARBT ARETT

REVENUE s 5(a) 22,294,000 20,961,708

Cost of sales FHE B S 6(a) (14,138,394) (12,720,812)

Gross profit EF 8,155,606 8,240,896

Other income and gains EHAU A B U 5(b) 1,428,745 1,036,617

Selling and distribution expenses & R AL HRE SZ (3,884,073) (3,555,237)

Administrative expenses THREX (628,358) (606,092)

Finance costs EEI=V %N 7 (86,241) (9,574)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX PR¥R AT 6 4,985,679 5,106,610

Income tax expense Friginf= 10 (1,260,454) (1,257,957)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiEF 3,725,225 3,848,653
Attributable to: LT AL :

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=DN 3,725,225 3,848,653
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 3,725,225 3,848,653
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitizaurss
Exchange differences: TERERE

Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETFIPE B ERE

foreign operations 6,565 (20,367)
Net other comprehensive income that RiBEHARI P BEER

may be reclassified to profit or loss DEEEEEN

in subsequent periods HEhiRE U m $ 58 6,565 (20,367)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FREMESUIE

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (Be#FRE) 6,565 (20,367)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRIEEWNERZE

THE YEAR 3,731,790 3,828,286
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BHEDMEMRESWE R
Year ended December 31,2021 #F _—&FE_—F+ _F=1+—HILFEZ

2021 2020
—E—F§ —E-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E ARETT N
Total comprehensive income attributable to: T ALTEGES
ISR 4REE -
Owners of the parent BATHEA A 3,731,790 3,828,286
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BT ZiERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BHEAEGSRERN
PARENT 12
Basic and diluted EHARKEE
— For profit for the year — EWEA RMBO0.27 RMBO0.28
AER®o0.27t  AE®0287T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BIHMBRRER

December 31,2021 W _E_—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F§ —E-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E ARETT AEETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE RS E 13 5,309,988 5,111,010
Investment property =7/ 14 216,504 225,664
Right-of-use assets FHESE 15(a) 702,726 691,425
Intangible assets M S E 16 1,152 1,171
Prepayments FEI IS 17 365,228 87,184
Deferred tax assets IRIEIBEEE 26 47,479 62,552
Total non-current assets EREEERLE 6,643,077 6,179,006
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =75 18 1,194,257 1,074,604
Trade and bills receivables Z S EINGIE L ENEE 19 1,371,487 899,559
Prepayments and other receivables fafdwIa & it ERIE 20 1,050,093 632,368
Financial assets at fair value through WA EFT ABTRY
profit or loss EMEE 21 500,000 -
Pledged deposits HIRER 22 831 100,072
Cash and bank balances RE RIBIT4LER 22 16,645,709 13,825,147
Total current assets MENEEEE 20,762,377 16,531,750
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENAE
Trade and bills payables B S RN RIERET =% 23 1,028,354 983,987
Other payables and accruals HihEN IR ESTE A 24 1,190,383 1,596,871
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEIRITER 25 5,272,601 1,917,681
Lease liabilities HEas 15(b) 18,501 17,844
Tax payable FE(SIRIE 205,450 270,252
Total current liabilities MENE{E4E%E 7,715,289 4,786,635
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEERE 13,047,088 11,745,115
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES SEMEREEE 19,690,165 17,924,121
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEEEaE
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) 18,061 32,378
Deferred income IEIEU A 27 336,584 358,307
Deferred tax liabilities RIS E 26 99,496 68,000
Total non-current liabilities IEREaELE%E 454,141 458,685
NET ASSETS SERE 19,236,024 17,465,436
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHTRRLE

December 31,2021 W _E_—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E—F§ —E-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Py5E AR®BTr ARETT

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B AFHEE AE(LIER
Share capital G2 28 112,712 112,712
Reserves 18 29 19,123,312 17,352,724
Total equity BT 19,236,024 17,465,436
Xu Shihui Zhuang Weigiang
Eay PR G
Director Director
BE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
aHEmEHR

Year ended December 31,2021 #ZE —&E _—F+_H=+—HIFFE

Exchange
Share Merger Statutory fluctuation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ER
[z B EEE REEE RE A st
RMB’000 RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000
AREBT  ARETT: ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARETET
(note 28) (note 29) (note 29)
(FizE28) (FizE29) (Ff5E29)
At January 1, 2020 R-E-E5—-A—H 112,712 (23,165) 1,762,203 (142,626) 14,567,502 16,276,626
Profit for the year FRiEF - - - - 3,848,653 3,848,653
Other comprehensiveincome  FREMAR S
forthe year:
Exchange differences related  BRIEINEFSH
to foreign operations ERERE - - - (20,367) - (20,367)
Total comprehensive income  FRZE U EBEE
forthe year - - - (20,367) 3,848,653 3,828,286
Final 2019 dividend declared  BER_ZE—AE
E | - - - - (1,736,732) (1,736,732)
Interim 2020 dividend “STERERHKE - - - - (902,744) (902,744)
Transfer from retained profits &1 F{R BB H - - 22,284 - (22,284) -
At December 31, 2020 R-E-EE
+=-A=+-H 112,712 (23,165) 1,784,487 (162,993) 15,754,395 17,465,436
168 Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEE TS SR

Year ended December 31,2021 #F _—EFE_—F+ _H=+—HIFFE

Exchange
Share Merger Statutory  fluctuation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ER
2 aftkE HERE RENGHEE REEF oy
RMB’000 RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000
AE®TR ARETR* ARETR* ARETR* ARETR* ARETR
(note 28) (note 29) (note 29)
(P 28) (M 29) (PtsE29)
At January 1,2021 R-E-—-£—-F—H 112,712 (23,165) 1,784,487 (162,993) 15,754,395 17,465,436
Profit for the year FERRF - - - - 3,725,225 3,725,225
Other comprehensiveincome R EMIEEILE
forthe year:
Exchange differences related  BRIEINEFSH
to foreign operations ERER - - - 6,565 - 6,565
Total comprehensive income  E LR & U #4858
forthe year - - - 6,565 3,725,225 3,731,790
Final 2020 dividend declared  BER-Z_ZF
EEHﬁHy,_\ - - - - (968,704) (968,704)
Interim 2021 dividend —FHHRERE - - - - (992,498) (992,498)
Transfer from retained profits %}éﬁ‘ E eyl - - 26,103 - (26,103) -
At December 31, 2021 —EC-F
+_)EJ =+—-H 112,712 (23,165) 1,810,590 (156,428) 17,492,315 19,236,024

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB19,123,312,000 (2020:
RMB17,352,724,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZEHEREOESHUBRRRANESHEEA
R 119123312000 ( Z B T F£: AR

17,352,724,000 7T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AHRERER

Year ended December 31,2021 #ZE —ZF—

— g+ H=A— O EE

2021 2020
—E-—5 =TT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HIsE ARBT N
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &2 EBPISIRE RE
Profit before tax FRISATEF) 4,985,679 5,106,610
Adjustments for: U T EIEEHREE !
Interest income — bank deposits FEUWA — RITHER (28,805) (7,274)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  ERRE
plant and equipment, net THE R 58 6(c) 419 2,180
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #J2£ « IR MR HEITE 6(c) 738,853 737,810
Depreciation of investment property BEYHEITE 6(c) 9,413 9,468
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (RS EITE 6(c) 33,149 32,824
Amortisation of intangible assets HigmpEE 6(c) 790 823
Impairment loss on trade and B S RUGRIE K FE IR R 45
bills receivables AEEE 6(c) 4,351 497
Impairment of inventories FERE 6(c) 1,780 295
Finance costs FhE Ak A 7 86,241 9,574
Government grants recognised in profitorloss  FA38 7% PR SR AN BT AL 27 (75,545) (31,660)
5,756,325 5,861,147
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BEIRRIT R, (32 h0) 100,000 (100,000)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 RN & E N E R
10 (476,279) (163,182)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and YR RIE K E A EWR A
other receivables (gm R (427,803) 78,939
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =75 gm ,wEb (121,433) 187,456
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B RE R R g
bills payables o Ceb 44,367 (363,781)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HithEIa R EstE A
accruals GRizb) /180 (337,549) 8,791
Cash generated from operations IR ER{SIRE 4,537,628 5,509,370
Interest paid [SANEDSS (53,288) (7,834)
Tax paid BRIE (1,278,687) (1,277,816)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING SRR R e A
ACTIVITIES 3,205,653 4,223,720
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A AH Py —1
SHIEER=E

Year ended December 31,2021 #F _—&FE_—F+ _F=1+—HILFEZ

2021 2020
—E—F§ -t 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT N
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 8E;EBIFRBIRE =
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE MERRERE
equipment and investment property TER R EY (1,277,066) (727,644)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE « BEKEE
plant and equipment BEENPTEMIA 4,068 4,308
Prepayments for right-of-use assets EREESERNE (61,224) (30,898)
Additions to intangible assets mEEERE (771) -
Receipt of government grants for property, WERMDZE ~ RRB Re st A
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets RS EBIFmAL 53,822 19,042
Interest received from bank deposits BiIRTTIERUNEF 2 13,442 5,670
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRIRTTES (E) R (759) 69
Net decrease/(increase) in bank deposits IRITTERURL, (18 0) 7358 900,000 (1,320,000)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN BREESFIARENESHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (368,488) (2,049,453)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED/(USED) IN REEEIFRE (FRE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERE
New bank loans IBTTEM 5,574,601 2,217,681
Repayment of bank loans BERITEN (2,219,681) (300,000)
Dividends paid BNRKRE (1,961,202) (2,639,476)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMRNAZED (16,865) (19,177)
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED/(USED) IN REEEIFRS (FRE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RNEFEFRE 1,376,853 (740,972)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESLXEY
EQUIVALENTS EhNFEE 4,214,018 1,433,295
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FE#JIR& KIREEEBY) 12,375,147 10,962,268
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PER BN R PR 6,544 (20,416)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERIREZEY
AT END OF YEAR 16,595,709 12,375,147
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Pay g —1
SHIEER=E

Year ended December 31,2021 #F _—&FE_—F+ _F=1+—HILFEZ

2021 2020
—E—F§ —E-TE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E ARBT ARETT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEMEFIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks and on hand IRITREFRE 6,692,709 12,334,926
Bank deposits with original maturity of FEEIHAE DR =@ A Y
less than three months RITIER 9,403,000 40,221
Bank deposits with original maturity of TIREIERBB=EE KN
over three months RITE™ 550,000 1,450,000
Cash and bank balances as stated in PR FRFTIIRE K
the statement of financial position IR1T4EER 22 16,645,709 13,825,147
Add: Financial assets at fair value through A ES AR
profit or loss TREE 500,000 -
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of B A EIR B BE
over three months = BB BIRITIERR (550,000) (1,450,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BEREBKRMIIBE MK
the statement of cash flows REEFZY) 16,595,709 12,375,147
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B FEERRIMISE

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The registered
address of the Company is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and beverage in Mainland
China.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the holding
company of the Company is Divine Foods Limited (the “Parent”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu
Yangyang, Divine Foods Limited, Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine Foods-2
Limited, Divine Foods-3 Limited, Hi-Tiger Limited and Xu’s Family Trust
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal

entity, and date of Place of
Name of company incorporation/ registration operations
PAGIE SRR, B aOihR BEME

EE BRI Rt

R/ i A

Dali Foods Holdings Limited BVI Limited liability company BVI

November 4, 2014

Dali Foods Holdings Limited EBHEREERRAT HEERHE
~F-mEt—AmA
Dali Foods Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong S.AR. Limited Hong Kong

Company Limited liability company
November 11,2014
BERAITHERRAT 5E
~F-mEt—A+—8

EFRmEl (58) BRAR

EMNEmERERAHE

ABREEER
ENBRERBRAR (TRaF) RIERH
SREREETHSEEEMMIAER
RHRRAE  ARABINEMMPMERESD
Maples Corporate Services Limited » h it &
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

ERBB—RREERAT - XA KRHE
MEBAR (s TAER) TE2ETEAN
WREFR MM EERIFE -

AREEE(TEER)) XA RABNER
AT Divine Foods Limited (TBRAT]) » 2
—RERBHERBEE (RBEREED X
IHRTF o RRBINERIRE AT HIEL
T -BEERZ L 5THBB L L Divine
Foods Limited ~ Divine Foods-1 Limited ~
Divine Foods-2 Limited ~ Divine Foods-3
Limited ~ Hi-Tiger Limited & 5F X &R #& {5 5

(frrBz TERRRER) ©

BB ATNER
ERBIFEMBATIAGFBUWT !
Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
ordinary/ attributable
registered tothe Company  principal
share capital Direct  Indirect activities
AT
R
BR{TLE/ BiE HE TEEH
A EE
UsD100 100% - Investment
holding
1007 KREER
HKD100 - 100% Investment
holding
100378 KREER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR IMEE

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

174

Name of company

RAERTE

Dali Foods Group Co,, Ltd.
(EFEREEBRRAR) "

EfRREERRAT

Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(RMNEFBRBRAR)

RINEFERERAE
Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(MIEEFERBRAR)

HLENRRBRAR

el

Jilin Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EMEFBRBRAR)

EMEFRMERAR

Gansu Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(HRENRRARAR) "

HREENRRBRAR

el

Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(BmEFERBRAR) "

EREFNRMAERAR

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation/ registration

AL EETES -
A BRI R
A==k

The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) Wholly-owned
foreign enterprise
February 10,1993

iEE \RHAME (THED)
SHEBERE
—N=FZA+H

The PRC Limited
liability company
January 12,1993
HEEREEAT
—hWh=F—A+ZH

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 16,2005
HERERSERT
“EERERATRHE

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 17,2005
HEEREEAT
“ZTRERA+TLEH

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 31, 2005
TEBREEATF
“TRRF/\BZ+-H

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 18,2005
HEEREEAT
“ZTRERATNE

Place of
operations

EHEMES

Mainland China

TEIRH

Mainland China

ElA

Mainland China

e

Mainland China

ElA

Mainland China

e

Mainland China

ElA

1. QAFRREEEH (E)
ERMBARNER (48)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BRTEE/
MR EE

RMB1,450,000,000

AR
1,450,000,000 7T

RMB90,939,305

AR

90,939,3057T

RMB209,000,000

AR

209,000,000 75

RMB100,000,000

AR

100,000,000 70

RMB209,000,000

AR

209,000,000 75

RMB190,000,000

AR
190,000,0007%

to the Company
Direct  Indirect activities

Percentage
of equity
attributable
Principal

FAFEN

AR
Ei# Mg TEEH

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RFRERER (8)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERMBARNER (48)

Nominal value Percentage
Place of incorporation/ of issued of equity
registration, type of legal ordinary/ attributable
entity, and date of Place of registered to the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation/ registration operations share capital Direct  Indirect activities
FAFIRE
EZFoH
AGIE SEMERIL B ETithES g 2k BR{TLE/ BHi HiE TEEB
EEERER R SRS EE
R/ E: A
Chengdu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB105,000,000 - 100% |
(REEFNERBRAR) liability company
June 28,2005
REEN R RERAT HEEREFRAT HEIAY AR
“FRRFERAZTN\A 105,000,000 7T
Ma’anshan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB160,000,000 - 100% |
(BRLENBRERAR)" liability company
October 9, 2007
BRLENERBRAR HEBRETRAE Ay AR
“Z2LF+HANH 160,000,000 7
Shanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB105,000,000 - 100% |
(WAEFERBRAR) " liability company
November 15, 2007
WFEENBRBRAT HEEREFRAT HEIAY AR
“ZTLF+—A+EH 105,000,000 7T
Yunnan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100% |
(EEEFRRARAR) " liability company
March 25, 2008
ERENERERAT HEBRETRAE FEIR ARE
T N\F=AZ+HH 110,000,000 7T
Xiamen Dali Commerce and The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB330,000,000 - 100% Investment
Trade Co., Ltd. liability company property
(EPIEFEERRAR) " April 2,2010
EFEFNEHEERAT HEEREFRAT HFEIA AR REME
“Z-THMNACH 330,000,000 75
Henan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100% |
(TEEFRRARAR) " liability company
July 21,2010
AEENERERA HEBRETRAE FEIR ARE
“2—2FtAT+—H 150,000,000 7T
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1.

176

Name of company

RAERTE

Guangdong Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(BEREMERERAT) "

ERENEMERAT
Nanchang Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(BEEFERERAT)
HMEENBRBIRAS
Jiangsu Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(IExEFBmBRAT) "
TEENEMBRAR
Hebei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(FitEF ERERAT) -
AEENEMERAR
Shaanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(rEEFERERAT) "
RAEENBRBRAT
Shenyang Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EBEFERERAT) "

EHENRMARAR

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation/ registration

AL EETES -
A BRI R
A==k

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 5,2010
HEBREERE
“Z-Zf/\AAH

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 2,2010
HEEREEAF
—2-Z2F)\BZH

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 23,2010
HEBREERH
~F-$£\A-1ZR

The PRC Limited
liability company
April 22,2011
HEEREEAF
“2—FNAZ+H

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 28,2011
HEBREERT
“Z—FAZ+N\H

The PRC Limited

liability company

May 21,2012
HEEREEAF

2 _FRB”"+-H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
operations

EHEMES

Mainland China

eI

Mainland China

El

Mainland China

EIR

Mainland China

El

Mainland China

EIR

Mainland China

El

1. QAFRREEEH (E)
ERMBARNER (48)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BRTEE/
MR EE

RMB200,000,000
AR
200,000,000 75
RMB140,000,000
AR
140,000,000 7T
RMB250,000,000
N
250,000,000 75
RMB100,000,000
AR
100,000,000 7%
RMB80,000,000
AR
80,000,000 75
RMB200,000,000

ARE
200,000,0007T

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Direct  Indirect

FAFEN
AR
Ei# iEE

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal
activities

FEEE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

RAERTE

Fujian Dali Development Co., Ltd.
(BREFNZEBRAR)"

BRENZERERAT
Fujian Dali Foods
Technology Co., Ltd.

(ERENERBEARAR) "
BRENRRNEARAS

Guangxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(BEREFNERARAR) "
EREENERBRATE
Guizhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EMEFERBRAR)
BNEFERERAT
Ma’anshan Dali
Development Co,, Ltd.

(RRLENERERAR) "
BRENERBRAF

Notes:

Place of incorporation/
registration, type of legal
entity, and date of
incorporation/ registration

AL EETES -
A BRI R
A==k

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 26, 2016
HEBREERE
“2—R"ENBZHRH

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 19,2017
HEEREEAF
“2—tERAB+NH

The PRC Limited
liability company
April 15,2018
HEBREERH
- \Fm/A+EH

The PRC Limited
liability company
March 6,2018
HEEREEAF
- \F=AH

The PRC Limited
liability company
January 18,2021
HEEREEAT
- —%—A+/\H

Manufacture and sale of food and beverage

II: Manufacture and sale of food, beverage and related packaging

I8 Manufacture and sale of beverage

English translations of names for identification purpose only

Place of
operations

EHEMES

Mainland China

EIR

Mainland China

TER

Mainland China

EIR

Mainland China

El

Mainland China

EIR

1. QAFRREEEH (E)
ERMBARNER (48)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BRTEE/
MR EE

RMB50,000,000

AR

50,000,000 75

RMB50,000,000

PN

50,000,000 7T

RMB250,000,000

AR

250,000,000 75

RMB200,000,000

AR

200,000,000 75

RMB50,000,000

AR
50,000,000 7

M5z
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SERHEERR

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Direct  Indirect

FAFEN
AR
Ei# iEE

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

FEMHERBKREE

FERIHER

Principal
activities

FEEH

Trading

3

25

v

Research and
development

i

Trading

pii
S0

AR AR
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  theGroup’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 (BB (48)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
of such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

AHEE (5)

M~ B AR AR IR S B A A B8
[ WERNEE - ST BERGR o I
BAENEEEAERINGEHRERE
AR WHEESHAREEZZERE
HIEEHILE -

B kHMGESRESARSB O EEN A
EESAREAARIHERED > BIES
SIIEERE D E L BMER - FTAEHE
RRBBEEKRERE Y RE - IRA X
RFFAERAEEMERRRRZ A RIR
BRI A O IR E RS BURE o

s 58 K2 1B 700 I Bk _E ST P it = TRAZE 1 A
FHP-—ERNZEEE  AAEEEEG
HESMAZFRENR - WERARHEE
R m e (WA EERR) > JIFRE
mRH AR °

HAEBAE BN EASNZESE R
BRIES () ZNBABMNEE (BEEHE)
REME; (NERFERERNREE &
(i) T AP REHERZE ; W) TE
WARBHATE; (ETERBRENR
TAE 5 e (i) BRI R Fr E LRI B ERSUES
B o SRR HEMR S W m BN SR
EERBOERFBEREHEIEEERED
EEFEENAEMERNBEREETH

DIEER@NREEF o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

180

Amendments to HKFRS 9
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond June 30, 2021 (early adopted)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief
to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The
relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) as at December 31, 2021. Since
the interest rates of these instruments were not replaced by RFRs
during the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group. If the interest
rates of these borrowings and interest rate swap are replaced by
RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply the above-
mentioned practical expedient upon the modification of these
instruments provided that the “economically equivalent” criterion
is met.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months.
Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before June 30, 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

2.2

EMNEmERERQRE | £k 2021
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2.3

182

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to

Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current>*
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction ?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use*

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract!
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41*
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

° As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before January 1, 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from January 1, 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

2.3 EfRAERHKEMNEERER
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2.3

184

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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188

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment property and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

Animpairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(i1
(il

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

4.75%
19.00%-23.75%
6.33%-19.00%
9.50%-31.67%

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery
Other equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such property is
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to measure all of
its investment property.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Investment property 2.00%-4.75%
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Pipeline rights

Purchased pipeline rights represent the payments made for the use
right of natural gas and water pipelines, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Plant and property

50 years
3years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

194

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

HE (&

FEEERHBEA (B)
TEEREEMARNERIERRKRE
BNAEEEEDEAKERE - HEH
BEEERIFEERD  AEEREMER
BUYEEEERSNNRENKREREAE
PREB D - AN BAAEME  HEWRARE
KE BRI D IBR Ko 5T AR a R AN EE R ©
EEkzEHEEREEENTS BEREMAE
SPAREEERREERZEEEW A
[EBYEZ R HHI P RERR o BAIATE B HBRER
T HREIREET A UL A o

RAERE EFT A RRB K 2 BUR R K O3
HETEREANEEFELSRERER -

RERHMEMEE

NP KRE
ERIBEEN YD FERIR 0888 H iR i e
PRAETE ~ AT ES AR MRS I
B A FESt AR o

PR D SRR & R E AR 2 SHBURT 7
BEENGHNREARHRFIEREEZSE
THEENEBRL - KTTEEARM
BRI OB S BFRS A EBER AT
BEAETUERBMEL DN EELHA
BB BRI » REBENBIEAT
BN (EALIFHRATFEFARENERE
BE)XSMAGHETRMEE - FTEIERH
ERMDEZEERBERN AN ERERATT
REZENE ZBYGRERRE TX TI]
mHESY ) FRBBRRE BV BREERSE
ISR TREENRZEIRE ©

EMNEmERARARF | £k 2021 195



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

2.4

196

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified orimpaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

198

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2.4

200

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stagel -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecoghnition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average method and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

206

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on receipt
of the goods.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with rights of

return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give

rise to variable consideration.

(1)

(if)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

Arefund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 BEXEHBEHNE (B)

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change at fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding taxes
arising from the distributions of dividends by certain subsidiaries
according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is subject
to judgement on the plan of the distribution of dividends. The Group is
renewing its certificate of Hong Kong tax resident with the likelihood of
“Probable” being entitled to continuously enjoy a preferential tax rate of
5%.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Provision for slow-moving inventories and net realisable value of
inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at
the end of each reporting period, and makes a provision for slow-
moving inventory items. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. A write-down of inventories to net realisable
value is made based on the estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount requires
management’s estimates and judgement. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and the write-
down/write-back of inventories in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and has four reportable operating segments as
follows:

a) Manufacture and sale of household consumption;

b) Manufacture and sale of snack food;

Q) Manufacture and sale of ready-to-drink beverage; and

d) Others

The “Others” segment comprises the sale of packing materials in
relation to the production of food and beverage, and rental income
from the investment property’s prime office space.

Management monitors the gross profit of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis of the

Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segment is disclosed as it is
not regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker for review.

RENTEN
AEREE AEERHERBIEBE
T AAHLEFT2MEEHE BT :

a) HERHEEREHE;

b HFEKHEKHEERS:

o  EERIEERSE ; K
d  Hffhe

TE M) DR EEHEE R R EER
R EEYE > UARREREDENED
WAEZERNEZUA o

EEEERAERKLEDMNEN B
FHARBERD R EGETEIRER « &£
W BEE RS AE BN ERZREN
MEHEBERRE > A ERAEH
WA 2|RDEEMBLE > AL > DEEE
EURRERES - BIERKEAERKE
DNEMEEKREBENDN > WETHEARAERD
i EERRER T ReEERARESH -
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214

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. EENEEH ()

Ready-
Year ended HE-E-—F Household to-drink
December 31,2021 +=-B=+—HLEE consumption  Snack food beverage Others Total
REHE HHER:  DR@E Hith o Hy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERETRE AR%®TR ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
Segment revenue (note 5) A EBURES (Mt s)
Sales to external customers HETINERR 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,874 2,100,802 22,274,399
Other revenue Hilas - - - 19,601 19,601
22,294,000
Segment gross profit S 1,563,263 3,398,934 3,150,399 43,010 8,155,606
Reconciliation: R
Otherincome and gains HAA Rt 1,428,745
Selling and distribution expenses  $4%& RASH4RI L (3,884,073)
Administrative expenses THEY (628,358)
Finance costs =N (86,241)
Profit before tax GREIR vl 4,985,679
Other segment information ~ Hfth3EpEF
Depreciation and amortisation 788 Ko 4 137,781 189,437 312,510 9,414 649,142
Capital expenditure * Bz
Allocated BHE 559,659 379,118 307,224 253 1,246,254
Unallocated Ko 92,807
1,339,061
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended HE_E-ZEF Household
December 31,2020 +-A=+—HLEEE  consumption
REHE

RMB’000

ARETT

Segment revenue (note 5) SE S (st s)

4. BESBEN (R
Ready-
to-drink
Snack food beverage Others Total
KHE B @ BPERER K} Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®TRH ARETR ARET:

Sales to external customers HEFINTRE 2,963,312 10,213,400 6,175,648 1,594,901 20,947,261
Other revenue Bk - - 14,447 14,447
20,961,708
Segment gross profit SEREF 1,391,215 3,852,449 2,955,755 41477 8,240,896
Reconciliation; R .
Other income and gains H A R U 1,036,617
Selling and distribution expenses $5 RASSHREY (3,555,237)
Administrative expenses THRX (606,092)
Finance costs B RS (9,574)
Profit before tax BRI ETER 5,106,610
Other segment information ~ E {13 2pEFEl
Depreciation and amortisation 788 Ke 34 146,052 163,587 344710 9,468 663,817
Capital expenditure * BARRL”
Allocated 22% 282,527 234,731 191,966 1,370 710,594
Unallocated o 47,948
758,542

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment property and intangible assets.

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit were
generated from the sale of food and beverage in Mainland China and
over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets were located in Mainland
China, no geographical information is presented in accordance with
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Information about a major customer

Since no revenue from sales to a single customer of the Group
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, no major
customer information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

EXREXBERENE BEARE £
REE - REMEURETEE -

HIFE R

ER 77 7 B2 [ 9 909% LA - Uit i T A & Ve 1) 3
BETEAMEE AL 0 BXAER
BI90%RYIF R B B E MNP EIA M > I
BRBEBVHREENFREENHE
DIHIEE Y o

ER—RXEERNER

P A A R 1 B — 7 5 P M A
BB 100 M E > B AR B
BTSSR B R N B2 T EER
o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -~ HUGA B s
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WABDHFIT -
(a) Revenue: (a) WA :
2021 2020
—EF-—F TERTTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETT
Revenue from contracts with customers FEEE SRR 22,274,399 20,947,261
Revenue from other sources KEEBMARBIWN 75
Gross rental income from investment CEYELCESTHEN
property operating leases TR URA4RZE 19,601 14,447
22,294,000 20,961,708
Revenue from contracts with customers REEER SN E
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  SHEWRZFEH
For the year ended December 31,2021 BE_E-_—GF+-H=1+—
HIEFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments i) consumption  Snack food beverage Others Total

KENE  fHRR  BERERE Hfth st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ABBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT ARETR

Type of goods or services EYEREES
Sale of goods HEEY 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,874 2,100,802 22,274,399

Timing of revenue recognition  UyEERIERY
Goods transferred at a point in time - A E—BF R 2hEEEY) 3,635,158 9,942,565 6,595,874 2,100,802 22,274,399
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

(a)

Revenue: (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2020

5. WA -~ Efthi ARt (48)

(a) WA ()
REE R EHRE (48)
(i) DEEER ()
BET-THE+-A=*+—

BULFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments HE consumption  Snack food beverage Others Total
FEHE  HEEm  HEER Hith st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETE:
Type of goods or services BYSREEE
Sale of goods HEEY 2963312 10213400 6,175,648 1504901 20,947,261
Timing of revenue recognition I FEsTBSRY
Goods transferred at apointin time  JAE—ERtEELY) 2063312 10213400 6175648 1594901 20947261

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TNERTIE I AR E AT B
mEER > ZEFSENREHY)
StAGHNERE > LEBTHE

Revenue recognised that was included RISVt A SN EEBHN

in contract liabilities at the beginning B S ¢
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HE @

BITHBAIRTEER |
2021 2020
—EZ—& T TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT AREBT T
510,855 538,787

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligation is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
food and beverage and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return and volume rebates which give rise to
variable consideration subject to constraint.

(i) BAYEIE
BERAEERBOETNWERE

I
HEEY
BHSERRU R MR RE

Y AR —RR I 38 30 = 90
RN - B ENAEFE
HIEERARHERN > &3iE
PREMF A R PIEUE o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA -~ Hith A Bz (48)
(b) Otherincome and gains (b) EHUgA RS
2021 2020
% “ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Bank interest income (note 6(c)) RITH B A (FEE6(c) 676,505 544,150
Government grants* B fa A 672,319 429,120
Income from sales of scrap, net & B AR I AEEE 75,819 62,243
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEK
plant and equipment RHEEEN WS 863 605
Foreign exchange differences, net (EREXEFRA 2,961 -
Others Hith 278 499
1,428,745 1,036,617
Government grants include various subsidies received by the Company’s * B EEAATNRB AT BE
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection with enterprise 280 TER T 4% R W 3 0 B 1 BE B OR Ry R
expansion and efficiency enhancement. There are no unfulfilled conditions 2SS AN Z AR o ZEBETE
or contingencies related to these grants. REMKHFNERIAEIE o
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

=

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived after

PRI AT

AEBFECE X BORRMATEF T &40

charging/(crediting): bR (BEA) U EIBRER !
2021 2020
—E_—5F =TT F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
(a) Cost of sales: (a) SHEERRZS :
Cost of inventories sold FEIHERK 12,061,018 10,694,963
(b) Employee benefit expenses (including (b) {EEEFHX (BIFEFRT
directors’ and chief executive’s B (fisxs))
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries TENHE 2,219,730 2,067,971
Pension scheme contributions, social BORE TR ~
welfare and other welfare T EEH R EMEF] 318,409 235,880
2,538,139 2,303,851
(c) Otheritems: () Hfthiag :
Depreciation of property, Y MEKREITE
plant and equipment (note 13) (fftzE 13) 738,853 737,810
Depreciation of investment property KREYETE
(note 14) (PF5E 14) 9,413 9,468
Depreciation of right-of-use assets REEERE
(note 15(a)) (FF5E 15(a)) 33,149 32,824
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) A B EESE Mtz 16) 790 823
Promotion and advertising expenses HENEESRY 2,116,738 1,993,466
Research and development costs FEE Al A 69,292 65,352
Foreign exchange differences, net PEREER TR (2,961) 11,412
Bank interest income (note 5) SRITF BUWA (Mi5E5) (676,505) (544,150)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - MER
plant and equipment RBEENEEIREFEE 419 2,180
Government grants (note 5(b)) BRI A 8G (BT 5E 5(b)) (672,319) (429,120)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables B ENFIER
(note 19) FEWERRE (FI5E19) 4,351 497
Impairment of inventories EFERIE 1,780 295

ME - BERRE REMERERESR
ENEURELEERHEFAGHERR
Hithr SR =AY TR ~ TEE R D
$HF ) e TEHE A ) o

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and right-of-use assets, and amortisation of intangible assets
are included in “administrative expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

MEmAStAGHEBERREMGEE K@K
B9 TTERRES ) K TEHEE R o

Research and development costs are included in “administrative
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. FERZE
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: HEKESEENRERARDTIIEDT
2021 2020
T % -S> 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETT
Interest on bank loans RITEFFE 84,129 9,053
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEMNE 2,112 521
86,241 9,574
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION EERESITHASEM
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed Rk EmRA ~ FHB R FMEBGI383(1)(a)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the (b)~ (O NERAT GREEENZER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies MBI 2 PRBEFE RS THRASFHHN
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as R
follows:
2021 2020
T % =S5 3
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETT
Fees ok 572 572
Other emoluments: HihiNg -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind i N ERAL R EYIET 9,451 8,685
Pension scheme contributions and RIS SHEER R EEH
social welfare 33 21
9,484 8,706
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

8. EFRESTHASHMH (4)

(a) WIFFHITESR
FREMNBIIFNTESRNEEL

year were as follows: T
2021 2020
-5 —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 2ENEE 143 143
Mr. Liu Xiaobin EANS i e 143 143
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEEF LT 286 286
572 572

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

Executive directors and non-executive directors

FRNEEMEIB I IFNITE RN

& (=

(b) BMITEFRIFH

FoEE D) 0

—= =

f—

TE=S

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances contributions
and benefits and social
Fees inkind welfare Total
e 2R BIAE5tE
g BUEN HRRLEERN it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
2021 > b=
Executive directors: HiTES !
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive)  Er B4
(&BITHAS) - 1,991 - 1,991
Ms. Xu Yangyang HEBT L - 2,286 2,295
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEdEE - 3,847 3,856
Ms. Huang Jiaying BEEZT - 1,327 15 1,342
- 9,451 33 9,484
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Ms. Xu Biying FEEZL - - - B
Ms. Hu Xiaoling BTt - - - -
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8.

222

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION 8. EEREE{THABIHM (B8)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEBRIEHITES (8)
(continued)
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances contributions
and benefits and social
Fees inkind welfare Total
Ei =) BikEsE
ok EVEN  ERREER 4ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
2020 b et -
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive)  EritHiBscs
(RETBAB) - 2,082 - 2,082
Ms. Xu Yangyang FhEETT - 2,368 8 2,376
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HREREL: - 3,847 8 3,855
Ms.Huang Jiaying (appointed ~ BEZEZLT(RE_—F
as an executive director on ZBN\BEZMF
February 8,2021) ARTESR) - 388 5 393
- 8,685 21 8,706
Non-executive directors: EHTES ©
Ms. Xu Biying FEEYL - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling Eil%g e - - - .

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2020: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2020: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

AEREHMES

FRESESHMEEEE=2EF(CZ
“TF I ZRER)  KENFMEFEEN
EXHKizEs - HifME (CE22F 1 M)
RemilEELIFARATEFTHRSITH

AB » EFERFBEFEDT

2021 2020

—§-—&  "TIEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARST ABETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e N REL R EYIEF 3,906 4 449
Pension scheme contributions BAREHEIER R ZEF

and social welfare 18 15

3,924 4,464

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

HFMETIHRENNIFEERIFRSITH
AEBHREHMESHABUT

follows:
Number of employees
BEAE

2021 2020
b St TEIZE
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7752 1,500,000 7875 - -
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 772 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7875 ZE 2,500,000 87T - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 B 75 E 3,000,000 78 7T 1 -
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 75 E 3,500,000 B 7T - 1
2 2
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10.

224

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HKS$2,000,000 (2020: HKS$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

Under the Income Tax Law of the PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries that
are established in the PRC are subject to income tax at a base rate of
25%, except for some subsidiaries which are subject to income tax at a
preferential rate of 15% in different periods between January 1, 2014
and December 31, 2030.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from January 1, 2008 and applies to earnings after December
31, 2007. In addition, under the arrangement between Mainland China
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of
Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to
Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for based on
the expected dividends to be distributed from these subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits generated since January 1,
2008.
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

10. FRiSR (48)
SN EBERBAMT |

2021 2020
—E-—5 “ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETF T

Current tax: BIEATRIE !
Income tax in PRC for the year FRRER PSR 1,213,885 1,311,084
Deferred tax (note 26) IEIEFR 1A (MI5E26) 46,569 (53,127)
Total tax charge for the year FRRIES HAEZE 1,260,454 1,257,957

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

BARNBRERZHNE QB PREREE
& F& A BRIR A F 8075 E IR R IR IE R
S EAR BRI RAIRIAR ST A H RN ¢

rate is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F TEZIEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETIT
Profit before tax RIREIEA 4,985,679 5,106,610
Tax at the statutory tax rate (25%) R E R R AT TE (25%) 1,246,420 1,276,653
Effect of tax relief enjoyed by ETHBARZESR
certain subsidiaries BRNIENTE (69,004) (120,029)
Effect of tax concessions and exemption RIBEE MR E (7,308) (4,749)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A BT EBRIEEE (2,073) (4,103)
Income not subject to tax* BIEMFRBIIA (12,730) (9,591)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR LN 1,706 1,282
Unrecognised tax losses RIESDINIERTIE 3,212 11,717
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REE PN B AR DK
the distributable profits of FEB 5% TRINMNEE
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 100,231 106,777
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAREEBEMEIERIRIES H 1,260,454 1,257,957

Income not subject to tax mainly includes the profit from the primary agricultural
product processing, which is exempted from income tax in accordance with the PRC

tax law.
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DIVIDENDS 11. RS2
2021 2020
—g=—& —T=F%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx ARMEFT
Interim — HKD0.087 (2020: HKD0.075) FREA — SR EA%0.087 AT
per ordinary share (Z2ZZ4F 1 0.07587T) 992,498 902,744
Proposed final — HKD0.076 (2020: HKD0.085)  1Ez%kH — SIEZ @A 0.076 BT
per ordinary share (Z2ZZ=4F 1 0.08587T) 856,198 986,228
1,848,696 1,888,972
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the BREKNNAFERBREBFEALTR
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, RREERRBFEAE EHER > HAIME
=
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY  12. BARZ@RIERITEAELS

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500
(2020: 13,694,117,500) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

BEF

EREABNEENRES AL ERE
HZRFAEAEGEERARNRERNBET
13694117500139( T B #F:
13,694,117,5008%) Z B ARHINIRETFIIEGTE o

REBNBE_SE_— GG _E-_FF
F BB B R R
Z2HEETEBR -

SBREARBERMNOAEDENTER !

2021 2020
ot - 3 BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Earnings &
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BABEERER
holders of the parent B AB T 3,725,225 3,848,653
Number of shares
IS E
2021 2020
Shares Bg{n
Weighted average number of ordinary FREEITEBERY
shares in issue during the year HEFIIEL 13,694,117,500  13,694,117,500
Earnings per share srREH
Basic and diluted (RMB) HA R #E (AR T) 0.27 0.28
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥1% « BER®E

Motor  Plantand Other Construction
Buildings vehicles machinery equipment in progress Total
tERE
B¥F RE kigss  Hftiefs HEEIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARETRT ARETER
December 31,2021 N-E-—-%
+ZA=+-H
At January 1, 2021: RZEZ—%—F—H:
Cost B 1,949,398 129,147 7,237,227 895,177 278,623 10,489,572
Accumulated depreciation SEHTERHE
and impairment (677,641) (92,013) (4,110,257)  (498,651) - (5,378,562)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
At January 1, 2021, RZZZ_—%—-fF—H"
net of accumulated MBRRFNERRE
depreciation and impairment 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
Additions RE 17,443 9,070 263,380 80,429 571,496 942,318
Depreciation provided during R 5HERIITE
the year (note 6) (Mizte) (106,365) (14,525) (508,073) (109,890) - (738,853)
Transfers by 30,406 2,207 195,754 12,943 (241,310) -
Disposals HE - (1,531) (2,940) (16) - (4,487)
At December 31, 2021, ATET—F
net of accumulated +A=1t—-R>
depreciationand impairment R EFHTERAE 1,213,241 32,355 3,075,591 379,992 608,809 5,309,988
At December 31, 2021 ATET—F
+-R=+—-H:
Cost M 1,997,247 138,893 7,693,921 988,533 608,809 11,427,403
Accumulated depreciation REMERAE
and impairment (784,006)  (106,538) (4,618,330)  (608,541) - (6,117,415)
Net carrying amount RERE 1,213,241 32,355 3,075,501 379,992 608,809 5,309,988
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13.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Motor
Buildings vehicles
52 e

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR

13. % - BER&E (B

Plant and Other  Construction
machinery  equipment in progress Total
LERE

Rigs  Httwte  HRIR “ast
RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR

December 31,2020 R-E-EE
+ZR=+-H

At January 1, 2020: RZZEZ2F—F—H:
Cost %N 1,638,759 119,645 6,668,378 757,316 598,160 9,782,258
Accumulated depreciation SEHTERHE

and impairment (597,403) (78,535) (3,564,579) (400,235) - (4,640,752)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,041,356 41,110 3,103,799 357,081 598,160 5,141,506
At January 1, 2020, RIZZZE—-F—H>

net of accumulated MBERHTERBE

depreciation and impairment 1,041,356 41,110 3,103,799 357,081 598,160 5,141,506
Additions wne 20,233 9,526 185,526 48,054 450,463 713,802
Depreciation provided during ~ FEREHEMITE

the year (note 6) (Miz%6) (80,238) (13,478) (545,678) (98,416) - (737,810)
Transfers E=Ee 290,406 525 389,025 90,044 (770,000) -
Disposals HE - (549) (5,702) (237) - (6,488)
At December 31, 2020, ATETRE

net of accumulated +-R=+—8H"

depreciation and impairment  MIBRREHTE R E 1271757 37134 3,126,970 396,526 218623 5111010
At December 31, 2020: ATETERE

+_B=+-H:

Cost [p% 1,949,398 129,147 7,231,227 895,177 278623 10,489,572
Accumulated depreciation REMERAE

and impairment (677,641) (92,013) (4,110,257) (498,651) - (5,378,562)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB61,270,000 (2020: RMB182,408,000). Notwithstanding this,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
titles to these buildings at the end of the reporting period. As at
December 31, 2021, nil of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
was pledged.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. B
2021 2020
—E-—F§ —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
At January 1 w—A—H
Cost [D%N 270,629 269,259
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REHTERRE (44,965) (35,497)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 225,664 233,762
At January 1, net of accumulated R—A—8  HRR5
depreciation and impairment TERBIE 225,664 233,762
Addition =T 253 1,370
Depreciation provided during the year (note 6) AN EHEMITEE (Fiz6) (9,413) (9,468)
At December 31, net of accumulated W+—B=+—8">
depreciation and impairment MR sHTERRE 216,504 225,664
At December 31: R+ZA=4+—H":
Cost B 270,882 270,629
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REHTERRE (54,378) (44,965)
Net carrying amount REFE 216,504 225,664
The Group’s investment property consists of one investment property in NEBENKREYEBRE—BUNPERM
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined that NETEYE - REBEWENME ~ FERE
the investment property consists of a class of asset, which is b RABESRERBEYECE—EE
commercial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the E o B o XATIEARMAEL o

property. The Company applies the cost model.
The investment property is leased to third parties under operating REYMERESERELATE=/ > H

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the R B EN I TSR R 5E 15 ©
financial statements.
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15.

230

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, property and
land used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and property generally have lease terms of 3
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing
the leased assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts
that include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

15. A8
REBEAETEA

FEREMEEBIBANZERE - MEK
ITHIEEHFTAEEGHN - AEEMAER
AUEBFE A 50 F AFR & L T — %Lﬁ
o BRBEZE L MANRR > BAa

B ARIE - BB R EBAON—RER
A3F - AERBETAENERINTERD

HEEEE- yIE%H‘EAﬁ’J’T IERRH#&
IHEER L RFBEENR > sFERTX
E—PE® o

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the AEBPREANCEREESEREER
movements during the year are as follows: EENNE
Prepaid
land lease Plant and
payments property Total
FE{TLith
=R REN RERNE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEEFIT AREEFTT AREEFIT
As at January 1,2020 N_Z2-EF—HF—H 590,466 18,280 608,746
Additions =1 65,818 49,755 115,573
Depreciation charge ERY (15,053) (17,771) (32,824)
Exchange adjustment PE R AR - (70) (70)
As at December 31, 2020 and RS =y
January 1,2021 +—_B=+—HFK
S = R = 641,231 50,194 691,425
Additions RE 41,224 3,869 45,093
Depreciation charge ERY (15,475) (17,674) (33,149)
Revision of a lease term arising  RFEEA 0] £ 84 HARS
from a change in the non- BAEREHMETEER
cancellable period of a lease - (650) (650)
Exchange adjustment PE DA% - 7 7
As at December 31, 2021 RN —4F
+-A=+—8 666,980 35,746 702,726
The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments AEENAENEENZEEEETRER
represents the carrying amount of land use rights in Mainland AT ERENEEE R

China. The Group was in process of applying for the land
certificates with a carrying amount of RMB41,131,100 as at
December 31,2021 (December 31, 2020: RMB16,118,000).
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

15. A8 (48)
TEBIEAERTEA (48)

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

HERE
FRNEESEREEREESNT :

2021 2020
—E-—F 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
Carrying amount at January 1 K—A—HMERAEE 50,222 19,763
New leases WAE 3,869 49,155
Accretion of interest recognised during FREHEREAFE
the year 2,112 521
Payments AN (18,977) (19,698)
Revision of a lease term arising from R E o] sTiHER R
a change in the non-cancellable ARV EEMEST IR
period of a lease (650) -
Exchange adjustment PE AR (14) (119)
Carrying amount at December 31 R+ZA=+—HKREE 36,562 50,222
Analysed into: DA
Current portion TRENER Y 18,501 17,844
Non-current portion JERENZ 18,061 32,318
36,562 50,222

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to

the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are (c)

as follows:

REaENIIHR DI ER IR
FRMIFE38 ©

FAE IR R ZERINT ¢

2021 2020

T —ZTTEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEaBNE 2,112 521
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  {ERAEEEITERL 33,149 32,824
Total amount recognised in profitorloss — FRIEmEERAVAE S EE 35,261 33,345
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB19,601,000 (2020:
RMB14,447,000) (note 5).

At December 31, 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants are as follows:

15. A8 (48)

FEBESBEAA

NEBAEELEYE (fF14) » BFL
EHEZH THERME —IBmEYZE -
HERTEREERAL ZMIRFRE MR
BEFFR{THNMISBR T EL AR SR
B o REBPREAEIENASIAZA
R 19,601,000 c(ZE - F: AR
14,447,000 7T) (Mf5E5) ©

RZZ2_—F+"B=+—H8> x&ER
ARIRAAEIR R B EAR P 5T 32 B9 R BJ BEH A
EHRERKRMRTRBASOROT ¢

2021 2020

—®-—F C—T-TfF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Within one year —fFR 13,109 10,412
After one year but within two years —FBEMERN 6,862 6,370
After two years but within three years MEBRE=FHN 4,013 2,840
After three years but within four years —FERERERN 2,882 163
After four years but within five years MEFEBERFR 3,026 -
29,892 19,785
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16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. E|ICEE
Pipeline
Software rights Total
B EiEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT ARETF T
December 31, 2021 —E-—+-HA=+—H
Cost at January 1, 2021, net of ATE T —F—-F—HW
accumulated amortisation A 0 bR E st 442 729 1,171
Additions during the year FRHE 771 - 771
Amortisation provided during FERFHEREH
the year (note 6) (FfsE6) (367) (423) (790)
At December 31,2021 A —F
+—A=+—H 846 306 1,152
At December 31, 2021: R —F
+-_B=+—Q1":
Cost A 5,693 4,670 10,363
Accumulated amortisation S (4,847) (4,364) (9,211)
Net carrying amount EREFE 846 306 1,152
December 31, 2020 —E-TH+-"A=+—H
Cost at January 1, 2020, net of N_E-EEFE—F—HK
accumulated amortisation B o bR Rt 814 1,180 1,994
Amortisation provided during FERFHERETH
the year (note 6) (FfsE6) (372) (451) (823)
At December 31, 2020 A EBETF
+-_B=+—H 442 729 1,171
At December 31, 2020: RIZEIZE
+-_B=+—Q1":
Cost ARz 4922 4,670 9,592
Accumulated amortisation Sty (4,480) (3,941) (8,421)
Net carrying amount IRERE 442 729 1171
EVNEmEBRBRAE | £ 2021 233



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

17. PREPAYMENTS 17. FE{IFRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F TEIZE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Prepayments for the purchase of property, EEYE « MEKREREN
plant and equipment SEINEOE 365,228 87,184
Prepayments are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. None of the FBNHEAEEREEATE o B EY
above assets is either past due or impaired. JERHAT HE o
18. INVENTORIES 18. 75
2021 2020
-5 “—ZTTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Raw materials and packaging materials [RAA IR B EE A e 884,900 846,394
Finished goods DA 309,357 228,210
1,194,257 1,074,604
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. BREWRFIAREWELE
2021 2020
—E-—fF BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFx AREEFT
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 1,383,729 904,950
Bills receivable e ZE 5 - 2,500
Impairment BE (12,242) (7,891)
1,371,487 899,559

ERBNF0ZEI0R o RIMEHAFK » 128
EHHRIIGEEEEREHNEZEW
TUER FEN ZHRARE OO T ¢

The credit periods range from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—% TECRE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF ARETT

Within 90 days 90KA 1,198,171 841,332
91 to 180 days 91Z 180K 163,122 48,399
181 to 365 days 181 E 365K 10,194 9,828
1,371,487 899,559

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills

B2 RWEER R B BIERFHEEHU

receivables are as follows: T
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
At beginning of year F4) 7,891 7,394
Impairment losses (note 6(c)) HEEE (Mi5E6(c) 4,351 497
At end of year FR 12,242 7,891
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19.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighed outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Bills receivable are bank acceptance bills that are unconditionally
accepted by banks within the maturity period, and there is no loss

allowance forimpairment of bills receivable.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at December 31, 2021

Within
90 days
920 KA

0.44%
1,203,418

Within
90 days
PN

0.59%
846,347

Expected credit loss rate TEEREEEBEX

Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRE#E(E (A REETIT)

Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEERE EE518
(NR#FT)

As at December 31, 2020

Expected credit loss rate EEREEEBEX

Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BREI42{E (A RIETF7T)

Expected credit losses (RMB'000) FEHA(E #5418
(ANR#FT)
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5,015

8 2RI R B RE (8)
NSRS DR RE R TRED
Wt BIEAEESE  BHENENRAS
BOBRERNSEEF S HARNEH
ABEE - ZAERBRAEMBER
ERFERNREQEAENEMAEE
1B BRI R ASCE R AN S
RIS EH o

FEW R B AR RTIHARA SR ERNN
RTARREE > BUELBERERE
RBEREHE -

TEREBRERRE HIAEEEZEWR
IR AR EERBRER

WZE=-—%+=-HA=+—H

91 to 181 to
180 days 365 days Total
91F 180X 181F 365K st
1.43% 31.24% 0.88%
165,486 14,825 1,383,729
2,364 4,631 12,242
—EZEF+=HA=+—H
91to 181to
80 days 365 days Total
91F 180K 181F 365K #ast
1.05% 19.57% 0.87%
46,384 12,219 904,950
485 2,391 7,891
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20.

21.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. Faf{Ishia R H{thEYER
2021 2020
g% t St 22
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFIT
Prepayments BN/ 680,515 395,847
Interest receivables FEYF & 295,684 115,141
Other receivables HithrEW R IE 41,068 74,331
VAT recoverable (i) FHHINILER () 19,276 44972
Deposits HE 13,550 2,077
1,050,093 632,368
0] The Group’s sales of goods are subject to Value Added Tax (VAT”) in Mainland China. 0] AEENEREEABMNTPEIRER (EE
Input VAT on purchases can be deducted from output VAT payable. The VAT 1) o IREBAVETRILER T B (I IRIZE
recoverable is the net difference when the deductible input VAT is greater than the R HE o BRI NEEIBER KR IHIE
output VAT. The applicable tax rate for domestic sales of the Group was 13% in 2021 IREMREF > PJWEIEERAFERE - A&
(2020: 13%). ENHENBRRER - —F513% (2
TTTE 1 13%) o
Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing T RRIE R H AR R IE Y 2 MK 3R ~ R
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The financial assets included in FFEREEEIERAA o st A LGSR E
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent A A BT HR T R AV K B HA AR IE B FE LUK
history of default and past due amounts. As at December 31, 2021 and REAH RIZEZ—FRZIZEZZHF
2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. +ZB=1—0H > BEEEERTE AR o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  21. BAFEFABGHNEMEE

ORLOSS

2021 2020
g5 TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABGENESHEE
profit or loss 500,000 -
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss above were LB AFEFABENEREESEE

wealth management products with original maturity of less than one
month issued by commercial banks. They were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest and they were held for
trading.

RITEITHRGBHR—EAURA E’Jﬁﬁﬁé

meo ZEEEREAEATES AER

TMEE > HTHARESNRESRT Wé

AEERAEMR > MEBRIERS
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22, CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 22,

238

RERRITHEFRERER

2021 2020

—E-—F TEIZE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREEFIT

Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRE 6,692,709 12,334,926
Bank deposits BITIFERR 9,953,831 1,590,293
16,646,540 13,925,219

Less: Pledged short-term deposits VB BREERTER (831) (100,072)
Cash and bank balances RE K IR1T4EER 16,645,709 13,825,147

The Group’s cash and bank balances at December 31, 2021 and 2020
were denominated in the following currencies:

FERR B —FR B BE+H
=+ —HMRERIBITEHUTIIEE

& :
2021 2020
—E_—F TECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETF T
RMB N 16,194,178 13,745,464
HKD T 427,305 34,593
usb e 24,226 45,090
16,645,709 13,825,147

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Bank deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and twelve months depending on the cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits represent the amounts pledged to issue letters of

credit earn interest at interest rates stipulated by the respective financial
institutions.
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23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. BEREGPIERENERE
2021 2020
—E-—fF BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFx AREEFT
Trade payables B REMNTRIE 1,028,354 817,407
Bills payable FEAT SRR - 166,580
1,028,354 983,987

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the transaction date, is as follows:

R|BEHRR  REXZ BRI ONEZE
IR B RBORE DT

2021 2020

—g-—-§ —=-=%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT

Within 90 days EFNZ 1,018,249 827,297
91 to 365 days 91F 365K 7,871 148,664
1to 2 years 15245 873 4 457
Over 2 years 2FEL 1,361 3,569
1,028,354 983,987

Certain bills payable were secured by the pledge of the Group’s short-
term deposits of RMB100,000,000 at December 31, 2020. (note 22). The
Group’s short-term deposits were due in the year ended December 31,
2021.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within 30 days. The bills payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 365 days.

ETENERURERNR S5+
B=+—H1E T A R 100,000,000
TTABRERR (H5E22) o KEEBIEE
ERREE_S_—5+"_F=+—HL
FEERIH -

BEEMPIERE - —MRPR30RAEH -
ETZHEAETE » —fRH 365 RNASH o
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HthFERTRIEREEB
2021 2020
—E-—F ECE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARST7T AEBTIT
Contract liabilities HHEaE 300,941 510,855
Payroll and welfare payables &S T& S tatl 304,623 332,283
Payables for purchase of property, BEY* « KRB KRR ENREMNRIE
plant and equipment 149,531 205,982
Other tax payable HhERRIE 153,636 172,534
Other payables HAthFE (S 7B 130,212 146,013
Accruals EstE 84,290 142,054
Payables for purchase of prepaid land BEMEN T A ENRNENRIE
lease payments 67,150 87,150
1,190,383 1,596,871
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: SHBEEREENT
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2021 2020 2020
—T-—F B TF T TF
+=ZA=+—8 +=B=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%SFT ARETIT ARETT
Short-term advances received BEREFfZRIE
from customers
Sale of goods HEER 300,941 510,855 538,787
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on HMEMREARER FetERERE
demand. RIEIE o
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. :tERITIEE
2021 2020
—E-—-F 2%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRHE (%) A ARETR EREAME©®) AHE  ARETE
Current BN
Bankloans —unsecured  $R1TE N — WILIR 1-3 2022 5,272,601 2-3 2021 1,917,681

ok St —EF
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. {EIEMIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are FRIRLERIBEEREENEHUNT -
as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIEAE
2021
—T—F
Withholding
taxes
A
RMB’000
AR®BTT
At January 1,2021 R_Z—_—F—HF—H (68,000)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FRNEBEEEmRNIELRIE (M 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (31,496)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 A B —F+"_B=+—HK
IFIEFRIA S [E48%R (99,496)
Deferred tax assets IBIERIEEE
2021
- a2
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
Unrealised future
internal sales taxable
profit profits Accruals Others Total
AR IR
REFAS  ERRER
SHERR ] i) R ER Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR AR®Trm AE®Tr ARETR  AEBTR
At January 1, 2021 = = | 11,132 4,120 33,250 14,050 62,552
Deferred tax (charged)/ FRGORE) /5HA
credited to the statementof 18R FRAVEIERIE
profitor lossduringtheyear — (Fff310)
(note 10) (124) (1,749) (14,453) 1,253 (15,073)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE_—F+_H
December 31,2021 =+—BNELRE
BERE 11,008 2,371 18,797 15,303 47,479
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. IRIEFRIA (48)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEMIAEE
2020
TECEE
Withholding
taxes
Stk
RMB’000
AREEFTT
At January 1, 2020 A ZZZF—H—H (122,793)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FERBBHRINBRMIELEIRIE (5 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 54,793
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 RIE_EF+_A=+—HH
IELRIE & B4EEE (68,000)
Deferred tax assets IBIERIEEE
2020
2T
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
Unrealised future
internal sales taxable
profit profits Accruals Others Total
AR
REFRE it Sl
HE R M1 et ER Hth a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At January 1,2020 NZEZZFE—F—H 11,329 4250 34,640 13,999 64,218
Deferred tax (charged)/ FROORE) /A
credited to the statement BarNELRE
of profit or loss during the (BifzE 10)
year (note 10) (197) (130) (1,390) 51 (1,666)
Gross deferred tax assets at WE2-EF+_H
December 31,2020 =+—BNELERE
BERE 11,132 4,120 33,250 14,050 62,552
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of W —&FE+_B=+—0H " ﬁ;ﬁ?jt)\

RMB71,289,000 as at December 31, 2021 (2020: RMB58,415,000), as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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27. DEFERRED INCOME 27. {RIEUWTA
2021 2020
—E-—F TEIZE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFIT
At beginning of year F4] 358,307 370,925
Additions during the year FRRE 53,822 19,042
Released to profit or loss BEER (75,545) (31,660)
At end of year FXR 336,584 358,307
Deferred income is derived from government grants for capital EIEW A SR B BN S Y2 ~ BB R sk B P
expenditure incurred for property, plant and equipment and prepaid EENBEARZHERAATMNE QBN
land lease payments of the Company’s subsidiaries. The amounts are TR E TR AL o EZEMIBRIE LT
deferred and amortised over the estimated useful lives of the respective EEMEBEENGSTERFRAEE - #iE
assets. There are no unfulfilled conditions and contingencies relating to BZ LML BN REMMNIRG KRS
these grants. o
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. fgas
Shares {7
2021 2020
-5 —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
Authorised: JERE
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares 50,000,000,000 A& & H% 0.01 B 7THY
of HKD0.01 each ZiEps 409,085 409,085
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
13,694,117,500 ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500 B &A% 0.01 BITHY
HKDO0.01 each ZiEAs 112,712 112,712
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

29.

244

Shares (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and

share premium is as follows:

28. g7 (48)

R (48)
UTAAAABRTRARRA HELE
HEE

Number of Equivalent
issued and nominal
fully paid value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
BETR
AYzfIn  SEEED
LiEk#E ik R i fE “act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AEETTT AERETFTT
At January 1,2020 NIEZZFE—F—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 - 112,712
At December 31, 2020 and RIZZZE+-A=+—8&K
January 1,2021 I 13,694,117,500 112,712 - 112,712
At December 31, 2021 RZE-——f+-B=+—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 - 112,712
RESERVES 29. f#fE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 168 to 169 of the financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value. Details
of the movements in the share premium are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents capital contributions from
the equity holders of the Company. The additions in prior years
represent the injections of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective companies. The deductions
in prior years represent the acquisitions of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries by the Group from the Controlling Shareholders which are
accounted for as distributions to the Controlling Shareholders.
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29.

30.

31.

RESERVES (continued)
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly-
foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group are required
to allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined by their
boards of directors, of their profit after tax in accordance with the PRC
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the statutory reserve fund
(the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF, which is non-distributable except in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised
asissued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles of association,
a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a domestic company is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) to the SRF. After the balance of such reserve reaches
50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The SRF can be utilised to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. However, the balance of the SRF must be maintained
ata minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On December 2, 2021, the board of directors of the Company approved
the adoption of Share Award Scheme (“the Scheme”) and the Share
Purchase pursuant to the Scheme. The purposes and objectives of the
Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible
participants and to provide them with incentives in order to encourage
and retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development of
the Group. CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited, or other trustee
corporation(s) (“the Trustee”) are appointed by the Company for the
administration of the Scheme from time to time. The Trustee shall not
exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares held by it as nominee
or under the Trust (if any).

As at December 31, 2021, no share award was granted to any eligible
participants. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group did not
record any share award expenses.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have significant contingent
liabilities (December 31, 2020: Nil).

29.

30.

31.
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 32.

FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

4 A
o o =]

(a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB3,869,000 (2020: RMB49,755,000)
and RMB3,869,000 (2020: RMB49,755,000), respectively, in respect
of lease arrangements for plant and equipment.

RERERME

FEIFRERS

FR - AEERBRERRENEER
HEERREEREEAGENIFRE
RE DR A ANR3869,0005T (ZF
T=F 1 AR#49,755,0007T) RAR
#53869,000C (B _ZBE: AR
49,755,000) ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) REFFEIELENEREESH
2021 g5
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
sHEIRITEMR HEaR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AEBTT
At January 1,2021 A —E-_—F—H—H 1,917,681 50,222
Changes from financing cash flows MERS RS 3,354,920 (16,865)
New leases HHEE - 3,869
Interest expense FEREx - 2,112
Interest paid classified as operating PRARERERENENFE
cash flows - (2,112)
Revision of a lease term arising from REER oA S £
achange in the non-cancellable eI
period of a lease - (650)
Exchange adjustment ERAE - (14)
At December 31,2021 Rom-——&+—A=+—H 5,272,601 36,562
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  32. &Z8BE&REXRMEE (&)

FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changesin liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BEISEEMNEGES @)
(continued)
2020 k-t - 3
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
sTREIRTTER HE&aE®
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETT
At January 1, 2020 A CECEF—-H—H - 19,763
Changes from financing cash flows MERS RS 1,917,681 (19,177)
New leases HHEE - 49,755
Interest expense FMERZ - 521
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKERESRENELTE
cash flows - (521)
Exchange adjustment BE R FEEE - (119)
At December 31, 2020 N2 _BF+_A=+—H 1,917,681 50,222
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERETRHLEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FARERERNEERE T AEEE
cash flows is as follows: LI
2021 2020
—E_—F “ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Within operating activities KESEBNA 2,112 521
Within investing activities BEREA - -
Within financing activities REEEEA 16,865 19,177
18,977 19,698
33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. HEHM
Details of the Group’s bills payable and letters of credit, which are AEEBNRNEELERAE UREREE
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 22 and 23 to EIRIR) SF ISR B PSR ARMIEE 22 K2 23 ©

the financial statements.
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34. COMMITMENTS 34, KIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the RIRERAR » REBRNEARFENT !
reporting period:

2021 2020
—BT-F s
RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBFT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: [ERE DB e
Property, plant and equipment Y~ R BER 450,383 297,177
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. FAMKAGRXS
(a) Transactions with related parties: (a) BARABANKS :
(i)  Sales of products (i) HEESR
2021 2020
—E-—%§ “BEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLBRENHLOBEERRAR 226 180
The sales to Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd., which are mELZBRENTALBEERREA
companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, B) (BIERREERNAT) 1F
were made according to the published prices and HEHETHIRIRIE M T AEE
conditions offered to the major customers of the Group. TERLWNE B MHER R
AT o
(i)  Sales of vehicles (i) $HERHE
2021 2020
—E-—F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBFT AREETFTT
Shanghai Century Chenze Industrial LBELEREEERRAT

Co,, Ltd. 971 -
Shanghai Century Chenze Industrial Co., Ltd., was LBttEREEXRRATH
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders. The equipment TR AR RIS o R EEIRITH
was sold at a price mutually agreed after taking into EBrREFHEERENEIRE
account the prevailing market price. EGRIRE -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Rental expenses

Rental expenses represent expenses from leases of
properties and prepaid land lease payments which are
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements
made between the Group and Fujian Dali Foods Group Co.,
Ltd., which is a company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders.

The operating leases have been recognised as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in the financial statements, upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases effective from January 1,
2020. The rental expense payment for the year ended
December 31, 2021 was RMB19,178,000 (for the year ended
December 31, 2020: RMB19,928,000).

35. BAEtARS (ﬁ"é)

(a)

BLRA S HIRE

(i)

(IIE

%ﬂﬁﬁﬁi‘i

HEHIEREY =R &
BN T HBEENR  BAER
HERENEREREGRAE
(—EHEERRKRRZENAR)
FRYER RV IR E ©

BT H5—H— HiEHRMm
EBVHREELNSE 167HEE
% KEHER T HBRERESD
AFAREEREESRE &
EE-—F+"B=+—H
IEENESHIORAAR
#19,178,000 (BE_ZT &
E+ZHE=Z+—HIEEE: A
FRi 19,928,000 7T) ©

Services purchased (ivy BRERH
2021 2020
—g_—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLRBREMNTABEEERAE 1,781 654
Hubei Sky Island Lake IR ERESRB R AR
Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd 1,163 404
2,944 1,058
The purchases from Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. and MEZRENTLEBEERA

Hubei Sky Island Lake Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd, which
are companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders,
were made according to the published prices and
conditions offered by the associates to their major
customers.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35.

250

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

RAE S35 (48)
(b) FEBTEEIEASHHM :

2021 2020

—E-—F - -k

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT ARET T

Salaries e 17,440 16,916
Pension scheme contributions and social  BRS st EIHT T2 EF

welfare 84 57

17,524 16,973

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(iii) above

also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021

Financial assets

36. BEHNESHERMIR

——_

—_— —

THMEE

Financial assets
at fair value

RBEIRBESRTANREEDT

through profit
or loss
BATEEA
R ERMEE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
I BBSER AT
snitbIsE HEMEE fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AEBTT
Trade and bills receivables B S EWRIE R EREE - 1,371,487 1,371,487
Financial assets included in sHATET IR IE K E LR
prepayments and other TIENEMEE
receivables - 350,302 350,302
Financial assets at fair value AT EZ ABEH
through profit or loss STHEE 500,000 - 500,000
Pledged deposits BIRED - 831 831
Cash and bank balances B R IRIT4EER - 16,645,709 16,645,709
At December 31, 2021 NWE - —F
+=-—A=+—~ 500,000 18,368,329 18,868,329
Financial liabilities ERMEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

FBSE R AN YRR

HEREE

RMB’000

AR®TT

Trade and bills payables B Z AR ET R 1,028,354

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEIRITEE 5,272,601

Lease liabilities HEas 36,562
Financial liabilities included in other SFARMEMRIERESERANEMARE

payables and accruals 431,183

6,768,700
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)  36. I&IARIZIDNERTA (48)

252

2020

Financial assets

—FETTF

—_——=F

THMEE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

FRERIH AL AN TR

HEMEE

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWEIE R E W ERR 899,559
Financial assets included in prepayments s ATE B K B E W EIER

and other receivables THEE 191,549

Pledged deposits BiRER 100,072

Cash and bank balances IR MIRTTAEER 13,825,147

15,016,327

Financial liabilities

THaR

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

R AR

HEREE

RMB’000

ABETIT

Trade and bills payables BRI ETER 983,987

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEIRITEE 1,917,681

Lease liabilities HEaRE 50,222
Financial liabilities included in other StAEMERTIERESTE RN

payables and accruals ERBE 581,199

3,533,089
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. EMTANAFERL2FEELR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

FAEETHMTANKRAERATE (HERE
BEHEATESEREERINOT

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AFE
2021 2020 2021 2020

—®_—F —"TETF ZB-—F _"Z_TF

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERBTR ARBTT AREFR ARETT

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair AT EFTAEEN
value through profitorloss ~ &Fi&ZE 500,000

- 500,000 -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at
December 31, 2021 were assessed to be insignificant.

EEECTMRERIBEEEY ERF
o BERBWRIAEREWEE - BZ RN
IR BN RIE ~ st ATAN IR R H A E
WRENEMEE « st AHRMBARIER
FEstE AN REREY I BN
B> HAFEERAEE CBREREER
& IHHEPIIEE TAREHNEIRPIE -

FERIRTEENATENBBFERAERE
LG~ EERREFGHENITANE
AR BRI IE ST R ARIR S MEITINIRE
BEE/E RIZE-_—F+"BA=+—H">
AEBBBHHBIRTEENTENRAR
MERN AT EEENFTESFERK o
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. EMTANAFERATFEHER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy NTEELR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRRPEAEESHTANAFENERE
the Group’s financial instruments: o
Assets measured at fair value: BMATEGENEE
At December 31,2021 WZE=-—%+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RATHISENATEEHSE
Quoted

prices Significant Significant
In active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BETHIEE EATERER EAFIUER
wE B A B A B

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—4) (B=4R) (B=4) #act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTr ARBTR ARETR ARETRE

Financial assets at fair AT EST BTN
value through profitorloss ~ &F1&E - 500,000 - 500,000
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. RIEMGEIEEHIEREER

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, cash
and bank balances and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the
Company in Mainland China were not subject to significant foreign
currency risk. As at December 31, 2021, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China which had currencies
other than RMB as their functional currencies. The Company and those
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China also held bank
balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign currency exposures
arise.

EMNEmERERQRE | £k 2021

AEENTIEZTRIAGERTER R
ERIBITRGRERER - LETMTA
NEIZENEATERNEEESEES -
rERBAZRERHEEEENEM
THEEKRERE NEZRWHREKRES
ENRIRSE -

FEBEMIAESIRNEIEZRARAINGE
B EERBMASEZAR EFEH
ZAHEEESERRIEER - ARER
BT o

51 LB
FAEBNEBEEZMUNTEAM > REF
2EXZTHUAREET - HAEELTF
EREEREBEDUARESHE » 72T
BYRE At B AR T FEEAINEEE
B —F+"A=+—H> xEEN
BRHENEERBENDEIEREART R
ATHEAE (5 E ALt & AL
1) A REUARELSMIEME R
RINFEEYS - KRB RZFHBAT (B
B Pyt LA S & R AR IL) TR A UA RIS
SHERSRITAES > EhEEINERKE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

38. SRIEAMEIEEERKE (B)

Foreign currency risk (continued) G | BiE (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRITPIREHF > AEBESBRANEF
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD exchange EAERNEGEE BTEXRFIERfEEH
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before HNHRE T8 HMESRFIEE) o
tax and the Group’s equity.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in HKD rate before tax in equity*
BITEE PRI A F R
EA(F) g0 GRl)  18hn - GR) *
% RMB’000 RMB’000

Aot AR®BTr AR%Tr

2021 —E-—%
If RMB weakens against HKD i A\ RISHETEE 1 (6,039) (3,251)
If RMB strengthens against HKD i A\ BB THE (1) 6,039 3,251
Excluding retained profits REFE(R LT
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in HKD rate before tax in equity”
BT RIS A& G
ERCRED) 3850 Ceib) 38/ CRid)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BaLE AR¥ETF T AR¥ETTT
2020 —ZEIEHF
If RMB weakens against HKD HARBHBETRE 1 8 156
If RMB strengthens against HKD i A\ BHEEBTHE (1) (8) (156)
Excluding retained profits R EIEREEF

256 Dali Foods Group Company Limited | Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. EREEEIEREREE (48)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk EEm M

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific approval.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at December
31.

The accounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at December 31, 2021

FAEEERERTAGELHERENE =
HETRS - xEBNBRBFAERRE
BEHETEENS R > IRKBEERSE
2R o IEh > S8 B RF B BE B AR IR IR R
B MAEEEREARILAER - 5L
JELUERAE B B IR ThEE B IS sHERR 5
AEBEREHAENBER T TIERHEEE
HA o

B = BB K S48 B AR B
TRETNRTZA=+—HARBAEERE
ERRNEEERNEAZNESEERRE
HIZRBEMER CRIFE BREIINA
FASEEREMER) - LU EERRA]
par

2YEEAHEHEENREBE -

WZEZ—%+ZHA=+—H

12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
+ (BB FEHA 2 HATEH
EHESE EHESE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
FE—R [k (o33 4zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade and bills receivables B S EWIE R ENEE - 1,371,487 1,371,487
Financial assets included in st ATE IIE R W
prepayments and FIER B R A
other receivables
— Normal —1Fs 350,302 - 350,302
Financial assets at fair value AT ESFAEBEH
through profit or loss EHMEBEE 500,000 - 500,000
Pledged deposits BIRER
— Not yet past due — MR EA 831 - 831
Cash and bank balances IBE R R T 45 R
— Not yet past due — M RiEHA 16,645,709 - 16,645,709
17,496,842 1,371,487 18,868,329
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

38. SRIEAMEIEEERKE (B)

= B B 45 B AR A (

)

As at December 31, 2020 H-E-ZTH5+=-A=+—H
12-month Lifetime
ECLs ECLs
+ 1@ B faHA 2 HATEHA
EEEE EEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
E—R 5% “ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETF T ARETT
Trade and bills receivables B EWIE K ENE - 899,559 899,559
Financial assets included in sHAFE R IE R E A FE U
prepayments and FIENEMEE
other receivables
— Normal —1Fs 191,549 - 191,549
Pledged deposits HiREFES
— Not yet past due — & A 100,072 - 100,072
Cash and bank balances RERIRITAERR
— Not yet past due — EREH 13,825,147 - 13,825,147
14,116,768 899,559 15,016,327
For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * AEBEERSCELGIEHREN S S ER

for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to
the financial statements.

RIEKREWEEREMS - BREEHERNER
PR EA SRR M E 19958 -

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

ERAERREE S BFIRNEE AR
E LB BRI M B RRMEE 19KE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

38. SREAMEIEEERKE (B)

MENE &
AERERBERADESTI TAERA
ERERAR - WTAEEHSMI AR
TREE (WE SRR NEAA KR
SHSERIRERE -

R|BEHR > ZEEASREEIRGHRE
WRARVEEERAT -

is as follows:
2021 —E-—F
On Less than 3to 1to
demand 3months 12 months 5 years Total
#BEX LOR3fEA 3Z1288 1E58E 48zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTR ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR AR%TR
Trade and bills payables BRERNTERECER - 1,028,354 - - 1,028,354
Lease liabilities HE&E - 4,746 14,236 19,443 38,425
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER - - 5,345,860 - 5,345,860
Financial liabilities included in stAEMERTIER
other payables and accruals EtERNSREAs 214,502 216,681 - - 431,183
214502 1,249,781 5,360,096 19,443 6,343,822
2020 —E-EF
Less than 3to 1to
On demand 3months 12 months 5years Total
BER  OR3ER  33EDRMER 15548 a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETR
Trade and bills payables B ENHIBERENEE - 983,987 - - 983,987
Lease liabilities HEAR - 4811 13,489 35,655 53,955
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHERITER - - 1,956,118 - 1,956,118
Financial liabilities included in HAEMERRIER
other payables and accruals ExERNSHaRE 288,067 293,132 - - 581,199
288,067 1,281,930 1,969,607 35,655 3,575,259

EMNEmERARARF | £k 2021 259



Notes to the Financial Statements
P e N

December 31,2021 —_&E_—#+_H=4+—H

38.

260

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities
divided by capital plus total liabilities. Capital represents equity
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end
of each reporting periods were as follows:

38.

&R ERERBIRRECR (8)

BHREE
AEREAEENTIEZARERREAER
FERERE R RENERLEER » UX
FEBUERRREENRAE -

AEREERHERERITBRBEERRE
HRARMEENRREHBEEFLRAE -
DT NABREN G ZEENARR
HRENREZN ARRBEEANE
1THIRAD o A& [E I = E B (E ) S0 8B i N
BEARER -

FEBUBEESRLERERELR  HH R
BERUESN EBEREFE - B4

FREERE ABGRED - REREMRN
BEESBLERNT

2021 2020

—E—F —ZBTEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREETFTT

Total liabilities I=NEEEEE 8,169,430 5,245,320
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BATEE AEGER 19,236,024 17,465,436
Capital and total liabilities BARNEELEEE 27,405,454 22,710,756
Gearing ratio BEBRELX 29.8% 23.1%
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

39. ARMFHIRAR

NTFaRBRERREAELDFBRRER

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BBk

2021 2020
—E_—5F —2TFg
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fx AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENE E
Investment in a subsidiary R B ABIMNRE 1 1
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Cash and bank balances BE K IRIT4EER 605,055 71,742
Due from subsidiaries W B ATRIE - 586,461
Other receivables HAthpEUR T IE 41 11
Total current assets MBS EMRE 605,096 658,214
CURRENT LIABILITIES Pk =R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITIEE 324,601 417,681
Due to subsidiaries BB ARRIE 218,375 -
Other payables and accruals HAhERIE R EST & B 17,131 17,898
Total current liabilities VIE) =R GEE 560,107 435,579
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 44,989 222,635
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BELAERTE&E 44,990 222,636
Net assets BEEFE 44,990 222,636
EQUITY K
Share capital Rg 7 112,712 112,712
Reserves (note) & (MI5E) (67,722) 109,924
Total equity HarE 44,990 222,636
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

TABMFIRAR (B)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: B EE -
Asummary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AT EERENT :
Exchange
Share fluctuation Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRipiEEE EREBEE 1REBiHEF 45t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At January 1, 2020 AZEZEF—HA—H - 29,901 1,286 31,187
Total comprehensive income fortheyear — FERiFE U AERE - (54,704) 2,772,917 2,718,213
Final 2019 dividend declared EERZZE—NEXRBRE - - (1,736,732) (1,736,732)
Interim 2020 dividend TR TEFHRHRKRE - - (902,744) (902,744)
At December 31, 2020 and H-ZT-ZEH+=-A=+—H
January 1, 2021 R-Z-—5—HF—H - (24,803) 134,727 109,924
Total comprehensive income for the year R4S UINERARZE - (48,400) 1,831,956 1,783,556
Final 2020 dividend declared CER-ZIZEREKE - - (968,704) (968,704)
Interim 2021 dividend RS - - (992,498) (992,498)
At December 31, 2021 m-—g-—5+=-HA=+—H - (73,203) 5,481 (67,722)
40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. HEHABEIE
Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2021, the trustee of the BE_EZ_—GF+_A=+—HILFES
Share Award Scheme purchased an aggregate of 145,614,000 Shares % R SR T8I EE A B IR R E 5t
with a total consideration of approximately HK$705,488,909.67 for the BIBEE & 145,614,000 )RR 1D » 4B RELY
purpose of the Share Award Scheme (note 30). #705,488,909.67 87T (st 30)
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. ZEMBFRER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MBRRTEHESFEN 2 "4=4
board of directors on March 28, 2022. TN\ B RIS o
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Definition
B

“AGM”
MRERBFENED ]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”
F4MA ) 31 TE=A24MA1

“Audit Committee”
I=ZE89)

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

Exg)

“BVI”
MREEREE

“China” or “PRC”
TFRE
“Company”

/Nl

“Corporate Governance Code”
or “CG Code”
M2 ERTR

»

“Director(s)

&%)

“ESG
FESG

» o« » o«

“Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us”

Mg/ 80 M3

“HKg” Or_ “HKD”
Bl

“Hong Kong”
r&E)

“Listing Date”

FEm B

the annual general meeting of the Company

KRBRRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company which became effective on the Listing
Date and as amended from time to time

1 L BRI ERRAERRHEST R A A B Z24BA)

the audit committee of the Board
EEEBERZEET

the board of directors of the Company

TRBDERE

the British Virgin Islands
BEERES

the People’s Republic of China excluding for the purpose of this annual report,
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
FEARREME > MAFRMS @ FEEESE RPIFHTEREREE

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (£ F| & & & B A& BB A 8]), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 4, 2014
ENEREEERAR  — XN _Z2—NF+—ANBEMREEEEMMIIN
BERRE

code on corporate governance practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

EAARRIN R+ TP b X R BRI TR

the director(s) of the Company
KNBEER

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE - g RER

collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries

E/NSIYS2t =N it

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBRITHERE

November 20, 2015, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Stock

Exchange

“E-hF+—RAT+H > RMIRBEAT LTI BHT
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Definition

EE=

“Listing Rules”

M Em#Ra]
“Model Code”
MEAESFE)

“Prospectus”
HER=E)

“RMB”
TAR

“Securities Dealing Code”

el

“SFO”
M5B RA

“Share(s)”
MRg17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
Mg ER

“Share Award Scheme”

Niavpid-bes N

“Share Option Scheme”

MBS R

“Stock Exchange”
THSSZ P

“”

%,

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

B SXPREE s L THARA

the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LEHRRRIN AP LR ET AT ETR SRS VRETR

the prospectus of the Company dated November 10, 2015
AREIHBA ZZ2—AF+—A T HNBRER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AET—&% 5 EP/fiEjém%

a code of conduct adopted by the Company
IATERARITT R SPR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EBEG B ST B (EHFRAERA)

share(s) in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each

KRB RAFRSREE0.01 BTHIRM

holder(s) of the Shares
BHEBEA

the share award scheme adopted by our Company, details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated December 2, 2021
RATIFFERABIR D RESE) » HFBRHNARBDAPRA S —F+Z
BZHROASE

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on August 25, 2015 for the
benefit of its employees, Directors, customers and suppliers of our Group,
business or joint venture partners and certain advisors of our Group and their
respective employees, a summary of the principal terms of which is set forth in
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” to
the Prospectus

ARBHAERREE - EF ~ TR RMER « EFNaERERAEEE T
BEEESENEENN N _SE—AFN\B Z+HEHRMNERES > &
FERROBEHIBIREIE TSR0 — AT R—RER — D BRI

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBHERZPIARAT

per cent

Bt
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